Annual Report
2019-20

Page 1

Contents
PERFORMANCE REPORT ....................................................................................... 3
Chief Officer and Clinical Chair’s foreword ................................................................. 3
THE PERFORMANCE REPORT – OVERVIEW ........................................................ 7
THE PERFORMANCE REPORT – PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS ........................... 20

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT ................................................................................. 49
Corporate Governance Report ................................................................................. 50
Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities ................................................ 63
Governance Statement ............................................................................................ 65
Remuneration and Staff Report ............................................................................ 98
Remuneration Report (subject to audit) ................................................................... 98
Staff Report ............................................................................................................ 107

Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report ................................................ 119

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS ........................................................................................... 121

Page 2

PERFORMANCE REPORT
Chief Officer and Clinical Chair’s foreword
Welcome to the 2019-20 Annual Report, which provides a reflection on the work of NHS
Wakefield CCG, as part of the wider health and care system, to enable the district’s population
to live longer in good health.
Our role as a Clinical Commissioning Group is to secure the best possible health outcomes for
more than 370,000 people registered with the 37 GP practices in the Wakefield district.
The NHS Long Term Plan, which was published in January 2019 sets out a vision to deliver
improved population health through commissioners and providers of health and care working
together to support people to have more control over their own well-being, invest in measures
to prevent ill-health and strengthen primary and community services, reducing the need for
people to be cared for in hospital.
These are the ambitions that have driven the approach the approach of NHS Wakefield CCG,
working in partnership with health and care providers in the public and voluntary sector both
within the district an across West Yorkshire.
In this year, we have continued to build on these strong foundations, promoting integrated
working arrangements and digital solutions to ensure care and support are joined up and
respond to individual needs.
Our values underpin our ambition to work with commissioners and providers and with local
people to significantly improve the physical and mental health of the population:
•
•
•
•

Being respectful and enabling trust
Working together for patients
Being the best we can be
Committed to being one single, inclusive team

Being respectful and enabling trust means that we value the views of local people and
involve service users and stakeholders in shaping our commissioning decisions. We act as a
publicly accountable organisation; we are open and honest about the challenges facing local
services and we deliver on our commitments. One example of this is the work we have done
with colleagues in the voluntary and community sector, Wakefield Council’s children’s services,
education and health, to improve support for children with mental health problems and with
autism spectrum disorders. We have worked with children and parents to redesign services,
dramatically reducing the length of time children wait for treatment, connecting with community
organisations to support children and families while they are waiting and raising the standard of
care one children. Through this work, we have developed a three year plan for Children and
Young People. We are already seeing the benefits with 42% of children now having access to
emotional support against a national target of 32%. No child under 18 now waits more than 30
weeks for an autism assessment and children are benefiting from an innovative partnership
with Wakefield Trinity Rugby Club to increase physical activity and improve confidence through
the Engage programme.
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Working together for the benefit of patients describes how we work in partnership with
commissioners and providers of health and care services, including voluntary organisations to
deliver continuous improvement. The CCG has a strong leadership role in the Wakefield
Health and Wellbeing Board and has promoted the development of the Wakefield Integrated
Care Partnership (ICP). The ICP brings together agencies including public health, primary,
community, mental health, social care, acute services, housing, police and fire and rescue
services with a shared objective to tackle the underlying causes of ill-health such as poor
housing, access to meaningful employment and social connections, to deliver the strategic
ambitions for the district.
The ICP has agreed its priorities up to 2021. These reflect the health challenges for our district
and include: Lung Cancer, Mental Health, Elderly Care, Primary Care Networks and End of
Life Care Integration. There has also been a 4% increase in people aged over 75 years who
are able to be supported at home instead of having to go into hospital.
The ICP aims to enable organisations to work together to make Wakefield a healthy place to
live and work. Our ambition is to help people maintain good physical and mental health and to
ensure when people become ill, services connect together to support them. One example of
this strong collaboration is the Wakefield Mental Health Alliance, which connects a range of
specialist voluntary sector providers of psychological and mental well-being services, with the
main NHS provider South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Trust. Through this Alliance, we
are making the best use of resources and skills, reducing the time people wait for access to
support and raising the standard of care.
The CCG is an active member of the West Yorkshire Health and Care Partnership, which
brings together commissioners and providers of health services and local councils to organise
and deliver services for the 2.7 million people living in West Yorkshire, where there are benefits
to planning on a bigger scale. The Health and Care Partnership has agreed a work plan
prioritising cancer, maternity, children’s services, stroke, mental health and learning disabilities
and planned care. Up to February 2020, through the Cancer Alliance, the Partnership delivered
1990 Lung Health Checks Completed (Patients aged between 55 and 75). 18 Patients were
diagnosed with Lung Cancer of whom 61% had an early stage cancer compared with only 30%
of patients identified with early stage Lung Cancer in 2017. An estimated 11 lives have
therefore been saved. 181 Patients are being followed up for Lung Nodules by Mid Yorkshire
Hospitals Trust and, I addition, 59 patients had a new diagnosis of chronic pulmonary
obstruction disease (COPD), a 3-4 times increase on previous figures for the participating GP
Practices. These patients are being managed by their GP for long term support in the
community. This will reduce the need to be seen by the respiratory physicians in the future.
Being the best we can be means that we are never complacent and actively seek
opportunities to learn and improve. We do this in many ways, for example by inviting patient
feedback and reviewing learning from complaints through our Quality Intelligence Group. We
also engage in learning opportunities, such as participating in formal peer and external review
arrangements, taking decisive action to address recommendations and supporting our
providers and GPs respond positively to feedback from the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
As a consequence of this all 37 of GP practices have a CQC rating of outstanding or good and
our main NHS provider of mental health has moved from a rating of requires improvement to
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good. Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust remains rated requires improvement but has
achieved significant improvements in several domains. The CCG also achieved a rating of
Good in the NHS England operating framework assessment, which judges performance
relating to efficiency, quality, partnership working and involving the public. We were
commended for our progress on managing our £600m-plus budget and achieving our financial
plan, our work on diabetes management, reducing smoking in pregnancy from 21 per cent to
16 per cent and achieving fewer alcohol related hospital admissions.
Our focus remains firmly on continually improving the services to ensure everyone living in
Wakefield district has the best start in life; is able to age well and live a long healthy life.
Our commitment to being one, single inclusive team describes the value placed on our
member practices and our staff. We have continued through the last year to strengthen
engagement of our member practices through the development of our seven Primary Care
Networks, which are now taking an active role in the leadership of the CCG and are firmly
embedded in our processes for collaboration, planning and decision making. We aim to be an
exemplar employer and, as such, take a proactive approach to engaging staff and acting on
feedback through our annual Staff Survey, Staff Forum, Partnership Working Group and
Extended Senior Leadership Team. This year we have enhanced support to staff including
those who have caring responsibilities and those who have protected characteristics and have
extended access to coaching for staff and introduced Workplace behaviour Ambassadors to
help staff perform at their optimum through challenging times. We take pride in what the
organisation has achieved in 2019-20 and in spite of the challenges facing the NHS.
Together, we have delivered some fantastic improvements for local people in the last year.
These are just a few examples:
•

Mental health admissions to hospital for Wakefield were below the national average with
176.4 per 1,000 people in the second quarter of the year compared with the national
average of 276.7 per 1,000.

•

Admissions for coronary heart disease (all ages) for Wakefield were below the national
average with 404.5 per 1000 people in Quarter 2 compared with the national average of
488.2 per 1,000 population.

•

Wakefield has seen a reduction in admissions for Heart failure (all ages) when
compared to previous years. The latest rate reports at 160 per 1,000 people.

•

Wakefield has fewer for child admissions relating to asthma (children aged 0-9)
compared with the national average, with 194 against the national rate of 221.1

•

Latest figures for hospital admissions relating to asthma (under 19 years) shows a slight
improved position from the previous year and benchmarks well against the national
average (143.5 against national average of 176.8).

•

Emergency admissions for urgent care sensitive conditions have reduced by 1.4% when
compared to the previous year.
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•

This year we have seen a 1% reduction in all emergency admissions (all ages)
compared to the number reported in the previous year.

•

Cancer screening uptake within the Wakefield District has increased compared to the
level reported during the previous year.

Our commitment to these values and the strength it gives us has been put to the test as our as
a health and care community has come together to manage the impact of the COVID
pandemic. We are immensely proud of the way our partners. GP membership and staff have
responded to the exceptional demands this has placed on all of us and we are confident that
collaboration across the system will have helped to save lives and protect the most vulnerable
people in our communities.

Joanne Webster
Chief Officer
17 June 2020

Dr Adam Sheppard
Clinical Chair
17 June 2020
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THE PERFORMANCE REPORT – OVERVIEW
This section of the 2019-20 NHS Wakefield CCG annual report provides information about the
CCG; our purpose and activities and how we have performed during the year ended March 31,
2020. It also includes key risks to us being able to achieve our objectives.

The nature and purpose of our organisation
NHS Wakefield CCG is a membership organisation made up of 37 general practices. There
are approximately 373,000 people registered with a GP in Wakefield. Our purpose is to
improve their health and lives – both adults and children – by planning and paying for a range
of local health services.
We regularly seek the views of local people and their representatives to make sure they have a
respected and influential voice about the care they receive and that the right NHS services are
in place.
Working collaboratively with our healthcare partners and stakeholders in Wakefield and as part
of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership – including other CCGs,
NHS trusts, councils and voluntary and community sector organisations – we aim to:
•
•
•
•
•

Ensure healthcare is person-centred and available to anyone who needs it
Encourage people to make healthy life choices
Promote wellbeing in our communities
Improve issues that affect health (often known as ‘wider determinants of health’) such
as education, housing, employment and safety
Address health inequalities that exist locally

We have used our overall budget allocation of more than £600m from NHS England to
commission health and care services in a range of areas that include hospital services, mental
health and learning disabilities, community health services, primary care and services for
children and young people.
As an organisation, we have our own values which underpin the delivery of our objectives.
These are that we:
•
•
•
•

Are respectful and enable trust
Work together for patients
Are committed to being one single, inclusive team
Be the best we can be

Key Issues or Risks
The Governing Body Assurance Framework, also known as GBAF, aims to identify the
principal or strategic risks to the delivery of the CCG’s strategic objectives.
It draws together the high level risks from different sources and allows the governing body to
focus on making sure the impact of these risks is minimised through appropriate management
action.
The GBAF is supported by a local risk register that provides a local record of all potential or
actual organisational risks.
As at March 31, 2020, the key risks faced by the CCG and the controls and mitigation against
them were:
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•

A risk that care needs of children with identified complex health needs not being met or
funded properly, if we fail to comply with the national framework for children’s continuing
care. There was a recent children’s continuing care audit carried out by Audit Yorkshire
which highlighted a number of recommendations which will need to be addressed in
order to ensure the necessary governance processes are in place.

•

A risk that key performance indicator (KPI) targets are not met due to continued
pressure on West Yorkshire urgent care and Local Care Direct capacity to meet
demand. In response to this, there has been a review of the queue management
process, process mapping, remuneration package and performance expectations for
workforce to increase productivity, improved flexible workforce options and a review of
the workforce skill matrix.

•

A risk that the 18 week referral to treatment waiting times for non-urgent, consultant-led
treatments as set out in the NHS constitution is not met. System-wide assurance
arrangements have been finalised through the Planned Care Improvement Group
(PCIG).

•

There is a risk of overspend on the allocated primary care prescribing budget for the
year 2019-20. Monitoring is in place for monthly price concessions and price increases
to produce alternative advice for prescribing, where appropriate, on those drugs
affected.

Statement from the Chief Officer – Summary of Performance
In July 2019, the CCG was rated ‘Good’ by NHS England who assessed a number of important
areas including efficiency, quality, partnership working and involving the public.
Areas in which performance has improved include waiting times for diagnostic tests. There is a
six week standard for endoscopy and radiology diagnostic services and the CCG’s
performance against this has improved, with the national standard of 99 per cent being
achieved from September 2019 onwards.
The CCG also achieved both two week waiting time standards following referrals for cancer
treatment (breast symptoms and urgent GP referrals). This standard means patients should be
seen by a cancer specialist within a maximum of two weeks from their GP referral.
Performance was reported at 98.7 per cent and 99.3 per cent at the end of December 2019
against a target of 93 per cent.
Areas where we know we can improve include the referral to treatment performance for
planned treatment. Nationally, the NHS standard is that 92 per cent of people waiting for
planned treatment are treated within 18 weeks of being referred by their GP. At the beginning
of April 2019, performance reported at 87 per cent and by the end of December performance
reported at 86 per cent. Seven of the 18 referral to treatment specialities were achieving the 92
per cent standard.
We continue to closely monitor performance in all areas, in particular through the hard work of
our Quality and Performance teams, while working with partners to continually improve.
As a health and care system, we look beyond traditional health and care services and focus on
quality of life for our citizens.
These are also ambitions which are strongly reflected in the national NHS Long Term Plan and
by the work of Wakefield’s Health and Wellbeing Board, which brings together key
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organisations to oversee plans to help people in Wakefield live healthier, happier and longer
lives with less inequality.
We know that people are living longer in the district, although still less than the national
average. This means that people are living longer in ill health and that there is ever more
pressure on services which we commission.
Therefore we have a strong emphasis on how we work together to deliver the best services
with the resources we have.
One shining example of the joint working we have undertaken on the Autism Spectrum
Disorder (ASD) pathway. In June 2017, an Ofsted and CQC inspection highlighted we needed
to improve autism services for children and young people waiting for an autism assessment.
At that time, 614 young people up to the age of 14 were waiting for ASD assessments and the
average waiting time was almost two years.
Local health, council, schools and community partners came together to address this issue
with parents, children and young people playing a key role in an action plan for improvement.
In June 2019, Ofsted and the CQC revisited in June 2019 Wakefield to hear from children and
young people with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND), parents, carers,
council and NHS organisations about the progress being made, the number of young people
aged under 14 on the waiting list had reduced to 57 with a waiting time of no more than 26
weeks
It shows the value of us working together for patients, our commitment to being one single,
inclusive team and being the best we can be.
The seven Primary Care Networks established in Wakefield will further coordinate support
between a number of organisations to provide patients with personalised care which gives
them greater control over their own health, providing support before people ever need to see
their GP.
Further information on our activities throughout the year and performance is provided in the
detailed Performance Analysis section of this annual report.

Emergency Preparedness Resilience and Response (EPRR)
The CCG submits an annual self-assessment to NHS England against 43 national EPRR core
standards. These standards are designed to support the CCG to be able to prepare for and
respond to emergencies and incidents.
The submission also includes confirmation that we have tested our emergency plans.
The CCG submitted a rating of ‘substantial’ compliance. The CCG was fully compliant on 42/43
core standards and partially compliant with one standard. This is similar to the majority of
organisations.
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OUR VALUES-BASED COMMISSIONING APPROACH
West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership
The West Yorkshire and Harrogate
Health and Care Partnership, known
as an Integrated Care Partnership,
began in 2016 and involves health
and care organisations working with
councils and the voluntary and
community sector to provide better care for 2.7 million people living in the area.
In March 2020, the Partnership published its five-year plan, which sets out how it will work in
each of the six local places (Bradford district and Craven; Calderdale, Harrogate, Kirklees,
Leeds and Wakefield) and on agreed priority programmes. These include cancer, urgent care;
mental health; support for people with learning disabilities; maternity care; children and young
people.
Developed with partners, stakeholders and the public, it explains how the Partnership will
achieve the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan which was published in January 2019, and
local ambitions that go beyond the NHS into the things that support better health and
wellbeing.
There are 10 big ambitions, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increase the years of life that people live in good health, and reduce the gap in life
expectancy by 5% in our most deprived communities by 2024
Reduce the gap in life expectancy for people with mental health, learning disabilities and
autism by 10% by 2024.
Reduce health inequalities for children living in households with the lowest incomes,
including halting the trend in childhood obesity
Increase early diagnosis of cancer, ensuring at least 1,000 more people have the
chance of curative treatment.
Reduce suicide by 10% overall by 2020/21 and achieve a 75% reduction in targeted
areas by 2022.
Reduce anti-microbial resistance infections by 10% by 2024, reducing antibiotic use by
15%
Reduce stillbirths, neonatal deaths, and brain injuries by 50%, and reduce maternal
morbidity and mortality, by 2025
Become a global leader in responding to the climate emergency
Strengthen local economic growth by reducing health inequalities and improving skills.

The Plan is closely linked with the Local Industrial Strategy. Good jobs to drive good health
through technology and the area’s world renowned, health tech sector, research and
development is within reach. To help achieve this, WY&H HCP partners are working alongside
the West Yorkshire Combined Authority through the Leeds City Region Local Enterprise
Partnership. Similarly as good employers, investing £5.5bn together, the partners have a role
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in the economic health of the region and the wellbeing of the population. This requires good
leadership at all levels and a different, more diverse set of leaders.
Recent Wakefield developments have included:
•

•

•

With the Institute for Voluntary Action Research Building Health Partnerships
programme, the partnership has worked with community and voluntary groups to
improve the health of people in Wakefield. The project worked with local people and
voluntary groups to raise awareness of eye health.
Around 100 people attended the Church View Medical Centre in South Kirkby to receive
their ‘lung MOT’ during the first week of a targeted lung health check pilot programme in
summer 2019. This was part of the Cancer Alliance Tackling Lung Cancer programme
that sent invitations to patients aged 55 to 74 who smoked or used to smoke in South
Kirkby and Hemsworth. Estimated outcomes from the Wakefield pilot and one that also
ran in Bradford is 100-120 cancers being detected, 75% of which are expected to be at
an earlier stage and just 25% at late stage.
Following engagement it was agreed in 2018 that West Yorkshire and Harrogate would
have four units to provide specialist hyper acute stroke care (the care people receive in
the first 72 hours after a stroke). One of these is in Wakefield, alongside others in
Bradford, Calderdale and Leeds. This is part of work to create a stroke clinical network
and improve quality and health outcomes across the whole of the stroke pathway for
example preventing stroke; support after having a stroke; long-term care and end of life
care.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Board
The Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Board is made up of different health and care
organisations, including health, social care, and the voluntary sector.
As a forward thinking Board, membership has also been extended to partner organisations
whose role makes a difference to people’s wellbeing, such as police, fire and housing.
The ambitions of the Health and Wellbeing Board are well aligned to the 2019 NHS Long Term
Plan. The Health and Wellbeing Board is responsible for developing and driving forward plans
to help people in the district live longer, healthier lives.
The CCG has played a key role in developing and delivering the Health and Wellbeing
Strategy for the district, creating a single plan informed by the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment, which all the partner organisations are committed to delivering.
The Health and Wellbeing Plan (the Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Strategy) was refreshed
in 2018.
The CCG Chief Officer’s membership of Wakefield Council’s corporate management team
ensures that both health and care are represented together on this key group.
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The benefits of this move are already being felt locally in the innovative discussions being held
on the impact and role of health in areas such as regeneration, business, homelessness and
poverty.
In 2018 the Health and Wellbeing Board refreshed the Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Plan
with a refocus on tackling the wider determinants of health. Four priority areas were agreed:

The Health and Wellbeing Board has a strong relationship with the Children and Young
People’s Partnership to deliver on the priority of ‘giving every child the best start in life’.
The Preventing Ill Health priority is delivered through the Wakefield Integrated Care
Partnership and focuses on four key areas:
•
•
•
•

Prevention
Mental Health
Ageing Well
End of Life

The Integrated Care Partnership supports partnership working across local health, social care,
housing and voluntary and community sector organisations. Its purpose is to remove historical
barriers that have got in the way of preventative patient care across primary, community,
mental health, social care and acute services.
The Building Sustainable Communities priority is led by Public Health and has developed a
multi-agency Healthier Communities Partnership which oversees development of an action
plan to deliver the priority. This work stream is still in development but is making good progress
on agreeing areas of work for the coming year.
Ensuring a Healthy Standard of Living for All is one of the newest areas of focus for the Health
and Wellbeing Board and will focus on improving population health by addressing lifestyle,
economic and social issues that affect health, such as housing and financial security.
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The Health and Wellbeing Board monitor delivery of the Strategy through an outcomes
framework which tracks the impact on population health.
Information about the issues that the Health and Wellbeing Board partners have been tackling
can be found on its website
The Health and Wellbeing Board also takes a leadership role in tackling climate change and
sustainable development in Wakefield through its healthy standard of living for all and Building
Sustainable Communities priorities.

Children and Young People
Wakefield CCG and partners have continued to have a strong focus on improving outcomes for
children and young people, ensuring a fully integrated approach to delivery through partnership
working with the Wakefield Families Together Programme.
Our three priority areas of focus for children and young people during 2019/20 have been:
•
•
•

Early help and intervention
Getting the best start in life and being happy, healthy and safe
All children and young people enjoying good emotional and mental wellbeing, being
resilient and feeling supported and safe in their communities

The Children and Young People’s Partnership Board has been re-launched and now includes
children and young people being involved in the board to help us further develop priorities. Our
new three year Children and Young People’s Plan was published in the autumn of 2019 and
sets out how we will further improve outcomes for children and young people.
Mental health support for children and young people
Emotional and mental wellbeing for our children and young people continues to be a key
priority as outlined in the Children and Young People’s Plan 2019-2022.
In 2018/19 42% of children and young people in the district had access to an NHS
commissioned emotional health and mental wellbeing service against the NHS England’s
target of 32%, which nationally means that out of 248 of CCGs, Wakefield was 27th. This
access target has been achieved through the development of:
•
•
•

Future in Mind with Wakefield continuing to be the lead commissioner
Programmes provided by the Community Navigators
Kooth who provide group work and 1:1 sessions, both face to face and via the website.

In real terms this means that 2,887 children and young people were seen for advice and
intervention on at least two occasions.
Engagement with young people and their families has been crucial in developing suggestions,
raising areas of concern and ensuring co-production in shaping our emotional well-being
priorities. This has helped to target ensured the additional and recurrent investment during
2019/20 to priorities identified by young people and their families. .
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Examples of feedback have been:
“Clarissa (care navigator) has been a massive help to me, I cannot thank her enough. I am
gutted our sessions have come to an end but I know others need her. I know Clarissa will be
around school if I need her. Thank you.”
Children’s ASD Referral Pathway
The waiting times for ASD assessments overall have been reduced to 30 weeks for all children
on the 0-18 years pathway during 2019/20. Feedback from families has been positive about
the reduced waiting times.
In response to requests for support from families, the CCG has commissioned Wakefield
Trinity Rugby Club to deliver a family support session called Engage.
Two 12-week programmes have been delivered and families have reported their children’s
outcomes have improved through continued participation in physical exercise and improved
confidence through the Engage Programme.
Wakefield Early Support, Advice, Information and Liaison Service (WESAIL)
This service supports children, young people, their parents, carers and families by providing
free, confidential and impartial advice, support and signposting, helping them play an active
role in decision making.
WESAIL also works with children, young people, families and stakeholders to review and
develop the Local Offer, which pulls together information about the services, activities and
support available in the local area for children and young people with Special Education Needs
and/or Disabilities (SEND) and their families.
Maternity Services
A local Maternity Transformation Board has been established to oversee and steer
improvements in maternity services and ensure that we achieve the commitments set out in
Better Births and the NHS Long Term Plan.
Local issues including staff retention and recruitment are being addressed with support from
the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Local Maternity System (LMS).
There is a strong focus on initiatives to improve the health of women in pregnancy such as the
very successful specialist Stop Smoking midwife. Similar approaches are being explored to
excess weight and to drinking alcohol during pregnancy.
The CCG is supporting the re-launch of the Maternity Voices Partnership to ensure that local
women, their partners and families co-produce local maternity services.
Perinatal Mental Health
In line with the expectations in the NHS Long Term Plan, Wakefield CCG will be looking to
increase the number of women that are able to access specialist perinatal mental health
services.
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Following a self-assessment audit, a range of local priorities will be addressed through an
action plan owned by the Mental Health Alliance.
The CCG is working with colleagues across West Yorkshire and Harrogate to improve the
perinatal pathway through training resources for a range of professional groups and peer
support.
The local plan will increase support for fathers who may be experiencing mental health
problems and will integrate mental health support into the maternity pathways and services.
Further work through the Children and Young People’s Partnership Board in the coming year
will include:
•
•
•

•

Introducing a lead practitioner within the Children’s First Hubs (CFH), funded by the
CCG, to facilitate the identification, assessment and support needs of young carers in
the district.
Further developing partnership and co-ordination of services
The newly formed Early Years Strategic Board will develop and drive forward key
strategic initiatives, including children’s speech and language development in the
earliest years to significantly increase the number of children who have a ‘good level’ of
development at reception entry.
Our health visiting services, Children and Families Hubs, libraries, nurseries, schools,
health improvement teams and VCS organisations will continue to work together to
provide an excellent universal offer.

Working together for patients - Connecting Care + 2019-20
The Connecting Care + programme brings organisations in
Wakefield together from health and social care, housing, voluntary
and community organisations.
These organisations include: NHS Wakefield CCG, Wakefield
Council, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust, Spectrum, South
West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT), Nova
Wakefield District, Wakefield and District Housing, Age UK
Wakefield District and Carers Wakefield & District.
These organisations work together to co-design a care system that
meets the needs of local people. This embodies the organisational values of the CCG, in
particular working together for patients and our commitment to being one single, inclusive
team.
To support delivery of seamless care, the service has developed a Personal Integrated Care
(PIC) file – an electronic care record that provides a comprehensive overview of all the
interventions a patient receives from multiple agencies. 100 per cent of Connecting Care +
teams now use the PIC file and last year there were more than 4,000 referrals into the
Connecting Care + hubs, and has an integrated care plans. Of these, 50 per cent were for
aged over 80-years-old and around 30 per cent were urgent requests for support.
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The End of Life Care integrated pathways
are also now incorporated into the
Connecting Care hub model.
Connecting Care + has hosted a number of
guests and visitors from other areas this
year to support them in their integrated
care journey – including from as far afield
as South Korea.
The Connecting Care + hubs were also featured as a case study on integrated care on the
NHS Employers website.
The Connecting Care + team continues to develop the service and is now working differently
with an Urgent Response Team (URT), which offers a same day assessment to reduce the risk
of hospital admission, and Scheduled Visiting Service.
The next steps for the Connecting Care + model are:
•
•
•
•

Expansion and co-location of teams
Further developments with Primary Care Networks
Align and further integrate the work of the Connecting Care hubs with A&E and Hospital
Discharge arrangements
Work towards integrating and co-locating Wakefield Local Authority Reablement
Services and Mid Yorkshire NHS Intermediate Care Services

Being respectful and enabling trust - Connecting Care +
Carers Wakefield & District
Carers Wakefield & District offers free confidential information and support to adults and young
adult carers from the age of 18 living in the Wakefield Council area.
They provide advice and information about services available to carers and the person they
care for. They also help with benefits guidance and support carers at meetings that are
relevant to their caring role.
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A case study
Mary cares for her husband Stanley who was diagnosed with Alzheimer’s four years ago.
Stanley gets confused and puts clothes on top of his pyjamas. It isn’t safe for him to prepare
meals or make drinks as there would be a
fire risk.
Stanley has a disturbed sleep pattern which
takes its toll on Mary and can’t be left alone
as he has a tendency to wander and get lost.
Stanley has fallen in the shower and he
sometimes doesn’t recognise Mary.
An Age UK Support Worker made a referral
to Carers Wakefield & District and suggested
a joint visit. Mary was asked what would
make a difference to her. She said she
would feel better if she could have some
time to herself during the day.
Discussions were had around practical support, social activities for Mary and Stanley to attend
together, support available from the Alzheimer’s Society and the ‘My Time’ carers’ breaks and
support scheme.
Mary agreed to be referred to Social Care Direct for a Carer’s Assessment to request a sitting
service, was given further information about lunch clubs and the dementia café at St George’s
Community Centre and Age UK agreed to help her complete paperwork for a blue badge.
An Admiral Nurse made regular follow-up visits and has referred Mary to the ‘Positive Steps’
programme for carers at Wakefield Hospice. Stanley can attend with Mary as there are
volunteers to supervise while Mary attends the course.
Stanley is on the waiting list for the Alzheimer’s Side by Side service where a male befriender
will take him to football/rugby matches. Mary and Stanley attend a number of groups together
now and have made some good contacts. Mary is going to speak to her family to ask them to
sit with Stanley regularly while she has a break.
As Mary has been very proactive in following up on support and social services are involved,
Mary will be in touch in the future should any further need for help arise.

Learning Disabilities and Autism
Wakefield CCG and Wakefield Council have appointed a joint senior commissioning manager
for learning disability and autism and has worked in partnership with service users, carers,
families and health and social care professionals to produce a draft Wakefield Joint Learning
Disability Strategy 2019-2021.
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The plan covers nine areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Health Services and the Council
Meaningful and Enjoyable Activities
My Family Carers
My Health Providers
My Personal Budget/Individual Service Fund
Children’s and Adult Service to Work Together
Where I Live
Employment and Education
Short Breaks/Respite

An Action Planning event was held in February, 2020 with 16 people with Learning Disabilities
and 17 family members/carers. The workshop sessions covered the nine key areas in the plan
and were co-facilitated by service users. The outcomes of this event will inform the action
plans that will help to deliver the strategy and will be monitored by the Learning Disabilities and
Autism Partnership Board.
Reviewing Learning Disability Complex Care and Support Needs
The outcomes of a pilot project to review complex care and support for people with a learning
disability were presented to Connecting Care Executive in September 2019 and it was agreed
to continue with the project to embed a robust person centred approach into the current
mandatory review process.
In February 2020, the project has started to review the current health and social care needs for
those people with a learning disability to ensure they are supported in the least restrictive
environment.
Learning Disabilities Mortality Review (LeDeR)
The national LeDeR programme involves reviewing the deaths of all people with a learning
disability to identify potentially avoidable contributory factors. LeDeR focuses on the learning
that can be gained from reviewing the circumstances in which a person with learning
disabilities dies, and their care and treatment through their life.
In 2019/20 all CCGs were required to take part in the LeDeR programme and to have a named
person with lead responsibility for LeDeR; have a plan in place to ensure reviews are
undertaken within six months of the notification of death; have systems in place to analyse and
address the themes and recommendations from completed reviews; and produce an annual
report, demonstrating action taken and outcomes from reviews.
The CCG is compliant with the majority of these requirements. However ensuring reviews are
completed within six months remains challenging.
NHS England has commissioned North East Commissioning Support (NECS) to complete all
backlog cases nationally (those reported prior to 1 January 2019). This project started in
September 2019 and NECS have been allocated the 10 outstanding Wakefield cases.
However, NECS will not be starting Yorkshire and Humber cases until June 2020. NHSE has
confirmed that this phased approach by NECS will not adversely affect the CCG’s performance
against the national requirements.
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Adults with Autism Service
The service for Adults with Autism offers diagnostic assessment and/or specialist interventions
for people who are 18 years+.
To help improve the quality of referrals, guidance has been updated to support health
professionals to provide sufficient information about their patient.
Using this guidance will help gauge if a referral for a specialist diagnostic assessment may be
appropriate.

The Mental Health Provider Alliance
The Wakefield Mental Health Provider Alliance was formed in 2018 and includes partners and
commissioners involved in providing mental health services across the district, to reduce
duplication, ensure person centred care and build system resilience
Alongside NHS Wakefield CCG, alliance members include South West Yorkshire Partnership
Foundation Trust (SWYPFT), Turning Point, Wakefield Council, The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals
NHS Trust, Nova, Xenzone and Alzheimer’s Society.
The alliance is committed to partnership working and collaboration on the ambitions of the
NHS Long Term Plan and programmes of work across the West Yorkshire and Harrogate
Health and Care Partnership footprint, recognising the value of working at this system level.
The proposed work programme for 2020/2021 includes NHS Long Term Plan priorities such
as: peri-natal mental health; early intervention in psychosis; IAPT; physical health checks for
people with serious mental illness; preparation for individual placement support; integrated
primary and community care; mental health and ambulance services. Numerous Wakefieldspecific priorities have also been identified for the work programme.

Aligned Incentive Contracts
New contracting arrangements have changed the way in which hospital services with The Mid
Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust are paid for – moving from a Payment by Results (PbR) system
to Aligned Incentive Contracts.
This agreement between commissioner and provider fixes the value of the contract irrespective
of activity levels. This supports longer term planning and enables the contractual agreement
and monitoring to focus on improvements for patients.
It also reduces the cost and time of contract management, freeing up personnel to contribute to
service change and realises the aim of ‘place-based’ commissioning set out in the NHS Long
Term Plan.

Financial performance
The CCG achieved the financial target set by NHS England/Improvement to deliver a surplus
of £2.0m as part of a four year Financial Recovery Plan. The CCG also achieved the four
financial performance targets applied to all CCGs for management of expenditure, capital and
revenue.
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THE PERFORMANCE REPORT – PERFORMANCE
ANALYSIS
The CCG is committed to improving the quality of care across the district and to making sure
that people have the best possible mental and physical health outcomes.
To support the tracking and performance of our services, we monitor and report against a
range of performance measures. This includes:
The standards set out in the NHS Constitution, such as the time people wait to be seen and
treated in A&E and how long people wait after being referred to hospital services
•
•
•
•
•

How long people wait for access to mental health services and psychological services
Waiting times for children with mental health problems and autism spectrum disorder
How successful we have been in finding local care for people with learning disabilities
who have been cared for some distance from home
External views on what we do, such as Peer Review Challenges, work with the
Consultation Institute to advise and assess our approach to public engagement and
work with the Audit Yorkshire Consortium to review our governance processes
Reports by regulators such as the Care Quality Commission about the services we
commission, including GP practices.

Monitoring in this way means we can ensure progress is being made and that we are being the
best we can be.
The following is an analysis of our key areas of performance.

Referral to Treatment (RTT)
18 week waits
The national constitutional RTT access standard is that at least 92% of people
waiting for planned treatment are treated within 18 weeks of being referred by their GP.
Whilst Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust continued to face increased levels of demand
throughout 2019/20 on its planned care, performance against the access standard for the CCG
has remained stable throughout the year.
At the beginning of April 2019 performance reported at 87% and by the end of December
performance reported at 86%, with seven of the eighteen RTT specialities achieving the 92%
standard.
The national focus this year was to reduce the overall size of the incomplete waiting list to the
position reported at the end of April 2018. In addition to this, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS
Trust aimed to reduce the overall size of the outpatient follow-up waiting list by 50% at the end
of March 2020.
The outcome of this is to improve the timeliness of treatment, improve clinical outcomes and
improve the quality of life of patients.
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Incomplete Waiting List Size
The national expectation was that the active incomplete waiting list would be no higher than
the level reported at the end of March 2018. This has been a challenge for Mid Yorkshire
Hospitals NHS Trust as the system attempts to balance increased demand on its services and
reduce the outpatient follow-up backlog waiting list.
At the end of December 2019, the incomplete waiting list position for the CCG reported 2,500
pathways above the expected level of 23,874. Whilst this is not the desired position,
improvement has been made this year to reduce the number of patients waiting for treatment.
From April 2019 to December 2019, the incomplete waiting list has reduced by 670 pathways
and a further reduction is expected throughout Q4.
Recovery of the incomplete waiting list has been a priority programme of work for the Planned
Care Improvement Group (Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust and NHS North Kirklees and
NHS Wakefield CCGs), with performance and recovery actions being closely monitored.
These transformation programmes will continue into 2020/21 as RTT and waiting list
improvement are priority measures in the NHS Long Term Plan.
52 week waits
Waiting time pressures experienced at Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust continued into
2019/20, with a number of Wakefield patients waiting over 52 weeks for treatment at the Trust.
The target is that no patient should wait more than 52 weeks. For the CCG, fifty-seven over 52
week breaches were reported in the year to December 2019. This is an improved position
from the number reported during 2018/19.
Waiting time pressures and the breach of the 52 week standard has been recognised as a
West Yorkshire wide issue and is being addressed through the West Yorkshire and Harrogate
Integrated Care System (ICS). In partnership, Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, West
Yorkshire and Harrogate ICS, NHS England/ Improvement have been working closely to
support recovery of referral to treatment.
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust has worked closely with the CCG to manage patient care
and experience.
This work will continue into 2020/21 with the aim to achieve the national standard early in the
year.

Waiting times for diagnostic tests
6 week waits
At the start of 2019/20, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust faced increased levels of demand
on its diagnostic services for endoscopy and radiology. A focus on diagnostic testing for
cancer has impacted on non-cancer diagnostic testing capacity and waiting times.
To counteract the above pressures, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust and the CCG agreed a
local performance trajectory for the year. Alongside this, the Trust increased their internal
capacity and use of the MRI surveillance van.
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Whilst this has been a challenge, the CCG’s performance against the six week standard has
improved with the national standard of 99% being achieved from September 2019 onwards.

Cancer
Cancer prevention and treatment has been identified by the CCG as a strategic priority for
2019/20 and going forward into 2020/21.
Cancer services commissioned by the CCG are required to meet certain standards. These
include the requirement that patients wait no longer than two weeks to see a
Consultant from GP referral for suspected cancer, and will wait no longer than 31 days from
diagnosis to treatment, and no longer than 62 days from referral to first treatment.
The demand for cancer services continues to grow year on year as both the CCG and Mid
Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust face multiple challenges such as rising demand on services,
increasing incidences of cancer, people living longer, more complex health needs and
workforce shortages.
This year the Trust has also been preparing for the implementation of the new 28 day faster
diagnostic standards which are due to be implemented in 2020/21.
Mid Yorkshire Hospital’s NHS Trust, along with the CCG have committed to working as part of
the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Cancer Alliance to support the adoption of new pathways
and national initiatives to improve performance.
At the end of December 2019, the CCG achieved six of the nine cancer waiting time standards.
2 week waits
The CCG achieved both two week waiting time standards, with performance reporting at
98.7% and 99.3% at the end of December 2019 (YTD) against a target of 93%.
31 day waits
The CCG achieved two of the three 31 day waiting time standards at the end of December.
Performance against the 31 days wait from diagnosis to first definitive treatment for all cancers
reported 1% below the 96% national standard.
62 day waits
The CCG achieved one of the three 62 day waiting time standards. Performance against the
referral from an NHS screening service reported 3% above the 90% national standard whilst
the achievement of the 62 day wait from an urgent GP referral and 62 day wait from priority
upgrade of a patient has remained a challenge.
Performance this year has consistently reported below the national standard for these
measures.
Performance against the 62 day wait from an urgent GP referral reported at 70.6% which is
below the national standard of 85% and below the national average of 78%.
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The Joint Planned Care Improvement Group continues to monitor performance and the actions
in place to drive a delivery of the required standards.

Mixed sex accommodation breaches
Two mixed sex accommodation breaches were reported in June 2019 against a target that no
patient should be cared for in a mixed sex ward except for clinical reasons. The breaches
were related to Wakefield patients receiving care outside the Wakefield area. Remedial actions
were put in place to prevent these situations continuing.

Healthcare associated infections
During 2019/20, the following healthcare associated infections occurred:
MRSA
There have been a total of seven MRSA cases reported this year to date against a target of
zero.
Clostridium Difficile
At the end of December 2019 (YTD), a total of 66 Clostridium Difficile cases were reported
against the yearly target of 97.
E.coli
At the end of December 2019 (YTD), a total of 242 E.coli cases were reported. Whilst the
national target is yet to be confirmed, this is below the yearly target for 2018/19.

Accident and Emergency (A&E)
This year Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust has been a pilot site to the new urgent and
emergency care standards. Therefore, the Trust has not been measured against the national
standard that all patients who attend A&E should be seen and treated and discharged or
transferred to another service within four hours. The results of the pilot are expected to be
shared nationally when the pilot ends.
In terms of patient demand, the CCG has seen an 8% rise in A&E activity at Mid Yorkshire
Hospitals NHS Trust in the year to December 2019 compared to the previous year. Whilst
growth was planned in A&E activity for 2019/20, demand has exceeded the level expected.
Both the A&E Improvement Group and Joint Urgent Care Improvement Group continue to
monitor urgent care demand across the Wakefield system.
Despite the rise in attendances to A&E, the proportion of people who go on to be admitted to
inpatient care has not increased this year. Recent transformational change implemented by
Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust has positively impacted on the number of emergency
admissions being reported.
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Ambulance service performance
Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS) provides services across the whole of Yorkshire.
Performance at individual CCG level is not monitored.
YAS continues to participate in NHS England’s Ambulance Response Programme (ARP) pilot.
As part of Phase 3 of the pilot, 999 response calls are split into four main categories and
performance is monitored against mean response time and upper 90th percentile response
time.
Category 1:
2019/20 has seen an improvement in performance against the time critical, life threatening
event needing immediate intervention and/or resuscitation within 7 minutes of the call.
Latest performance against the category 1 mean response time reports slightly below the 7
minute standard at 7 minutes and 7 seconds. Performance against the 90th percentile
measure reports at 12 minutes and 21 seconds which is within the target response time of 15
minutes.
Category 2:
Performance against the category 2 potentially serious conditions that may require rapid
assessment, urgent intervention and/or transport within 18 minutes of the call reports above
target at 20 minutes and above the 90th percentile target of 40 minutes by 2 minutes and 41
seconds.
Category 3
Performance against the category 3 urgent problem that needs treatment to relieve suffering
and transport, or assessment and management at scene within 2 hours of the call has
consistently reported within the required standard throughout the year.
YAS continues to perform above the England mean and compares well against other regions.
Ambulance Handover
Throughout 2019/20 the percentage of ambulance handovers taking place within 15 minutes
showed signs of deterioration. At the end of January 2020, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust
reported 78% of handovers taking place within 15 minutes.
Whilst performance remains below the national requirement, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS
Trust continues to be one of the best performing Trusts in the Yorkshire and Humber region for
ambulance handover. This has enabled ambulances to get back on the road quicker to
respond to calls.
Crew Clearance
Performance against the 15 minute crew clearance standard has remained a challenge for
2019/20. Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust at the end of January reported performance of
48% against the 100% national standard.
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NHS Wakefield CCG, as collaborative contract lead for the 999 emergency response contract,
continues to work with YAS to ensure that the service commissioned is in line with the
requirements of the NHS Constitution.

Improving Quality
Quality is at the heart of NHS Wakefield CCG, is central to our vision and values and
fundamental to the way we conduct our business. Our aim is to firmly embed quality in our
activities and decision making, to ensure improved health outcomes for local people We do this
through robust quality assurance mechanisms. This includes:
•
•

reviewing the available data on clinical outcomes, from national audits and quality
measures and report findings through our governance processes
analysing quality and performance measures linked to our providers by evaluating a range
of information – including Patient Experience Surveys, Staff Survey results, Patient-Led
Assessments of the Care Environment (PLACE), Friends and Family Test (FFT) data, CQC
ratings for providers - to assess quality of care

We use this quality intelligence to inform our decision making: planning, service redesign and
procurement, and to monitor and assure the quality of services we buy.
If we recognise areas of quality concern we promptly react to it by working collaboratively with
providers.
We report on these quality standards, measures and outcomes to our Integrated Governance
Committee (IGC) and Governing Body in our quarterly Patient Safety and Outcomes; and
Experience of Care reports and monthly CQC Inspection Update report.
During 2019/20 we have specifically:
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

Implemented a quality improvement approach to our work, including the use of continuous
improvement methodologies and tools to improve planned care.
Rolled out the Productive General Practice (PGP) – 17 GP Practices have undertaken the
PGP programme - a short term support package for practices aiming to help them release
time for care.
Used data differently in our work and reporting to analyse variation in the system through
the use of Statistical Control Charts. This enables us to understand how a system is
performing over time and what the usual or exceptional variations to the process are.
Developed a Quality Framework to ensure that quality is considered in every element of the
CCG’s commissioning cycle and to assure the CCG that quality services are being
commissioned and that the framework is consistently applied to all providers, systems,
places and networks.
Gained ‘real time’ commissioner assurance broadening our programme of patient safety
walkabouts, quality visits to GP practices, independent providers, and care homes
Strengthened our systematic approach to assessing the impact on quality and patient
safety for any proposed commissioning decisions. To ensure consistency our assessment
tool has been aligned to the one used by the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health Care
Partnership.
Provided expertise to the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) as it develops its quality
assurance framework and reporting systems.
Worked closely with other CCGs across Yorkshire and Humber as ‘lead’ commissioner for
emergency ambulance services
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•

Implemented the Primary Care Quality Assurance Framework to ensure a robust process is
in place for identifying where General Practice requires additional surveillance and support
to maintain a high standard of care.

Safeguarding Assurance
During the year, NHS Wakefield CCG has ensured that the statutory safeguarding
requirements are fulfilled:
•
•
•
•

Working with the Statutory Safeguarding Children Partners within the new arrangements to
ensure that effective systems and processes for safeguarding children are in place
Working with the Safeguarding Adults Board to ensure that systems and processes for the
protection of adults at risk are in place
Ensuring that the statutory duties for a CCG under the Children Acts and the Care Act are
fulfilled
Ensuring that changes in legislation and guidance are reacted to, and relevant changes are
put in place

Medicines Safety
Medicines Safety is fundamental to the work of the Medicines Optimisation team and supports
our organisational values of working together for patients, being the best we can be and being
respectful and enabling trust.
We support GP practices to report medicine related incidents using a local reporting tool
(Datix®), which are subsequently forwarded to the National Reporting and Learning System to
enable the identification of themes and promote wider sharing and learning.
Over the last year we have continued to raise awareness of the local and national campaign
about the fire risks associated with the use of skin creams (sometimes referred to as
emollients) especially in people who smoke (including vapes/e-cigarettes) and/or exposed to
open flame such as gas fires/cookers.
We have been working in collaboration with West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service, local
healthcare providers and professionals to educate patients and the public of these key
messages:
•

•

•
•

The use of medications, such as ointments, creams, solutions applied to treat a skin
condition that are in contact with bandages, dressings, clothes, bedding and furniture
can become flammable when exposed to an ignition source, such as a naked flame,
cigarette or heater.
Ensure that clothes and bedding are washed/changed regularly (preferably daily) as
these products soak into the fabrics and can potentially be a fire hazard. Care should
also be taken to make sure that the product does not soak into chairs, seating or
other furniture.
Speak to a healthcare professional if you need further advice, review of your
treatment or any help and advice to stop smoking.
Treatment with creams and ointments can be important, but it is essential that you
are kept safe when you use these products.
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Self-Care
Following the publication of the 2018 NHS England guidance on conditions for which over the
counter items should not routinely be prescribed in Primary Care, the people of Wakefield have
continued to champion Self Care when treating minor conditions.
Wakefield is already one of the lowest prescribers of Self Care items in the country and both
patients and healthcare professionals have been committed to reducing the amounts of items
prescribed for minor conditions by self-caring in the first instance. People have been doing this
by speaking with their community pharmacy, accessing the NHS website and sensibly stocking
their medicines cabinets with home remedies.
A testimonial from a local patient said: “Having multiple health problems, practising Self
Care has been a life saver for me and reduced many medications.
“It also stops the frustrations of trying to get a GP appointment as I have learnt the
skills to manage my conditions.
“I know if something minor crops up I can speak to my surgery's Clinical Pharmacist or
call in at a local Pharmacy for advice” - Mr John Nye
The Wakefield Encouraging Care (WE Care) campaign is Wakefield’s local Self Care
campaign that supports the NHS England guidance.
WE Care has launched a number of initiatives including back to
school information for treating minor illness in children going
back to school. WE Care participated in the National Self Care
week in November 2019 which included the launch of Self Care
advice for minor conditions and educational sessions delivered
to CCG staff.
Plans are in place to introduce other seasonal initiatives during
2020/21 to further reduce the amount of treatments prescribed for minor conditions, improve
access to medicines and educate everyone on how best to Self-Care for life.
Clinical Pharmacy in General Practice (CPGP)
CPGP is part of the CCG’s strategy to respond to challenges in the local primary care
workforce. Each Primary Care Network employs a clinical pharmacist, a senior clinical
pharmacy technician and a clinical pharmacy technician. CPGP aims to embed the principle of
medicines optimisation at the heart of every local GP practice. Clinical Pharmacists are
undertaking face to face medication reviews with a focus on:
•
•
•

Patients prescribed 8 or more unique medicines
Patients aged 65 years or over that take medicines known as anticholinergics that may
cause unwanted side effects
Annual medication reviews
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Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspections
South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT)
In May and June 2019, The Trust welcomed the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to give their
independent view on the quality and safety of SWYPFT services.
Overall, the CQC rated the Trust as Good. The Effective, Responsive, Caring and Well-led
domains achieved Good and the Safe domain was rated as Requires Improvement.
The CQC found that 12 of the 14 core services are rated good. Over 87% of individual
domains have been rated as good or outstanding.
Some of the main points highlighted by the CQC include:
• The vast majority of services are rated as good or outstanding.
• Community based mental health services for working age adults have improved and is now
rated good.
• Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric care units have improved
• The Trust has improved and are now rated as Good for being Responsive
• 93% of services were rated as Caring and Responsive
• Staff were kind and caring towards service users, with positive relationships that
demonstrated they knew them well
• The values of the organisation were understood and respected by both leaders and those
working in core services. The Trust’s strategy, vision and values were all identified as being
patient-centred.
What has gone well
The following areas are rated as Good:
• Community mental health services for people with learning disabilities or autism
• Wards for people with learning disabilities or autism
• Community based mental health services for older people
• Long stay and rehabilitation mental health wards for working age adults
• Mental health crisis services and health based places of safety
• Forensic inpatient and secure wards
• Staff reported feeling respected, valued and supported. They demonstrated throughout the
inspection a patient-centred culture that treated people with care and respect
• Occupational health support was highlighted, particularly for the support that is available for
staff involved in serious incidents
• The commitment by the Trust to provide a holistic and preventative approach to patient care
was evidenced, including good access to physical healthcare
• The CQC found that all clinical premises were safe, clean, well equipped, well-furnished and
well maintained
Challenges faced by the Trust:
•

Specialist community mental health services for children and young people remains as
Requires Improvement
• Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric intensive care units have improved.
The Trust now needs to work to build on these improvements so that the service gets even
better.
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•

•
•

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) waiting lists are too high in some
areas, particularly for those with an autistic spectrum disorder, although the CQC
recognised that the Trust is providing low level support to people while they wait
Pharmacy and medicine management should be a priority for leaders
While risk assessments were robust and comprehensive in places, more focus was needed
on them in other areas

SWYPFT’s CQC action plan is discussed at the relevant Quality Boards.
Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS)
In May to July 2019, The Trust welcomed the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to give their
independent view on the quality and safety of YAS services.
The CQC undertook unannounced inspections of the Patient Transport Service (PTS) and
Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) and the Trust was subject to their first well-led review. PTS
had been rated as Requires Improvement at the previous inspection in 2016.
Ratings for the EOC service line remained as Good across the domains and overall. Ratings for
PTS improved to Good across the domains and overall (the rating was previously Requires
Improvement overall and for Safe, Responsive and Well-led).
The CQC highlighted 10 ‘should do’ actions to comply with minor breaches to improve service
quality, but no ‘must do’ actions or regulatory action were identified.
Some of the main points highlighted by the CQC include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

The service had enough staff to meet patient demand and keep them safe.
Staff provided good care and treatment and worked well together for the benefit of patients.
The service planned care to meet the needs of local people.
Staff had training in key skills, understood how to protect patients, including from abuse.
However, some staff in PTS did not have the confidence to report and escalate
safeguarding concerns.
Leaders ran services well using reliable information systems and supported staff to develop
their skills.
People’s needs were central to the delivery of the service. Staff treated patients with
compassion and kindness, respected their privacy and dignity, and took account of their
individual needs.
Escalation processes for deteriorating or seriously ill patients were in place in PTS
The service engaged with patients, staff, and equality groups, the public and local
organisations
The leadership, governance and culture were used to drive and improve the delivery of high
quality, sustainable patient care. The Board and leaders had the right skills and abilities.
There was clear leadership in place from a chief executive who was visible, approachable,
and well regarded throughout the organisation.
There was a lack of diversity at board level and the workforce was not representative of the
population.
Leaders modelled and encouraged compassionate and supportive relationships, so that
staff felt respected, valued and supported.
A systematic approach was taken to improve care for patients with mental health needs.
However, training in mental health crisis was limited in the EOC and appraisal rates did not
meet the trust target.
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Learning from complaints and concerns was not always shared effectively in the EOC.
There were processes in place to support staff and to promote wellbeing.
There was a successful pilot paramedic rotation scheme for specialist and advanced
paramedics
Proactive engagement with patients, staff, the public and local organisations with an annual
programme of community engagement events, notable practice in a strong Critical Friends
Network (CFN).
An innovative approach to collaborate with other ambulance services in a Northern
ambulance alliance.
There was a network of end of life care champions across the region.

General Practice
Following a CQC inspection in March 2020 at Ash Grove surgery (which was previously rated
requires improvement and improved its rating to good), all 37 practices in the district are rated
outstanding or good (3 Outstanding and 34 Good).

Healthcare First Partnership was inspected in January 2020 and the outcome is awaited.
During 2019/20, the following practices were inspected and
rated as follows:
Conexus Healthcare Limited delivers the extended hours' service under the operating name ‘GP
Care Wakefield’ to patients registered with NHS Wakefield CCG practices from two sites; Trinity
Medical Centre and Pontefract General Infirmary.
This inspection solely related to the service delivered at the Trinity Medical Centre. The GP Care
Wakefield service was inspected in May 2019 and achieved a good rating overall and across all
five domains.
During September 2019, Park View Surgery remained Good overall, across all domains.
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In November 2019, Eastmoor Health Centre improved their rating to Good overall and scored
Requires Improvement for the Responsive domain. All population groups were also rated as
Requires Improvement.
After a recent inspection in January 2020 Patience Lane Surgery achieved Good overall.

CQC Annual Regulatory Reviews (ARRs)
The CQC introduced Annual Regulatory Reviews (ARR) in April 2019. The ARR may trigger an
inspection if there are indications of substantial changes (positive or negative) in the quality of
care since the last inspection or review. Any inspections that were triggered are undertaken
within six months.
The ARR will not change a practice’s rating. This can only happen following an inspection.
By the end of January 2020 all GP Practices had completed their Annual Regulatory Review
(ARR) for 2019/20.
Overall, in 2019/20 four practices triggered a CQC inspection:
•

Healthcare First Partnership

•

Park View Surgery

•

Patience Lane Surgery

•

The Grange Medical Centre

Further information on individual CQC reports can be found on the CQC website here.

NHS Continuing Healthcare
The Continuing Healthcare (CHC) Service is responsible for ensuring the CCG fully complies
with the National Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS Funded Care.
The Continuing Healthcare Service consists of a team of approximately 28 staff which include
registered nurses (a mix of Registered General Nurses, Registered Mental Health Nurses,
Registered Nurses Learning Disabilities), and administration staff.
The total budget for Continuing Healthcare in Wakefield is approximately £30 to £33 million.
Continuing Healthcare is a highly specialised service and thus requires a specialist workforce.
The service employs specialists in Mental Capacity Act, Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and
Court Of Protection, mental health and learning disability.
Individuals who are identified as having a Primary Health Need are provided care and or
funding by the NHS. For individuals who are at the end of life the Continuing Healthcare Fast
Track criteria are used to ensure appropriate care is provided and funded.
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For individuals going into a Nursing Home, the potential need for Funded Nursing Care is
assessed which, if positive, will result in the NHS making available a weekly payment towards
the cost of providing nursing care for that patient.
Personal Health Budgets (PHB), allow patients deemed eligible for NHS Continuing healthcare
choice and control to commission their own services based on needs. Since April 2019, PHBs
are offered as a default for anyone deemed eligible who has a domiciliary care package and
since October 2019 for patients in receipt of section 117 aftercare.
Wakefield CCG was one of three successful CCGs in England in becoming an End of Life Fast
Track pilot site for PHBs in 2019 and - in December 2019 – became a pilot site for capturing
CHC patient experience. Personal Wheelchair budgets replaced the wheelchair voucher
scheme in October 2019.
The Continuing Healthcare team also manages specialist neurological rehabilitation, organic
section 117 clients, and the Winterbourne View Assuring Transformation Clients, Neuro
Rehabilitation and Mental Health Locked Rehabilitation ensuring that these cases are fully
compliant with the Mental Health Act and Mental Capacity Act and national policy direction.
Continuing Healthcare can be provided in any setting. The majority of care commissioned is in
a patient’s home or in a nursing home or through identified specialist placements and most
services are commissioned from the independent care sector.
Children’s’ continuing care now sits alongside the Adults Continuing Healthcare Service. Work
is ongoing to transform and develop the service and to improve the transition pathway for
patients deemed eligible for funding between the two services.
Continuing Healthcare is integral to the Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group’s priorities, of
providing high-quality, value based care, which is centred on every patient and the
organisational value of working together for patients.
The Continuing Healthcare Team is implementing service led improvement which will help
achieve the vision, principles and values we aspire to, supporting a focus which aligns to both
national and local policy (and priorities). This will be used to reinforce, articulate and guide the
team to strengthen and focus on what matters, aligned to the following strategic drivers
• Driving up quality
• Improving Integration and developing partners
• Optimising Workforce to deliver operational excellence
• Guaranteeing robust Governance
• Ensuring Value for money
NHS England has been leading a CHC National Strategic Improvement Programme (SIP)
since April 2017. The aim of the programme is to provide fair access to NHS Continuing
Healthcare in a way which ensures:
•

Better outcomes
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•
•

Better experience and
Better use of resources

This programme ended in March 2019 and a number of best practice interventions and
national opportunities for improvement have been identified to support CCGs to optimise the
end to end process and embed consistency.
These are being prioritised with stakeholders for development and implementation over the
next four years.

Engaging people and communities
As a CCG, we have a legal duty under the National Health Service Act 2006 to ‘make
arrangements’ to involve the public in the commissioning of services for NHS patients.
However, involving the public and our partners is not just about meeting our legal requirements
- the views of patients, carers and the public matter to NHS Wakefield CCG. This is central to
the CCG’s values and behaviours of being respectful and enabling trust, working together for
patients and being the best we can be.
We want to involve patients, carers and the public as well as doctors, nurses, other healthcare
professionals and managers in the decisions we make. By working with patients, carers,
patient organisations and the public, we are able to develop services which meet the health
needs of our community. More about the way in which the public can get involved in our work
can be found here.
This section provides a snapshot of the work done during the year and you can find more detail
in our separate engagement annual reports which can be found on our website.
Events
AGM
In July 2019 we held our annual general meeting in public at Hemsworth Community Centre in
Pontefract. We received presentations from Public Health about what makes us healthy and
an update from primary care colleagues about progress on primary care networks. Many CCG
colleagues showcased work they had undertaken throughout the year at stalls for the public
including: Connecting Care +, planned care, children and young people’s mental health and
wellbeing.
Engagement events for children and young people
NHS Wakefield CCG is a key partner in the Wakefield
Together Partnership. As part of this we were involved
in the Build our Futures summit in May 2019. Young
people co-designed this event and it proved a very
lively, well attended day with young people posing
questions of partners and giving their opinion on issues
that matter to them like health and wellbeing and feeling safe. A report of the health section of
this event that the CCG has responsibility for can be found here. Young people then attended
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the Children and Young People’s Partnership Board later in the year to hear progress on these
suggestions. Partners have utilised the energy and enthusiasm of the young people to start to
build more robust mechanisms of involvement with them and other young people in Wakefield
District.
Let’s talk about difficult emotions, October 2019
As a result of feedback from young people, the CCG held
the 'Let's talk about difficult emotions' workshop. This provided
young people with an opportunity to meet and engage with a
range of emotional and mental wellbeing services.
From this event we gained good qualitative feedback that will
help plan future events and to meet the needs of young people.
The young people who attended this event were positive about
the day and suggested they would recommend to friends and
attend again if the opportunity was there in the future.

Healthy Wakefield Fun Event, August 2019
The purpose of the event was to enable parents/carers of children and young people (up to 25
years of age) with SEND (Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities) living in Wakefield to
come along and find out about the range of health services available to them.
KIDS/Wakefield Parent Carer Forum (TEAM) have worked in partnership with NHS Wakefield
CCG over the past two years to improve access, waiting times and parent/carer support
connected to the ASD Assessment Pathway. Part of this work has been for KIDS/TEAM to
facilitate a number of parent/carer engagement events.
These engagement events have been extremely well attended and have given an opportunity
for parents’ voices to be heard and for professionals to develop a “You Said, We did” approach
to consultation and feedback.
Following the “You Said, We Did” parents told us that they wanted information and advice from
a wider range of health professionals including therapy, nursing, CAMHS and counselling
services. Therefore the idea for The Healthy Wakefield Fun Event was a direct response to this
feedback and 225 people booked onto it. .
The event was well supported by a range of professionals from The Local Authority, Wakefield
CCG and The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust alongside staff members from Wakefield
Trinity Rugby Club, KIDS and parent/carer volunteers from TEAM.
Mind Fest, November 2019
A series of events called ‘Mind Fest’ were held for young people in November 2019.
Maternity services deliberative event
An initial public engagement exercise on maternity services in Wakefield District was
undertaken from 1 February to 17 March 2019, the report of which can be found on our
website. This was followed by a clinical workshop held with local clinicians. In addition to this,
we worked closely with the Clinical Senate - an independent group of clinicians.
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•

80% of the respondents are current or former users of maternity services in Wakefield
District.

•

When asked about their most recent or their impending experiences of giving birth, it was
found that nearly half of the respondents (47%) had given birth (or were about to give
birth) in the consultant-led Labour Unit at Pinderfields Hospital. 25% had given birth, or
were planning to give birth, at Pontefract MLU and 14% at Pinderfields MLU.

•

Being able to give birth in a place that was easily accessible was the most frequently
mentioned factor to influence where respondents chose to give birth

•

If a birth centre/MLU was not an option at Pontefract Hospital, nearly half of respondents
(48%) said they would prefer to give birth at Pinderfields MLU instead.

•

The main priorities that respondents thought decision-makers should take into account
when planning maternity services for the future were:
‒ making sure there was sufficient high-quality staffing in hospitals and in the
community
‒ making sure all women had access to safe and high-quality care close to their home
‒ making sure women could give birth at a place of their choice

•

The main reasons, in order of frequency mentioned, that respondents felt that the MLU at
Pontefract was not chosen by more women / families were:
– there was no access to consultants
– that Pontefract MLU was not promoted enough as an option for consideration when
families are choosing places to give birth
– worries about being transferred to another hospital if there were complications at
birth

•

The main way for encouraging use of the MLU at Pontefract, as noted by respondents,
was to promote it widely and reassure expectant families that it was a safe and accessible
place for them to give birth.

•

Many respondents felt that the impact of not having an MLU at Pontefract would be to limit
their choices; cause them to have to travel further during a stressful time; and place a
burden on other birth centres/hospitals. While some of the respondents recognised that
there would not be an impact on them because they had other choices or were not
planning to have any more children, many felt it would be disappointing to remove access
to a valuable service for other families.

•

Alternatives suggested for decision-makers to consider that would help to make local
maternity services work better in the future included:
– providing more MLUs/birth centres across the area
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– making sure that services at Pontefract were retained
– providing consultant care alongside MLUs/birth centres at all of the hospitals across
Wakefield
– promoting and supporting more home births.

Feedback from staff engagement
•

Almost half (48%) of all respondents to the staff survey felt that there would be an impact
on services if Pontefract MLU was not available.

•

Staffing levels, matching capacity with demand and the appropriate skill-set, were the
common themes reported for areas where things could be improved in the current units
worked in by staff as well as in things to consider when planning maternity services for the
future.

•

Some felt that Pontefract should remain open, given the growing population in the area
and the reduction in choice and accessibility this would represent. Better advertising and
promotion, more consistency in availability to increase confidence amongst women and
staff and more accurate information about the unit were some of the suggestions to
increase its use.

Following on from this work, we held a public event to tell the story of where we started and
how we got to the current position, outlining how public views had influenced our thinking.
We explained the feedback we had received from independent clinicians and discussed the
national direction as well as local challenges relating to, quality/safety, choice, staffing and the
need to consider each of these when thinking of the best way forward.
The event focused on birth choices and the aspect of the service that we started to look at
back in October 2018. Findings of the event were made publicly available in a summary report.
Since this time, the local maternity system experienced more challenges and it was necessary
to adapt our way forward. The decision on the birthing aspect at Pontefract Hospital was put on
hold as we continue to work with the hospital trust to plan for quality maternity services for our
families. This work will take more time and take into account the wider picture to make sure
that our solution is effective and sustainable.
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Engagement and equality projects
Communications, Involvement and Equality Strategy
We have reviewed our Communications, Involvement and Equality Strategy to emphasise how
these teams work hand in hand to ensure inclusive communication and engagement, therefore
ensuring better services for the population of Wakefield. . As a result of this review we have
improved the accessibility of our website and now have a British Sign Language notice and
translation of the engagement and equality sections
Patient Participation Group (PPG) Network
GP practices are encouraged to have Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) to enable people to
get involved with their own GP practice. This supports our value of being the best we can be.
The Patient Participation Group Network supports local PPGs. It provides opportunities for
patient representatives of individual GP practices to work with the CCG, as well as sharing
areas of good practice among individual PPGs.
PPG Network members share information and updates on initiatives to improve patient
experience. Engagement at practice level is enabled through this mechanism and means the
views of local people are fed through to the CCG.
A number of GP practice PPGs have now set up newsletters to share information with patients.
Many individual practice level groups have undertaken surveys on patients’ experiences within
practices and the results of these have influenced their practice’s individual work plans for the
year. This is an example of how GP service improvements are being driven by the patients in
partnership with GPs. The PPG Network also provides an opportunity for individual members
to raise concerns and have these addressed. These have included concerns that are specific
to one practice as well as issues that affect the whole district, such as plans for cocommissioning and the impact this may have on the work of individual practices.
Patient Involvement & Patient Experience Committee (PIPEC)
The PIPEC meets four times a year. Members are drawn from across Wakefield to represent
patient views. Their role is to inform commissioning decisions and identify possible
improvements. PIPEC provides a single recognised structure to oversee the delivery of patient
involvement and patient experience activity and ensure real changes that benefit patients are
delivered.
It is a formal subcommittee of our governing body. PIPEC members provide opinions and
comment on documents and policies as well as giving general feedback on local services,
which has been used to influence commissioning plans. The Committee is chaired by the
CCG’s Lay Member with responsibility for Patient and Public Involvement. Minutes of the
Committee are submitted to the CCG’s Integrated Governance Committee and this completes
the reporting mechanism between the Governing Body of the CCG and the public
representatives. The CCG intends to continue to grow and strengthen this Committee.
Throughout the year the group met quarterly.
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Lay representation
As part of our role as commissioners, we want to make sure that we involve members of the
public in the different stages of planning, developing and delivering local services. As such, we
have been recruiting lay representatives to work with the CCG at all stages of commissioning.
One example of this in 2019 is the input they gave to the adult hearing loss service being
reprocured. Those taking part were supported during the process.
During the year, we have also worked with our public assurance group, PIPEC, and our
Equality Health Panel to strengthen the reporting and assurance for engagement and equality
not only at the CCG level but also across Wakefield as a place. For this, we have and will
continue to work with Healthwatch Wakefield.
National assessment
NHS England once again undertook its statutory annual assessment of CCG performance with
regard to patient and public involvement. This assessment related to the ten key actions listed
within the latest guidance, and involved a desktop review of each CCG based on corporate
annual reports, CCG websites and documents and information published on CCG websites.
We were proud that our organisation was given a green RAG rating.

Consultation and engagement exercises
Musculoskeletal (MSK) and Physiotherapy
Engagement was carried out to support planned changes to the way services are
commissioned and sought views on:
• Orthopedics, including procedures like joint replacement or carpal tunnel surgery
• Physiotherapy, including advice, exercises and hands-on therapy to heal, prevent injury
and improve conditions. It also included advanced physiotherapists who do
assessments and treatment, like joint injections and ultrasound
• Pain management relating to MSK condition
As part of the service review, we looked at what information we already had, including previous
engagement, patient experience information, public health data and feedback from our current
providers.
The key themes arising from engagement were:
• Responses were, in the majority of cases, from current service users
• Overall, satisfaction when seeing a GP was 5 out of 5 for:
o The information received about the condition
o How well the GP explained the help available for the condition
o How involved patients felt in decisions about their care
o How much information they were given about what would happen next in their
care
o The information and advice given on looking after themselves whilst waiting for
an MSK or Physiotherapy appointment
• For those who gave comments on the areas they were not satisfied with when seeing a
GP, the majority of comments related to information and mainly what would happen next
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•

•

•

•
•

•

in their treatment, and how to look after themselves whilst waiting for appointment with
MSK/physio service. Additional themes were not feeling listened to or involved in their
care and care only focusing on one aspect when patient needed help with more than
‘one part of the body’.
Overall, satisfaction with the MSK/Physiotherapy services were again 5 out of 5 in
respect of:
o How far patients had to travel to get to the service
o How easy it was to get there
o How easy it was to get into the building
o How long they had to wait for their first appointment
o How easy it was to make their appointment
o How convenient the times of the available appointments were
o The skill and care of the clinician they saw
o How happy those who used a telephone appointment were
o The information that they were given about the condition
o How involved they felt in decisions about their treatment
Where comments were given about low satisfaction with these aspects, the comments
were mainly linked to appointments (8), with half being about the long wait before being
seen for the first time. Another theme from these (4) was about access to the services
when not being able to use public transport and physical access to a building.
When asked to rate how involved patients felt in their care, just over half of those who
responded said that “they feel confident and skilled in managing the general ups and
downs of their health and know when to seek help”. This was followed by almost 30%
stating that they “know what they need to do to manage their health and wellbeing
generally”.
Looking at how much has the quality of patients’ lives improved since going through the
service, the majority noted 3 out of 5 or above. Just over 2% felt that their quality of life
didn’t improve at all.
Going through the service has had varied benefits for patients, with the most noted
being helping them to understand their condition and teaching them what they can do to
improve their condition. Just under 4% of those who responded to this question noted
no benefits.
Feedback from the discussion reflected the themes within the survey in terms of where
there was good level of communication, this was linked to better patient experience.
This included explanation of the condition, what to do and what to expect in treatment
and updates on appointments. The need to understand the patient as a whole person
was noted as was the appreciation of patients generally wanting information. This is
especially important for patients with mental health conditions.

Feedback from public engagement
Gastroenterology
Before buying Gastroenterology services on behalf of
patients, we wanted to hear from them about their
experience of using the services. The project looked at
urgent services only and did not include cancer
urgent care and care when staying in a hospital.

our
nonservices,

We asked those who have seen a consultant as an outpatient in a hospital or other setting
and/or who have had a diagnostic test like an endoscopy or colonoscopy to tell us about their
experience. The key themes that we have taken from the engagement to inform the design of
the services were:
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1. When looking at what makes a patient’s experience positive, the majority of comments
related to staff. This was linked to who made the experience positive as well as the
attitude they demonstrated.
2. Appointments played an important role in how patients felt about their experience, with
short waiting times, flexibility and timing and the smooth transition from referral to
treatment all contributing.
3. Level of service and location of service was also important in contributing to positive
experience.
4. Patients appreciated receiving explanations and information of the process, procedure
and condition.
5. Receiving good care also contributed to what patients felt worked well.
6. The areas for improvement included appointments, communication, location and
attitude of staff as the key aspects where patients felt improvement could have been
made.
7. In terms of the areas patients felt could have been improved, this included
communication, location and waiting times as key aspects.
Primary care
As the primary care networks (PCNs) are developing, we have been supporting them with their
involvement plans. This has involved aspects of training, including commissioning The
Consultation Institute to provide training at a workshop in January 2020 and training sessions
to each network. We have also continued to monitor the development and implementation of
our primary care commissioning strategy, as well as the development of PCNs through our
public assurance committee, PIPEC. They have commented and given suggestions on the way
forward in embedding public involvement in the emerging primary care networks.
Specific engagement has also taken place in support of specific projects, such as:
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)
The prevalence of asthma varies across the district, with those in the poorer sections of society
more likely to have the condition than those in the affluent areas. However the inequality gap is
not as great as in other conditions. Women are also more likely to have asthma than men.
The prevalence of COPD varies much more than asthma, with a strong correlation to areas of
deprivation. The Five Towns Primary Care Network has a significantly higher amount of
smokers and pre-diabetics than the district average. They also have higher level of people
diagnosed with COPD, Chronic Kidney Disease, Dementia, and Asthma. They have the
highest levels of emergency admission for COPD and ‘any conditions’ against all the other
PCNs. Wakefield as a place has some significant challenges as asthma prevalence in
Wakefield (6.7%) is significantly higher than the national average (5.9%).
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This PCN reviewed what is in place at the moment to manage and support patients with COPD
but wanted to better understand people’s lived experience of the condition including what
diagnosis, support, potential challenges they experience to inform the development of a
respiratory pilot project. The pilot aims to develop a tailored personalised care intervention and
the experience of those using local services at the moment will inform this work. This would
also support the priorities of the Network in relation to supporting population health
management.
To find out what patients’ experience and what their thoughts on care interventions are, we
organised a discussion group. This was held in February 2020 at King’s Medical Centre,
Normanton. Registered patients identified as having COPD from all of the PCN’s practices
were invited to this and we captured what their thoughts were.
Mental health services for 16 to 25 year olds
Our young person offer focuses on an early intervention offer for our most vulnerable
population (who may have suffered childhood trauma, may be on the Autistic spectrum or have
other neuro diversity such as ADHD, may have been excluded from school and/or out of work,
have substance misuse problems, housing issues or be leaving looked after children
provision). We want to shift away from services being too “diagnosis” and bio medical model
focused to being needs based and led with a bio psycho social model underpinning the culture
of the service. We know that primary care is often the first port of call for people with concerns
about their mental health and so have linked with our emerging PCNs to make sure that these
services will interface effectively with them particularly to ensure that we offer integrated
support, which recognises the connection between poor mental and poor physical health and
the how wider social determinants of health impact upon them.
As part of this work, we are engaging with local groups and organisations to jointly prepare an
engagement plan underpinning this work, which will inform what our young people need in
terms of support and care. This is being done across the Wakefield district, with PCNs on the
East and West of the district co-operating to deliver an integrated service.
GP practice changes
During the year, we have also continued to support practices where a proposal was made by
them to introduce changes. This included the proposal to merge two practices in the Ossett
Health Village. Engagement for this has commenced and will be reflected in the overall
information submitted to the CCG for consideration.
Interpreting services
We have worked with Leeds CCG to review the contract to provide British Sign Language
interpreting services (BSL) to GP practices in Leeds and Wakefield. In addition to this, the
review included telephone language interpretation services available in GP practices across
the two areas.
To support this work, engagement took into account existing information we have about the
needs of D/deaf, hard of hearing and D/deafblind people in Wakefield and Leeds, and checked
our understanding of feedback so far with them to help us procure a new service in 2020. We
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also worked with local organisations and groups to seek their views on using the telephone
interpreting services currently available to GP practices and patients in the two areas.
This engagement helped us to make sure that the new service meets the needs and
preferences of patients, carers and staff.
Migrant Access Programme
The Migrant Access Programme was
developed by Wakefield Council working
together with other organisations including
NHS Wakefield CCG to help communities
access and engage with services.
Champions were recruited from the
community and trained to enable them to
help other people in their communities to
access and engage with services.
New migrants need guidance to understand what’s available to them in Wakefield and how to
access services. This programme helped them to do that.
In March 2020 the Mayor of Wakefield presented certificates to the 18 volunteers who
completed the 12-week Migrant Access Programme (MAP) training and have become Migrant
Community Networkers.
Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD)
NHS Wakefield CCG is working with partner agencies to engage with young people with ASD
and their families. A series of ASD engagement events have taken place over the past year.
These events have included Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS),
Education and Inclusion Service, representatives from Wakefield Council, ASD pathway leads
from The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust and local parent carer forum, KIDS, as well as
other parent support groups such as KIDZAWARE.
Feedback from families who attended the events was published afterwards. A summary of the
qualitative feedback from the November 2019, January 2019 and March 2019 events has also
been produced. This feedback was shared with partners and how that has impacted in
changes to how ASD services are delivered locally. This can be found in our documents: 'You
Said: We Did' (2019 onwards) and ( 'You Said: We Did' (2018 - 2019).
One of the main requests from parents, which came out of the engagement events, was that
they would like more information about support for families of children with autism in Wakefield.
Partners and parents therefore have worked together to produce a leaflet which details
information about local support services.
Healthwatch Wakefield, on behalf of the CCG and Pinderfields Hospital, has also researched
the current provision of ASD services for children in Wakefield District, including waiting times
and pathways and the transition to adult services. They have engaged with children and young
people and their parents and carers to find out their experiences of ASD services, including:
•Waiting times
•Support while waiting
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•Assessment
•Support after assessment
Three reports are available.
Something else that we heard during our engagement was that they needed more activities for
young people with ASD and their siblings with parents having the opportunity to talk and find
support from each other. The "Engage" programme, commissioned by NHS Wakefield CCG,
focuses on providing a tailored, fully accessible sports and physical activity experience for
participants, whilst also offering bitesize wellbeing activity for their parents and carers.

Reducing Health Inequality
People in some areas of Wakefield live longer, healthier lives than others. In line with our
values of working together for patients and being the best we can be, reducing health
inequality is at the heart of what the CCG aims to do to improve patient outcomes in the
district.
This section describes how we have discharged our duty under Section 14T of the National
Health Service Act 2006 to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities.
The CCG works closely with the Public Health team to plan and deliver improvements to health
inequalities. Over the last year Public Health colleagues have continued to work collaboratively
with the CCG, bringing added value to our work and bringing them close to decisions about
spending on health. In particular around access to services and outcomes achieved via
pathway reviews.
During 2019/2020 key areas of work undertaken to support a reduction in health inequalities
have been delivered through:
• The Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Plan and Better Care Fund
• Early Years Support
• The Connecting Care Hubs
We have continued to work together on programmes of work which have not just sought to
tackle health inequalities in Wakefield but also across West Yorkshire through our joint
leadership.
For example, our continued work as part of the Housing, Health and Social Care Partnership
group is designed to counter the inequalities experienced as a result of the detrimental impact
poor housing can have on physical and mental health. This has now spread across West
Yorkshire and Harrogate as best practice work.
We continue to work together on the National Diabetes Prevention Programme (NDPP) and
have recently been rated as ‘outstanding’ by NHS England for diabetes as a clinical priority in
part as a consequence of this work.
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As part of the strengthening of the Health and Wellbeing Board arrangements, oversight of the
Board is now managed collectively by the CCG and the Director of Public Health which has
brought about a more focused emphasis on health inequalities.
The Health and Wellbeing Board dedicates two meetings per year to solely discuss how they
can better tackle health inequalities in our district.

Engagement with our staff
Staff Forum
The forum was established in May 2014 and acts as a bridge between staff and senior
management as well as a sounding board for ideas and developments. It is an integral part of
our culture and values to encourage two-way communication and employee involvement to
provide an interactive opportunity for staff engagement in relation to development and
improvement of within NHS Wakefield CCG. The purpose of the staff forum is to:
• To provide a mechanism to influence staff health and wellbeing issues;
• To oversee the staff survey, consider the issues arising from the findings and recommend
action to the Executive Team (ET);
• To improve the health, wellbeing and working lives of all staff and ensure that Wakefield CCG
meets its staff NHS Constitution commitments. Any member of staff from the CCG or who work
at White Rose House can join the forum or attend a meeting. Meetings are every month and
issues discussed over the past year include:
• Attendance at Executive Team Meetings to discuss our plans;
• Contributing to developing the action plan for the staff survey;
Two sub-groups have been developed over the past year: a working Carers group and an
environmental group.
Staff Awards
The CCG held its second staff celebration event in June 2019 which was an opportunity to
thank our staff for all their hard work. All staff were invited to attend the event and we received
a total of more than 100 nominations for a variety of individual and team awards. Once again
the event was greatly received and staff feedback was very positive.

Statement of the Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Chief Officer - Financial
summary
Our ongoing relationships with key providers including Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust,
South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation NHS Trust, Yorkshire Ambulance Service,
primary care providers and non-NHS providers are critical to our ability to deliver our financial
plans and live within our means. This combined with our continued engagement, influence and
leadership in the West Yorkshire & Harrogate Integrated Care System and the wider Yorkshire
and Humber footprint system support our strategic objectives, including financial sustainability.
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We have also continued to develop the way in which we work in partnership with Wakefield
Metropolitan District Council to ensure that we manages resources across organisational
boundaries for the benefits of our population.
There are of course, a great number of challenges too and none other than the continued
focus on the financial pressures of the NHS, of which our CCG is not immune. Efficiency
savings, as mandated by NHS England have been achieved in a planned and careful way, so
as not to compromise quality or level of service.
It has taken a significant amount of planning and continued focus to deliver the financial
position reported in these accounts and to continue to improve the health of our population and
patients. The Governing Body, its clinicians, lay members, specialists and executives, along
with the organisation as a whole, have responded to those difficult financial challenges.
The CCG’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the CCG annual
reporting guidance: 2019/20 issued by NHS England. The accounting policies contained in
that guidance follow international financial reporting standards to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to CCGs, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the
financial reporting advisory board. The full details of the accounting policies adopted by the
CCG can be obtained from our audited accounts.
The accounts and summary financial statements shown within the Annual Report reflect the
financial consequences of the CCG’s activities and achievement of objectives for the twelve
month period ending 31 March 2020.
The CCG’s financial performance against key duties is as follows:
Performance Target
Expenditure not to exceed income
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the

Status
Achieved
Achieved

Revenue resources does not exceed the amount specified
Revenue administration resource does not exceed the amount
specified

Achieved
Achieved

The CCG was set a financial target by NHS England/Improvement to deliver a surplus of
£2.0m; this reflects the second year of a four year Financial Recovery Plan. This requirement
relates to the financial position of the CCG in 2017/18 and 2018/19 when the agreed financial
plans were not delivered and the CCG incurred unplanned financial deficits.
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Expenditure Value 19/20

Hospital 54%
Ambulance 3%
Continuing Health Care 4%
Co-Commissioning 9%
Community 8%
Mental Health and Learning
Disability 9%
Prescribing 10%

Demand for healthcare continues to grow, as do prices and inflation. The value of the
commissioning pound is shrinking and it is only by working together with all partners in our
health and social care system can we deliver our overall financial requirements. Our annual
report rightly records our achievements in the past year as well as our arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness. Our continued focus on ensuring best value
across the board will sharpen even further in future years.
The annual governance statement describes how the CCG risk management and assurance
processes reflect our journey towards securing excellence in governance with no significant
gaps in controls or assurances. A full copy of the annual governance statement is publicly
available within the full annual accounts.
During 2019/20 the CCG has continued to operate a risk management system including a
Governing Body assurance framework and corporate risk register. Financial stability,
stewardship and probity are integral to the work of the Governing Body.
The CCG fulfils the NHS England criteria for financial leadership and an internal audit carried
out during 2019/20 gave an opinion of high assurance on financial controls. There is strong
clinical representation on the Finance Committee. The Clinical Cabinet, which is a Board
committee, provides robust assessment of the quality and performance impact of financial
plans. The CCG is performing ahead of its financial plan and the Governing Body have been
involved in developing the plan and understand the impact for future years on the in-year
position.
Staff are also regularly briefed on the financial position and managers and staff understand the
controls in place to maintain a strong financial position, including budget management controls,
savings plans and vacancy control.
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Sustainable development
The vision from the Sustainable Development Strategy for the Health and Social Care System
2014 – 2020 states that: ‘A sustainable health and care system works within the available
environmental and social resources protecting and improving health now and for future
generations. This means to reduce carbon emissions, minimise waste and pollution, make the
best use of scarce resources, build resilience to a changing climate and nurture community
strengths and
assets.’
The landlord of our headquarters building NHS Property Services has been commissioned to
carry out an energy survey to identify what electrical systems are used in the building and
where our usage peaks and troughs are. This is for a “spend to save” initiative and will be paid
for out of capital money. This work will include the refurbishment of the building’s windows,
replacing blown glass window panes and window seals. This will help reduce the loss of heat
during the winter months and increase the performance of the air conditioning system in the
summer months.
The lighting system throughout the building will be replaced with LED lighting. The new LED
lighting will reduce our energy consumption as they are up to 90% more efficient than
traditional lighting systems. LED bulbs also last longer than traditional bulbs, contain no toxic
compounds and are 100% recyclable.
Heating in the building is managed through a trend heating management system and it is likely
NHS Property services will install a similar building management system to increase energy
efficiency.
The CCG has have formed a sustainability group to feed into our Staff Forum, whose aim is to
encourage staff to adopt more sustainable practices and signposting staff to community
sustainable/recycling locations. We are extending our recycling initiative throughout the
organisation to make it easier for staff to access recycling facilities as an extension to ink
cartridge and battery recycling facilities that are currently in use. This will include a clothing
recycling facility, whereby clothing will then be given to local charities and other plastic
products that are currently not recycled through the Local Authority’s scheme. These items will
be sent to a specialist recycling company called TerraCycle who offer a free service for more
difficult items to recycle.
During 2019/20 the CCG signed a pledge to the NHS reduction campaign to reduce our single
use plastic throughout the organisation. We audited all single use plastic used to establish
what could be removed or substituted with sustainable alternatives, such as replacing plastic
single serve portions of coffee and milk with a sustainable alternative. Staff forum members
have been tasked with identifying other single use plastics in the workplace.
The CCG has been gradually replacing desk top computers with laptops. This will support an
increase in home working to reduce carbon emissions due to staff commuting to work. Desktop
computers also use an average of 60 to 200 watts of electricity in order to run normally whilst
laptops use an average of 20 to 50 watts. This amount can be further reduced by putting
laptops in power save mode, where energy is used more efficiently.
Microsoft Teams has been rolled out to all staff, which supports an increase in home working
and we are working to install facilities such as fixed microphones and screens to enable it to be
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used in meeting rooms to reduce the need to travel for meetings. The ability to review reports
on screen will also reduce paper usage.
We communicate our sustainability commitment via the intranet and have sustainability
campaigns within the building at least once a year. These are reinforced with blogs containing
interesting facts, tips and advice

Joanne Webster
Accountable Officer
17 June 2020
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
This section has three components:
Corporate Governance Report including:
• Members Report;
• Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities
• Governance Statement
Remunerations and Staff Report
• Remuneration and;
• Staff Report;
Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report.

Joanne Webster
Accountable Officer
17 June 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
Members Report
NHS Wakefield CCG is a clinically led member organisation. This means that GPs
make decisions about local health services by using their local knowledge to improve
services and focus resources where there is greatest need. The CCG is made up of
37 GP practices. The membership is represented by a Governing Body of local GPs,
a nurse representative, a secondary care doctor and lay members, supported by our
executive team.
In January 2019 the NHS long-term plan was published setting out key ambitions for
services over the next 10 years. It outlines how CCGs are to actively encourage
every GP Practice to be part of a local Primary Care Home (network). These will be
based on GP registered lists, typically serving communities of around 30,000 to
50,000 - small enough to provide the personal care valued by patients but large
enough to enable collaboration between practices and others health and social care
partners.
Our 37 GP practices are currently organised into seven Primary Care Networks (see
table below). These networks have supported a more proactive, personalised,
coordinated and integrated approach to health and social care. The main aim of the
networks was to provide a route through which Wakefield CCG can commission
services, ensuring that they more responsive to local need.
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The Governing Body is chaired by Dr Adam Sheppard, a GP at Lupset Surgery;
Joanne Webster is the Accountable Officer. Our Governing Body members have
specific areas of responsibility and sit on various committees of the Governing Body.
The Members exercise their constitutional rights in respect of the CCG through the
annual membership meetings at which each Member practice has a representative.
Our Governing Body meets in public every other month, and we encourage our
community to join us to find out about the work we’re doing. Details of public
governing body meetings and meeting papers are published on the CCG’s website.
Member profiles
During 2019/20, the following individuals served on our Governing Body and
remained in post throughout the year (except where indicated – no date indicates
that the Member was in post the full financial year) and up to the signing of this
annual report and accounts:
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Andrew Balchin

Andrew Balchin started his local government career in 1988 and has undertaken a
variety of roles including policy development, strategic housing and environmental
services. Andrew is responsible for adult social care, commissioning, public health,
communities and partnership working. Andrew also sits on Wakefield’s Health and
Wellbeing Board.
Suzannah Cookson

Suzannah has been in post as Executive Chief Nurse since September 2018 and
has over 35 years’ clinical experience in the NHS, working across acute, community
and primary care settings. She has extensive and varied experience in nursing and
midwifery leadership roles, delivering quality, safe and effective care in provision and
in a commissioning organisation.
Suzannah is motivated by working with people and values relationships to achieve
good outcomes for patients and public. She gives her best leading change through
people, showing compassion and kindness and harnessing a multi-agency, multidisciplinary approach to system change, to transform and improve the health and
wellbeing of people in our local communities.
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Dr Phillip Earnshaw (retired part year June 2019)
Dr Earnshaw has worked in Wakefield for more than 30 years. He is Senior Partner
at Health Care First which runs Ferrybridge Medical Centre, Elizabeth Court, Park
View and Queen Street Surgery. He has been involved with the CCG from its
inception and previously worked for Eastern Wakefield and Wakefield District
Primary Care Trusts, latterly as a board member. He is currently Vice Chair of
Wakefield Health & Well Being Board and is also a board member at WDH, our main
local social housing provider.
Dr Deborah Hallott

Dr Hallott has worked as a GP for 26 years in Wakefield, the last 23 of those as a
partner at New Southgate Surgery. In addition to general practice, she has a specific
interest in women's health and is an honorary lecturer with Leeds University Medical
School, currently offering general practice placements for third year medical
students.
Diane Hampshire

Diane Hampshire qualified as a nurse at Dewsbury Hospital in 1981 and has worked
in general nursing, midwifery and health visiting. She has a Masters’ Degree in Child
Welfare and Law and has a keen interest in safeguarding children and adults and
quality of care. Diane was Director of Nursing and Quality for NHS Leeds West
Clinical Commissioning Group from 2012 until she retired in September 2015. Since
then she has worked as an independent nurse on two clinical commissioning groups
and undertaken a number of projects as an independent safeguarding consultant.
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Stephen Hardy

Stephen Hardy has been a journalist and public relations practitioner for almost 40
years, latterly as Media and Public Relations Manager and Consultation/ Public
Engagement Co-ordinator for West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority. He has
been closely involved with the NHS locally since the mid-1970s, being a former ViceChair of Wakefield West PCT and a complaints conciliator for Kirklees and
Wakefield. He is a member of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Joint Committee of
CCGs. He takes a particular interest in patient/carer issues, audit and governance.
Dr Clive Harries

Dr Harries joined Chapelthorpe Medical Centre, Wakefield in 1999. He has been a
GP trainer, sits as a GP member on the CCG’s Governing Body and is the CCG’s
clinical lead for planned care. He is also the CCG’s Caldicott Guardian. He is
particularly interested in commissioning high quality, accessible, integrated and
sustainable health care that has been co-produced across primary and secondary
care in a clinical led and patient centred way.
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Anna Hartley

Having qualified as a Public Health Consultant in 2013, Anna has a specific interest
in health and social care integration and evaluation. As well as her public health
duties, she has also taken a lead role for adult social care commissioning since
November 2016. Previously Anna has worked at the West Yorkshire Police,
Department of Health, NHS Leeds and in the voluntary sector. Anna is really
interested in what ‘gives people a good life’ and what role the statutory sector can
play in making that happen. She is motivated by looking at how organisations can
work differently in order to deliver better outcomes for the people they serve.
Richard Hindley

Richard Hindley has a background in the NHS, social care and the third sector. He
currently serves in a senior leadership capacity as Academic Director at Cliff
College, a specialist higher education provider. He provides consultancy to third
sector organisations and is chair of an international charity. He was previously chief
executive of South Yorkshire Funding Advice Bureau, and has been on the boards of
several third sector organisations. He chairs the Primary Care Commissioning
Committee, the Quality, Performance and Governance Committee, and the Finance
Committee and he is a member of the Audit Committee.
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Dr Pravin Jayakumar

Dr Jayakumar has been a GP in Wakefield since 2008 having undergone and
completed his training in the area. He is one of the senior GPs at Trinity Medical
Centre, a Clinical Co-Director of one of the Primary Care Networks and a Medical
Student Tutor for the University of Leeds. He leads on Integration and Primary Care
within the CCG and has a genuine passion for improving this for the population of
Wakefield, as well as improving the working lives of those he represents.
Pat Keane

Pat Keane has worked in the NHS for over 40 years and is a qualified general and
mental health nurse. He has worked in a range of managerial and leadership roles
in the acute, community and mental health sectors and as a cancer network
director. He has held board level posts in mental health and primary care trusts and
as a deputy chief executive and joined the CCG on a fixed term basis in April 2015
prior to commencing his current role of Chief Operating Officer across NHS North
Kirklees and NHS Wakefield CCGs in March 2016. Pat has had several portfolio
changes since then and is currently Programme Director – Strategic Projects for
Wakefield CCG and up until the end of March 2020 is also Senior Programme
Director, Urgent and Emergency Care, within the West Yorkshire and Harrogate ICS.
Pat lives in Teesside and is married with 2 teenage daughters, his other passion
being running.
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Mr Hany Lotfallah

Hany Lotfallah became a Governing Body member in October 2012. He has worked
as a consultant obstetrician & gynaecologist at Rotherham Foundation Trust since
2004. He is the lead for minimal access surgery in gynaecology at Rotherham. The
unit is an accredited centre by the British Society of Gynaecology Endoscopy for
treatment of severe endometriosis patients. He is also the clinical lead for
gynaecological cancer MDT.
In his role at Rotherham Foundation Trust Hany has held various medical
management positions, including Foundation Programme Director (Oct 2006-Sept
2009), Chairman of Hospital Medical Committee (Jan 2009-Feb 2012), and Trust
Director of Clinical Effectiveness (Oct 2009-Sept 2012) and Clinical Director of
Gynaecology and Sexual Health’ at Rotherham Foundation Trust (June 2014 –
November 2019).
Dr Adam Sheppard

Dr Adam Sheppard was appointed as Chair and Clinical Leader of NHS Wakefield
CCG in June 2019, having previously served as Assistant Clinical Leader since the
CCG was established in 2013. The Chair and Clinical Leader is chosen through a
rigorous selection process from the serving elected members of the Governing Body.
His role is to lead the Governing Body and ensure effective leadership and
engagement with the GP membership. Dr Sheppard has been a GP at Lupset
Health Centre for 28 years. He is the clinical lead for urgent care transformation for
West Yorkshire Health and Care Partnership and deputy chair of the Wakefield
Health and Wellbeing Board.
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Richard Watkinson

Richard Watkinson is a qualified accountant who has worked in a wide range of
organisations during his career from large Plcs to owner managed SMEs, public
sector and local charities. Since 2011 he has worked as a Senior Lecturer at
Sheffield Hallam University teaching within the Business School undergraduate, post
graduate and professional level.
Jonathan Webb

Jonathan Webb is a qualified accountant with nearly 30 years NHS experience and
has been Chief Finance Officer at NHS Wakefield CCG since May 2018. He also
took on the role of Deputy Chief Officer from October 2019. He has held a number
of senior finance roles in acute hospitals, community services, mental health &
learning disabilities as well as more recently in NHS England working at a national
and regional level. He is also the lead Director of Finance for the West Yorkshire &
Harrogate Integrated Care System.
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Jo Webster

Jo Webster joined Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) as Chief Officer
in 2012. Before then she worked at Doncaster Central PCT leading major service
reconfigurations and transformational change programmes. Other leadership roles
include working at Yorkshire and the Humber Strategic Health Authority, leading
Cancer Reform and supporting World Class Commissioning.
Jo is accountable for the CCG’s planning and commissioning of health services for
Wakefield. In addition to this, in January 2018, Jo also became Strategic Lead for
Health and Care Transformation and Integration for Wakefield Council. This gives
her overall responsibility for integrating health and care commissioning for the whole
of the district.
As CEO lead for West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership
commissioners (also known as an STP); Jo is a member of the Executive Leadership
Group who work together across all health care sectors to transform and improve
services for the 2.6million people living in this large area and takes the senior
responsible officer role on a number of transformation programmes.
Since April 2020, Jo has also been responsible for co-ordinating the COVID-19
response on behalf of Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group.
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Member practices
The CCG is a membership organisation comprised of 37 GP member practices across Wakefield District. The table below shows the
CCG’s member practices by Primary Care Home Configuration for 2019/20:
PCH NAME

PRACTICE
MEMBERS

POPULATIO
N SIZE (at
04/03/19)
PROVISIONA
L
PRIORITIES

WAKEFIELD
HEALTH
ALLIANCE
NORTH
Henry Moore
Clinic
Riverside MC
St Thomas Road
Station Lane MC
Newland Lane
Surgery
Tieve Tara MC

WAKEFIELD
HEALTH
ALLIANCE
CENTRAL
Stuart Road MC
Friarwood MC
Northgate MC
Ashgrove MC

44,724
Mental Health:
Depression (Low
Level)

WAKEFIELD
HEALTH ALLIANCE
SOUTH

TRINITY HEALTH
GROUP

WEST
WAKEFIELD

Patience Lane
Surgery
Kings Medical
Practice
Park View Surgery
Queen Street
Surgery
Health Care First
Partnership
Castleford MC

Crofton & Sharlston
Surgery
Maybush MC
Warrengate MC
Trinity Health
Group

Orchard Croft MC
Church Street
Surgery
Prospect Surgery
Middlestown MC
Chapelthorpe MC
Lupset MC

44,642

55,639

55,665

68,272

Improving Mental
Health in the PCH
population

Mental Health:
Depression

Smoking

Prevention of ill
health (metabolic
syndrome)

BRIGANTES

FIVE TOWNS

College Lane MC
Dr Diggle & Phillips
Park Green Surgery
The Grange MC
White Rose MC

New Southgate
Surgery
Alverthorpe
Surgery
Stanley Health
Centre
Outwood Park
Homestead Clinic
Eastmoor Health
Centre

46,600

61,749

Mental Health:
Depression (IAPT
LTC)

Mental Health Depression
(Low Level)

Weight Management
Pre Diabetes

COPD (identify
specific cohort)
Excess
Weight/Pre
Diabetes

COPD or Cancer
Excess Weight/
Pre Diabetes (Adult
or Children)

COPD or Cancer
Excess Weight/Pre
Diabetes

Improving MSK
symptoms in the
PCH population
Obesity
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Social Prescribing
COPD

Mental Health &
Self Care /
Personalisation
Working with Care
Homes &
Community
Nursing
(Low Level)

Composition of Governing Body
The CCG’s membership has delegated authority to the Governing Body to oversee
the work of the organisation and make decisions on its behalf as set out in the
Scheme of Reservation and Delegation incorporated in the CCG’s Constitution (see
Governance Statement). The members of the CCG’s Governing Body are described
in the Governance Statement.
Details of the Governing Body and Committee membership and attendance
throughout the year can also be found in the Governance Statement and in the
Remuneration and Staff Report. Their profiles have been set out above.
Committee(s), including Audit Committee
The Governing Body has five directly reporting committees as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Primary Care Commissioning Committee
Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Quality Performance and Governance Committee
Connecting Care Executive
Patient Engagement, Experience and Equality Committee
Clinical Strategy Group

Highlights from each of the committees are detailed in the Governance Statement.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee provides the Board with an independent and objective view of
the CCG’s system of internal control for financial governance, corporate governance
and clinical governance. The Audit Committee is chaired by Richard Watkinson, lay
member of the Board with responsibility for audit and conflict of interest matters. The
other members are Richard Hindley, lay member (Deputy Chair of the Governing
Body) and a clinical member of the Governing Body. There are three clinical
members of the Audit Committee Dr Adam Sheppard, Dr Clive Harries, Dr Deborah
Hallott. Only one clinical member needs to attend. In attendance at each meeting is
the CCG Chief Finance Officer as well as representatives from internal audit,
external audit and counter fraud. Any director or senior manager may be invited to
attend, particularly when the committee is discussing areas of risk or operation that
are the responsibility of that director. The Chief Officer will be invited to attend at
least one meeting each year in order to discuss the process for assurance that
supports the annual governance statement. Other officers may be requested to
attend in an advisory capacity.
The work of the Audit Committee includes ensuring that there is an effective internal
audit function; reviewing the work and findings of the external auditors; ensuring that
the CCG has adequate arrangements in place for countering fraud; monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the CCG; and overseeing risk management
and information governance arrangements. Details of the membership of all
committees are included in the governance statement. Details of the membership of
the Remuneration Committee are also included in the remuneration report.
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Register of Interests
NHS Wakefield CCG wishes to ensure that decisions made by the CCG are taken
and seen to be taken without any possibility of the influence of external or private
interest. The CCG has therefore put arrangements in place to ensure that conflicts of
interest are appropriately managed with transparency and proportionality. We have a
number of systems and processes in place to manage conflicts of interests. These
are set out in our Constitution and our Policy on the Management of Conflicts of
Interest. This register is reviewed by the CCG Board and Audit Committee. All
Board members, committee members, employees and member practices are asked
to complete a declaration of interest form to identify any potential conflicts of interest.
CCG Board members are also asked to declare any conflicts of interest with regards
to agenda items at each Board and committee meeting. The CCG register of
interests can be viewed at:
https://www.wakefieldccg.nhs.uk/fileadmin/site_setup/contentUploads/Current_Register_of_I
nterests_From_Decision_makers_V1.pdf

Further information on our management of conflicts of interest is contained in the
governance statement.
Personal data related incidents
There were no Serious Untoward Incidents relating to data security breaches,
including any that were reported to the Information Commissioner during 2019-20.
Statement of Disclosure to Auditors
Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report is
approved confirms:
• so far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their audit
report
• the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to
make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the CCG’s auditor is aware of it.
Modern Slavery Act
NHS Wakefield CCG fully supports the Government’s objectives to eradicate modern
slavery and human trafficking but does not meet the requirements for producing an
annual Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement as set out in the Modern Slavery
Act 2015.
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England). NHS England has
appointed the Mrs Joanne Webster to be the Accountable Officer of NHS Wakefield
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health
Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. They include
responsibilities for:
• The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable
Officer is answerable;
• For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable
them to ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts
Direction);
• For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities);
• The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public Money;
• Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically
(in accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended)) and with a view to securing continuous improvement in the quality of
services (in accordance with Section14R of the National Health Service Act 2006
(as amended));
• Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H to
223J of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).
Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has
directed each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction.
The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its income and
expenditure, Statement of Financial Position and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:
• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on
a consistent basis;
• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Government
Financial Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any
material departures in the accounts;
• Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis; and
• Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and take personal responsibility for the Annual Report and
Accounts and the judgements required for determining that it is fair, balanced and
understandable.
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To the best of my knowledge and belief I have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended),
Managing Public Money and in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable
Officer Appointment Letter.
I also confirm that:
• As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the CCG’s
auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps
that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the CCG’s auditors are aware of that information.

Joanne Webster
Accountable Officer
17 June 2020
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Governance Statement
Introduction and context
NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is a body corporate
established by NHS England on 1 April 2013 under the National Health Service Act
2006 (as amended).
The CCGs statutory functions are set out under the National Health Service Act 2006
(as amended). The CCG’s general function is arranging the provision of services for
persons for the purposes of the health service in England. The CCG is, in particular,
required to arrange for the provision of certain health services to such extent as it
considers necessary to meet the reasonable requirements of its local population.
As at 1 April 2019, the Clinical Commissioning Group is not subject to any directions
from NHS England issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act
2006.

Scope of responsibility
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the CCGs policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing
Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out under the National
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my CCG Accountable Officer
Appointment Letter.
I am responsible for ensuring that the CCG is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding
financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control within the CCG as set out in this
governance statement.

Governance arrangements and effectiveness
The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made
appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it exercises its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically and complies with such generally accepted principles of
good governance as are relevant to it.
The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework
The CCG Constitution states that in accordance with section 14L (2) (b) of the 2006
Act, 2014 the Group will at all times observe “such generally accepted principles of
good governance” in the way it conducts its business. These include:
•
•
•

The highest standards of propriety involving impartiality, integrity and
objectivity in relation to the stewardship of public funds, the management of
the organisation and the conduct of its business
The Good Governance Standard for Public Services
The standards of behaviour published by the Committee on Standards in
Public Life (1995) known as the “Nolan Principles”
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•
•

The seven key principles of the NHS Constitution
The Equality Act

NHS Wakefield CCG is a clinically led, member organisation comprising 37 member
practices and has a responsibility to ensure that robust corporate, clinical and
financial governance arrangements are embedded within the organisation in
accordance with best practice. Each practice has a registered key representative
who is appointed to vote on behalf of their practice. A full list of Member Practices is
set out within the Accountability Report.
The CCG has established a properly constituted Governing Body with the
appropriate clinical, managerial and lay member skill mix, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The elected Chair and Clinical Leader,
Three elected GPs,
the Secondary Care Specialist Doctor,
the independent Registered Nurse,
Three independent Lay Members,
the Chief Officer,
the Director of Finance/Deputy Chief Officer,
the Executive Nurse,

Details of the membership and the attendance of those members at committees of
the board are set from page 20 onwards.
Organisational structure and accountabilities are clear and well defined. Where
capacity and/or capability gaps have been identified, actions are put in place with
expected outcomes and timescales. Wakefield CCG clearly articulated its values to
stakeholders through its Commissioning Intentions for 2019/20. Our organisational
development strategy included an annual Staff Survey, 360 degree stakeholder
survey and developing actions to address issues for development..
The CCG Governing Body takes overall responsibility for governance throughout the
organisation but discharges some of its responsibilities to a number of committees.
The following committees have been established by the Governing Body:
a) Audit Committee
b) Primary Care Commissioning Committee
c) Remuneration Committee
d) Quality Performance and Governance Committee
e) Public Involvement, Patient Experience and Equality Committee
f) Finance Committee
g) Nominations Committee
h) Quality Strategy Group
A full list of committees, including their responsibilities and membership, are set out
in this Statement within the section titled Governing body. In addition to governance,
the Governing Body and its delegated committees place a clear focus on the
services, performance and patient safety of its commissioned providers.
CCGs are statutory bodies established under the NHS Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) as
amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. Legislation requires that each
CCG maintains and publishes a Constitution which contains specific information.
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NHS Wakefield CCG adopted the initial model Constitution as recommended by
NHS England as part of its authorisation in 1 January 2013.
During the summer of 2019, the Governing Body approved a number of small
changes to the CCG’s existing Constitution. It was noted that these were non
material changes and would not impact the impact the CCG continuing to carry out
its business and related more to a “tidying-up”.
In September 2018, NHS England issued a revised model Constitution which took
into account changes to legislation, CCG accountability frameworks and wider
developments such as creation of Integrated Care Systems (ICS) which have taken
place over the last few years. The revised model also looked to the future in an
attempt to facilitate a greater degree of flexibility for CCGs, whilst maintaining high
levels of transparency and accountability. Given publication of the revised model
Constitution, our Governing Body agreed to hold in abeyance the minor identified
changes and to adopt the revised model. It was therefore timely to undertake a full
review of our Constitution and supporting governance documents including a
governance handbook against the new model.
A new model Constitution was presented to Governing Body on 12 November for
consideration and approval for it to be put to the CCG membership for consideration
and approval by vote. Following a voting period allowing 21 days for written
resolution (on a one practice-one vote basis) as set out in the current standing
orders the new model Constitution was sent to NHS England for final approval in
January 2020. NHS England commits to undertake the review within 8 week of
receipt and on the 30 March NHS England confirmed its approval agreeing for it to
be enacted on the 1 April 2020.
The current Constitution sets out the CCG’s powers and functions, describes our
mission, values and aims and how these are delivered through the governance
framework. It describes how we ensure probity and accountability in the day to day
running of our CCG and clarifies how decisions are made in an open and transparent
way and in the interest of patients and the public.
Our Constitution includes the following information:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Our membership and the area we cover;
Our Mission, Values and Aims
Functions and Duties
Decision Making: The General Structure
Roles and Responsibilities
Standards of Business Conduct and Managing Conflicts of Interest
The CCG as an Employer
Transparency and Ways of Working
Standing Orders, Scheme of Reservation and Delegation and our Prime
Financial Policies
Committee Terms of Reference

The Constitution, particularly through the Scheme of Reservation and Delegation,
makes clear the respective responsibilities of the membership and the Governing
Body and its Committees.
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Our Constitution is available on the CCGs website: here
The Governing Body
Our governance structure is headed by the Board to which our 37 member
practices have formally delegated their statutory responsibilities within our
constitution.
During 2019/20 there were changes to our Governing body membership with
Dr Philip Earnshaw announcing his retirement at our meeting of the board in May
2020. Following an election process Dr Adam Sheppard was elected as Chair and
Clinical Leader. In line with the CCGs Standing Orders, as the Chair and Clinical
Leader role is restricted to existing GP governing body members the CCG approved
to reduce the number of elected GP board members from four to three.
Members of the Board during 2019/20 were:
Name
Dr Phillip Earnshaw
Joanne Webster
Richard Hindley
Andrew Balchin
Susannah Cookson
Anna Hartley
Dr Debbie Hallott
Diane Hampshire
Stephen Hardy
Dr Clive Harries
Dr Pravin Jayakumar
Pat Keane
Hany Lotfallah
Dr Adam Sheppard
Richard Watkinson
Jonathan Webb

Role
Chair & Clinical Leader (until 30 June 2019
Chief Officer
Lay Member & Deputy Chair
Corporate Director, Adults, Health & Communities
(Wakefield Council)
Chief Nurse
Director of Public Health (Wakefield Council)
GP member
Independent Nurse Member
Lay member (Patient & Public Involvement)
GP member
GP member
Chief Operating Officer (ceased board level role at
end of October 2019)
Secondary care consultant
Assistant Clinical Leader / GP member Appointed
Chair & Clinical Leader (from 1 July2019)
Lay Member (Audit)
Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Officer

The composition of the Governing Body is compliant with the requirements of the
CCG’s constitution.
In December 2019 the Nominations Committee oversaw the tenure of three member
of the Governing Body including the Independent Secondary Care Doctor, Lay
Member/Deputy Chair and Lay Member for Public Involvement, Patient Experience
and Equality Committee and recommended to the board the following:
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The CCGs Independent Secondary Care Doctor, Mr Hany Lotfallah’s tenure for his
second term of office is extended for one year to allow any potential changes in the
NHS Bill to take effect allowing the Secondary Care Doctor to be appointed from
local providers.
The Lay Member/Deputy Chair, Richard Hindley’s tenure for his second term of
office is extended for a further three year term of office in line with the constitution
and subject to the approval of the proposed changes to the Constitution and the
CCG’s Standing Orders
The Lay Member for Patient Experience, Stephen Hardy’s third term of office is
extended for a further three years in line with the model constitution which
recommends that in order to ensure lay members retain independent and external
focus they should serve a term of office of no more than ten years.
The Governing Body met on six occasions during the year 2019/20. All meetings
were quorate. Meetings were held in public and copies of the papers are available
on the CCG’s website (available here).
The Governing Body draw their membership from a broad pool of NHS staff,
clinicians and lay members, providing the appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the organisation to enable them to discharge their
respective duties and responsibilities effectively. All members of the Governing
Body have clear areas of responsibility. The Chair holds regular review meetings
and annual appraisals with members of the Governing Body to discuss their
contribution to the organisation. The membership of the Governing Body can be
found in the Accountability Report within the section titled Member Profiles.
Committees of the Governing Body
The CCG uses a number of committees to provide challenge and assurance over
specific areas. All committees have been formed with a membership that provides
a range of skills, including clinical expertise and lay membership. Membership for
all committees of the board can be found in table below.
During 2019/20 the Governing Body was supported by eight sub-committees; Audit
Committee, Clinical Cabinet, Finance Committee, Integrated Governance
Committee, Nominations Committee, Probity Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Connecting Care Executive. All committees, except Connecting Care
Executive have lay member representation in the form of either chairing
committees, for example Audit Committee, Finance Committee and Integrated
Governance Committee, or by being in attendance. All Committees of the CCG are
referenced in the constitution. The terms of reference for these Committees were
reviewed and revised in February 2020. Copies of all committee terms of reference
are also available on the CCG’s website (available here). Written and verbal
assurance reports and minutes from the Committees are provided to the Board on
a regular basis.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee provides the Board with an independent and objective view of
the CCG’s system of internal control for financial governance, corporate governance
and clinical governance. For information regarding the membership please refer to
the membership section below.
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The Audit Committee met on seven occasions during the year with the remit to
review and provide assurance on the adequacy and effective operation of the
overall internal control system for the CCG. Topics discussed included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Governance Exceptions Report
Procurement Register Update
Regular Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and Security Progress Reports
Regular External Audit Updates
Governing Body Assurance Framework
Mid-Year Committee Progress and assurance report
Audit Committee Self-Assessment
Accounts Planning 2019/20

The CCG annual Report and Accounts for 2018/19 were approved at the Audit
Committee meeting held on 23 May 2019.
The Audit Committee annual report was presented to the Committee on 30 April
2020 confirming that the Audit Committee has fulfilled its duties by focusing on
integrated governance, risk management, internal control, financial reporting,
internal audit, external audit, assurance on management, whistleblowing, other
assurance functions and counter fraud. In June 2020 the Board will consider an
annual report from the Audit Committee.
Audit Panel
The Auditor Panel met twice during 2019/20. The panel met in September 2019 and
then in February 2020. The Auditor Panel is a committee of the Governing Body and
has no executive powers, other than those specifically delegated in its terms of
reference. The Panel’s function is to advise the organisation’s Governing Body on
the selection and appointment of the external auditor. The panel met to consider the
extension of contract with the CCGs external auditor with a recommendation to the
board. During these meetings conflicts were managed by excluding the external
auditors from both meetings.

Clinical Cabinet
The Clinical Cabinet met monthly throughout the year, with the remit of:
• Providing strong clinical leadership for commissioning, service transformation
and pathway redesign and to provide robust assurance of this to the Governing
Body. Including promotion of a culture of continuous improvement, innovation,
safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience/feedback;
• Providing advice and assurance on agreed commissioning strategies and
intentions and strategic alignment with the forward strategy that is agreed for
the population of Wakefield by the Governing Body;
• Taking a lead in ensuring initiatives are in place to support the development of
Quality, Improvement, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) through embedding
clinical advice, support and leadership into key commissioning work streams
and interlinking portfolio working across the organisation.
Topics discussed during 2019/20 included:
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•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Service Transformation and Commissioning – Anticoagulation Monitoring
Service Review, Healthy Hearts Wakefield Programme, Cancer,
Gastroenterology, Dermatology, MSK, Cataract Surgery, ENT, Onwards Referral
Pathway for Physiotherapy, Bereavement Service
Mental Health – Investment and Priorities, Dementia Programme, IAPT Digital
Demonstration
Learning Disabilities – Transforming Care Update
Option for 0-18 years ASD Diagnostic Pathway
Children and Young People – Future in Mind Update
Urgent Primary Care Re-design
Quality Markers for Carers within Primary Care
Yorkshire and Humber Care Record

Clinical Cabinet has established one sub-committee, the Medicines Optimisation
Group. Minutes of the Group’s meetings are regularly presented to Clinical Cabinet.
The Committee also received regular updates from the CCG’s membership (through
the six clinical networks).
In June 2020 the Board will consider an annual report from the Clinical Cabinet.
The Annual Report will be presented to the Clinical Cabinet on 16 April 2020
providing assurance that the committee has complied with its terms of reference
and fulfilled its duties.
Integrated Governance Committee
The Integrated Governance Committee met monthly throughout the year, with the
exception of October 2019 when the meeting was cancelled. The Committee
remit is:
•
•
•

Ensuring that the CCG has robust systems in place to identify, manage and
report on key governance and quality issues and the risks associated with
them;
Reviewing the CCG’s performance against its strategic and operational plans;
Being accountable for the performance and reporting of any groups, as
delegated by the Governing Body, ensuring all risks are appropriately managed
and reported within the risk management/assurance framework approach.

The topics discussed throughout the year included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Monthly Performance Report
Quality and Patient Safety reports quarterly including the Experience of Care
Framework and the Patient Safety and Outcomes Report
Care Quality Commission Inspection updates
Incident Report updates
Governing Body Assurance Framework update
Regular Information Governance Updates
Commissioning Principles for Adults
Various Corporate and Safeguarding policies were also presented for approval
The Individual Funding Requests Annual Report for 2018/19 and the IFR Terms
of Reference
Research Governance Annual Report for 2018/19
Workforce Update
Staff Survey Action Plan
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•
•
•
•

A number of revised Workforce Policies were presented for approval
Risk Register 2019/20
Equality including Public Sector Equality Duty Report
Committee Self-Assessment

Other topics also presented included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Presentation by the Director of Nursing and Quality at Mid Yorkshire Hospitals
NHS Trust on progress following a Care Quality Commission inspection at the
Trust
Updates following the Autism Spectrum Disorder Ofsted Re-visit that took place
across Wakefield District
Referral Support System Update
Briefing on the progress in implementing the Calderdale, Kirklees, Wakefield
and Barnsley Transforming Care Partnership
Gram Negative Blood Stream Infections Assurance report
System Wide Urgent Care
Maternity Services Transformation Update

The Integrated Governance Committee has two standing sub groups, the Joint
Acute Commissioning Working Group and the Quality Intelligence Group. Minutes
from both sub groups are shared with the Committee on a regular basis. The
revised terms of reference of the Quality Intelligence Group were approved in
March 2020.
In June 2020 the Board will consider an annual report from the Integrated
Governance Committee. The annual report was presented to the Integrated
Governance Committee on 28 May 2020 providing assurance that the committee
has complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties.
Finance Committee
The Finance Committee is established as a Committee of the Governing Body of
NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), in accordance with the
scheme of delegation with the remit of:
•
•
•
•

Approval of the financial plan, providing assurance that:
The quality, safety and stakeholder impact of individual plans have been
assessed and mitigated
The interrelationship with performance recovery plans have been assessed
and mitigated
All possible measures are being taken to achieve financial turnaround.

The Finance Committee met monthly during 2019/20 and topics discussed
included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2019/20 Financial Plan Updates
2019/20 Efficiency Programme Updates
Running Costs Reduction Plan
System Financial Planning
2019/20 Activity growth and waiting list size at MYHT
2019/20 Integrated Care System Financial Framework
MYHT Aligned Incentive Agreement
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• Primary Care Allocation
• Long Term Financial Planning Submission
In June 2020 the Board will consider an annual report from the Finance
Committee. The annual report was presented to the Committee on 23 April 2020
providing assurance that the committee has complied with its terms of reference
and fulfilled its duties.
Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee met on one occasion throughout the year, with the
remit of:
•

ensuring a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of
members to the Governing Body (including GPs, Lay Members and Registered
Nurse).

On those occasions when the committee meets to consider the appointment of GPs
a representative from the Local Medical Committee is invited as an attendee.
At the one meeting held during 2019/20 the re-appointment of the Lay
Member/Deputy Governing Body Chair, Lay Member/Patient Experience and the
Secondary Care Consultant role was discussed and a recommendation was made
to the Governing Body to re-appoint to all three roles. Please refer to the
Governing Body section of this report for the detail.
In June 2020 the Board will consider an annual report from the Nominations
Committee which will provide assurance that the committee has complied with its
terms of reference and fulfilled its duties. The committee fulfilled its duties by
recommending to the Governing Body the re-appointment of two Lay Members,
re-appointment of the Secondary Care Consultant and re-appointment of two GP
Clinical Members.
Probity Committee
The Probity Committee was scheduled for six meetings, however two were
cancelled (23 July 2019 and 24 March 2020) and therefore the Committee met on
four occasions throughout the year, with the remit of:
•
•

Facilitating decision making about items which present conflicts of interest for
all or the majority of GP members of the Governing Body;
Carrying out the functions delegated to the CCG relating to the commissioning
of primary medical services.

The topics discussed during 2019/20 included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Wakefield Practice Premium Contract Performance Report
Wrenthorpe Branch Closure – Assurance Report
Primary Care Network Configuration
Primary Care Strategy Update
GP Care Wakefield
Annual General Practice Network Assurance Visits 2019/20
Consideration of a request for a practice merger
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Following the approval of the revised NHS Wakefield CCG Constitution in March
2020, the Probity Committee will be superseded by the Primary Care
Commissioning Committee. The remit of the committee will remain the
consideration of any topic which could constitute a Conflict of Interest to GP
members of the Governing Body. The revised Terms of Reference will be presented
at the first meeting of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee in April 2020.
In June 2020 the Governing Body will consider an annual report from the Probity
Committee which will provide assurance that the committee has complied with its
terms of reference and fulfilled its duties.
Remuneration Committee
A revised version of the Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference was
presented and approved at the Governing Body in September 2019. The
amendment related to a change to the chair of the committee to comply with the
requirement for the committee to be chaired by a lay member to mitigate the risk of
any conflict of interest. A change was also made to the delegated authority of the
Committee to make recommendations to the Governing Body in line with its terms of
reference. The Governing Body would then consider and approve the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee has the remit to:
•

consider and to make recommendations to the Governing Body on the
remuneration and conditions of service for all Governing Body Members with
the exception of lay members, whose remuneration is determined by the
Governing Body itself, members of staff employed by, and those who provide
services to NHS Wakefield CCG outside of Agenda for Change and taking into
account any national Directions or guidance on these matters.

The Committee has met five times during the year with two of the meetings being
held virtually.
Connecting Care Executive
The Connecting Care Executive is a joint committee with Wakefield Council. The
committee met on six occasions during 2019/20 with the remit of:
• Acting as the Partnership Board responsible for review of performance and
oversight of the Better Care Fund. This includes undertaking the statutory
functions outlined in the Care Act 2014 and managing the implementation of
the Better Care Fund Plan and associated Section 75 Better Care Fund
Partnership Agreement;
• Delivering the ambition of the Health and Wellbeing Board to achieve
more effective integration between the commissioning of children’s,
adults’, public health and NHS services.
Topics presented and discussed during this period included:
•
•
•

Children & Young People’s commissioning reviews
SEND Written Statement of Action Update
Joint Legacy Reserves
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Wakefield Children in Care residential Placements
Wakefield Families Together New Ways of Working
Mental Health Investment Proposal
Better Care Fund 2019/20 Plan Submission
Commissioning Work Stream Transformation 2020/21
Overview of Investment for Adults Winter 2019/20
Finance Report for Wakefield Better Care Fund/BCF Pooled Financial Monitoring
Report

In addition the Connecting Care Executive took a role in oversight of the district’s
two vanguard programmes.
The Connecting Care Executive has one standing sub group; the Connecting Care
Health & Social Care Partnership.
In June 2020 the Board will consider an annual report from the Connecting Care
Executive which will provide assurance that the committee has complied with its
terms of reference and fulfilled its duties in line with The Care Act 2014 (Part 4,
section 121, (3)) which sets out the legislative framework that the resources
identified as part of the Better Care Fund are required to be placed into pooled
budgets under section 75 joint governance arrangements between the CCG and the
Council. The Connecting Care Executive shall have oversight and responsibility for
the statutory arrangements for the Better Care Fund.
Attendance at Governing Body and Committee meetings as at 31 March 2020
Governing Body
Member

Governing
Body

Audit
Committee

Clinical
Cabinet

Connecting
Care
Executive

Finance
Committee

Integrated
Governance
Committee

Probity
Committee

Andrew Balchin

1 (6)

N/A

N/A

2 (6)

N/A

N/A

N/A

Suzannah
Cookson

4 (6)

N/A

9 (11)

3 (6)

7 (12)

7 (11)

3 (4)

Dr Phil
Earnshaw

1 (1)

N/A

2 (3)

N/A

2 (3)

3 (3)

N/A

Dr Deborah
Hallott

5 (6)

6 (7)

8 (11)

N/A

N/A

3 (3)

N/A

Diane
Hampshire

5 (6)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

4 (4)

Stephen Hardy

5 (6)

N/A

8 (11)

N/A

N/A

10 (11)

4 (4)

Dr Clive Harries

6 (6)

4 (7)

8 (11)

N/A

10(12)

N/A

N/A

Anna Hartley

4 (6)

N/A

N/A

2 (6)

N/A

N/A

N/A

Richard Hindley

4 (6)

5 (7)

N/A

N/A

9 (12)

8 (11)

3 (4)

Dr Pravin
Jayakumar

6 (6)

N/A

10 (11)

N/A

7 (9)

8 (9)

N/A

Pat Keane *

4 (6)

N/A

N/A

N/A

8 (12)

1 (11)

N/A

Hany Lotfallah

5 (6)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

3 (4)

Dr Adam

6 (6)

3 (3)

11 (11)

4 (6)

12 (12)

8 (9)

N/A
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Sheppard
Richard
Watkinson

6 (6)

7 (7)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Jonathan Webb
**

6 (6)

6 (7)

5 (11)

5(6)

11 (12)

9 (11)

4 (4)

Jo Webster

4 (4)

N/A

N/A

3(4)

6 (8)

6 (8)

N/A

NB. The number in brackets is the maximum number of meetings in 2019/20 that
the member could attend.
*Chief Operating Officer to be in attendance, where required, in place of the Chief
Officer should the Chief Officer not be able to attend the Integrated Governance
Committee.
** Jonathan Webb is in attendance at Audit Committee.
All committee meetings held during the year were quorate. Attendance at meetings
is monitored by the chair of the committee and shared with the chair of the Board.
Joint Governance
The Joint Committee is part of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care
Partnership (HCP). The CCGs established the Committee in May 2017, with
delegated authority to take commissioning decisions at WY&H level on specific
programmes including: cancer, elective care/standardisation of commissioning
policies, mental health, stroke and urgent care. The Committee aims to ensure that
its decisions include public and patient engagement, clinical input and have
authority from the CCGs.
The Committee has a work plan, Memorandum of Understanding and Terms of
Reference, which were agreed by the Members of each CCG. The Committee’s
work plan reflects the partnership priorities for which the CCGs believe collective
decision making is essential. During the year, the Committee reviewed its work
plan and asked the Members of each CCG to approve changes to it for 2020/21.
Although it can only make decisions on the programmes of work that have been
delegated to it, the Committee also makes recommendations to the CCGs on other
matters where it feels that a West Yorkshire & Harrogate wide approach would be
beneficial.
In addition the CCG is an associate member of ‘Commissioners Working Together’,
the collaborative commissioning arrangements for South Yorkshire.
In Wakefield the CCG has worked with partners to strengthen system assurance
and oversight, the Mid Yorkshire Oversight and Assurance Executive, now known
as the Mid Yorkshire System Executive Group was established in 2016. It includes
partner organisations from across the whole Mid Yorkshire system working to take
ownership and drive the development of resilience planning and transformational
change in the delivery of health and social care across the local Mid Yorkshire
system, aligning organisational priorities and plans to deliver the best possible
outcomes for patients.
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The annual report can be found here.
West Yorkshire & Harrogate Joint Committee of CCGs
Membership and attendance
The Committee has two representatives from each CCG, an independent lay chair
and two CCG lay members. It met five times in 2019/20.
Public and patient involvement (PPI)
The Joint Committee has established a PPI Assurance Group made up of the PPI
Lay Members from each CCG. The Group provides assurance that the public and
patient voice informs the Committee’s decisions.
Achievements
Reducing variation in planned care
The Committee has agreed commissioning policies which improve equity in access
to services, help reduce health inequalities and tackle the ‘postcode lottery’:
Musculoskeletal pathway
The Committee agreed a pathway to address high demand and variation in MSK
services across WY&H. The pathway aims to ensure that all but the most urgent
MSK cases are managed in primary care or through referral to an MSK service.
Knee, shoulder and hip policies
The Committee agreed WY&H policies covering surgical and non-surgical
procedures for a range of conditions relating to shoulder pain and instability, knee
pain and hip problems. Evidence-based clinical thresholds mean that surgical
procedures are carried out only when they are clinically effective, and where
alternative non-surgical options have been ineffective.
Cataract surgery
The Committee agreed a WY&H-wide pathway and policy for cataract surgery,
including proposals to make better use of community optometrists. Making better use
of community optometrists will release specialist capacity in hospitals to see higher
risk patients with potentially sight-threatening conditions.
Flash glucose monitors
The Committee agreed a WY&H commissioning policy for flash glucose monitors.
These are small sensors worn on the skin for monitoring the glucose levels of
people with diabetes, and reduce the need for ‘finger prick’ testing.
NHS England and Improvement Medicines Value Programme
The Committee agreed the recommendations of the NHS England and NHS
Improvement Medicines Value Programme. The Committee agreed that primary
care prescribers should not initiate and in many cases should de-prescribe items,
mainly relating to skin and cardiac conditions.
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West Yorkshire and Harrogate Healthy Hearts
To support Phase 2 of the WY&H Healthy Hearts project, the Committee approved
simplified guidance for treating people with high cholesterol. By the end of January
2020, the project had seen an increase of nearly 8,000 patients with controlled blood
pressure and more than 7,500 patients had been added to hypertension registers.
Over the next five years these interventions have the potential to prevent 65 deaths,
82 heart attacks and 122 strokes.
Urgent and emergency care
In December 2018, the Committee approved a new approach to Integrated Urgent
Care services. A progress report showed that the changes had increased access to
clinical advice for patients and had also increased the ability for patients to book face
to face appointments in primary care.
Working better together
The Committee is leading on new approaches to enable the CCGs to work more
efficiently and effectively together as commissioners and with service providers:
Commissioning futures
The Committee has led work on future arrangements for commissioning at scale
across WY&H, including expanding and developing the role of the Joint Committee.
Quality and Equality Impact Assessment
The ‘do once and share’ approach to Quality and Equality Impact Assessment has
been successfully used for all new commissioning policies and the Committee has
recommended its use across the wider Partnership.
Governance
In March 2020, CCG Accountable Officers agreed a three month extension of the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which established the Committee. During the
first quarter of 2020/21, CCGs will be asked to approve a revised MoU and a new
work plan for the Committee.
The Committee maintains a register of members’ interests and declarations of
interest are a standing item on all agendas. At each meeting, the Committee
reviews the significant risks to the delivery of its work programme and assesses how
these risks are being mitigated.
As a result of the national COVID-19 outbreak in March 2020, the Committee’s
annual evaluation of its performance was postponed. It will now take place in early
2020/21. The Committee will use the learning from the evaluation to help develop its
work during the year.
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Attendance record
Organisation and role

Member

Attendance
(eligible)

Independent Lay Chair

Marie Burnham

5 (5)

(to 19/05/19 meeting)
(from 01/10/19 meeting)

Richard Wilkinson
Fatima Khan-Shah
Stephen Hardy

5 (5)
1 (1)
3 (3)

NHS Airedale, Wharfedale and Craven CCG
Clinical Chair

Dr James Thomas

5 (5)

NHS Bradford City CCG
Clinical Chair (to 19/05/19)
Clinical Chair (from 02/07/19)

Dr Akram Khan
Dr Sohail Abbas

1 (1)
3 (4)

NHS Bradford Districts CCG
Clinical Chair

Dr Andy Withers

5 (5)

NHS Airedale, Wharfedale and Craven, Bradford City and
Bradford Districts CCGs
Chief Officer

Helen Hirst

5 (5)

NHS Calderdale CCG
Clinical Chair
Chief Officer
(Deputy: Chief Finance Officer)

Dr Steven Cleasby
Dr Matt Walsh
Neil Smurthwaite

5 (5)
3 (5)
2 (2)

NHS Greater Huddersfield CCG
Clinical Leader

Dr Steve Ollerton

5 (5)

NHS North Kirklees CCG
Clinical Chair

Dr David Kelly

3 (5)

NHS Greater Huddersfield and North Kirklees CCGs
Chief Officer

Carol McKenna

5 (5)

NHS Harrogate & Rural District CCG
Clinical Chair
Chief Officer

Dr Alistair Ingram
Amanda Bloor

5 (5)
5 (5)

NHS Leeds CCG
Clinical Chair
Chief Executive
(Deputy: Director of Operational Delivery)

Dr Gordon Sinclair
Tim Ryley
Sue Robins

4 (5)
3 (5)
2 (2)

NHS Wakefield CCG
Clinical Chair (to 19/05/19)
Clinical Chair (from 02/07/19)
Chief Officer
(Deputy: Chief Finance Officer)

Dr Phillip Earnshaw
Dr Adam Sheppard
Jo Webster
Jonathan Webb

1 (1)
4 (4)
3 (5)
2 (2)

CCG Lay members
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UK Corporate Governance Code
NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the UK Code of Corporate Governance.
However compliance with relevant principles of the Code is considered to be
appropriate and good practice. This Annual Governance Statement is intended to
demonstrate how the CCG has due regard to the principles set out in the Code and
which are considered appropriate for CCGs. For the financial year ended 31 March
2019, and up to the date of signing this statement, we had regard to the provisions
set out in the code, and applied the principles of the code.

Discharge of Statutory Functions
In light of recommendations of the 1983 Harris Review, the clinical commissioning
group has reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated legislative and
regulations. As a result, I can confirm that the clinical commissioning group is clear
about the legislative requirements associated with each of the statutory functions for
which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation of those functions.
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director.
Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability
and capacity to undertake all of the clinical commissioning group’s statutory duties].

Risk management arrangements and effectiveness
Risk Management Framework
The Integrated Risk Management Framework sets out appetite for risk, together with
the practical means through which risk is identified and evaluated as well as the
control mechanisms through which it is managed. It creates a framework to achieve
a culture that encourages staff to:
•
•
•
•

Identify and control risks which may adversely affect the operational ability of the
CCG
Compare risks using the 5 x 5 grading system (see matrix below)
Eliminate or transfer risks or reduce them to an acceptable and cost effective
level wherever possible, otherwise ensure the organisation openly accepts the
remaining risks.
Provide the Governing Body with assurance that risk is being effectively
managed through appropriate risk management escalation mechanisms for the
purposes of decision making.

The risk score determines the prioritisation and allocation of resource. Higher scores
have a higher priority for action, as the impact of failing to reduce the risk is greater.
Risk scores are categorised into five sections. The table below shows the categories
of risk scoring.
The risk score determines the prioritisation and allocation of resource. Higher scores
have a higher priority for action, as the impact of failing to reduce the risk is greater.
Risk scores are categorised into five sections. The table below shows the categories
of risk scoring.
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Risk Category
Priority No
Critical Risk (20-25)

Black
1

Serious Risk (15-16)

Red
2

High Risk (8-12)

Yellow
3

Moderate Risk (4-6)

Green

4

Low Risk (1-3)

Clear

5

The framework was reviewed and approved in June 2018 by the Integrated
Governance Committee. It will be refreshed for consideration by the Quality
Performance and Governance Committee in June 2020.
The key risk management objectives are:
1. The organisation has appropriate and effective systems in place to identify, report
and manage risk.
2. The organisation has effective processes to capture and learn from mistakes to
reduce future risks.
3. An effective accountability framework for the management and reporting of risk is
in place.
4. The organisational risk management framework provides sufficient evidence and
assurance to comply with relevant external assessment and best practice.
5. The organisation will develop risk management arrangements for key
partnerships and major projects.
The CCG monitors and reports on risk in two ways:
• The Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) focuses on strategic / longterm risks to the delivery of our strategic objectives. The framework is reviewed
and updated twice per year.
• The corporate risk register focuses on more operational risks that may rise and fall
within relatively short time periods. The corporate risk register is reviewed and
updated four times per year.
Leadership of the risk management process is given a high profile within the CCG
and the framework sets out the roles of key personnel in handling and reporting
risks.
Risk management is built into the strategic planning process and managed
operationally with the governance of decision making set out in the organisation’s
Scheme of Reservation and Delegation.
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Risks are identified from a number of sources, including the Governing Body,
Executive Directors, staff, Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF), internal
and external audit reports and risk assessments. Monitoring, evaluation and control
have been further developed throughout the year and all identified risks are included
on either the Corporate Risk Register, GBAF or individual team risk logs.
Risk management by the Governing Body is therefore underpinned by 6 interlocking
systems of internal control:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF)
Corporate Risk Register (informed by team, committee or programme risk)
Individual team risk logs
Audit Committee and Integrated Governance Committee
Governance Sub-committee
Annual Governance Statement

Risk Appetite
The Integrated Risk Management Framework (IRMF) includes provisions to regularly
review risks.
The IRMF includes guidance regarding the scoring of risks and establishing the
‘target’ or risk appetite score. A 5x5 matrix is used to identifying the appropriate level
for each individual risk. The score and appetite score are set by the risk owner and
reviewed by the Senior Manager and relevant director. The risks are then subject to
an overview at the Integrated Governance Committee to:
•
•
•
•

oversee the development and maintenance of assurance and risk management
systems and processes
maintain an up to date risk profile by reviewing all significant risks to the
achievement of the CCG’s objectives through the development of an Assurance
Framework
ensure sound systems of internal control are in place and report on these to the
Audit Committee and Governing Body
promote standards of health, safety and welfare across the CCG, ensuring
compliance with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and other relevant
statutory provisions.

Other controls to manage risk
Information from the GBAF and risk register are triangulated with information from
other sources to deliver assurance on the prevention of risk and the management of
current risks. These include:
•
•
•
•
•

Incident reports
Serious incident investigations
Conflicts of interest
Business continuity plans
Health and safety assessments (including fire assessment)

The CCG has established a range of policies to support the management of risk.
These include the Integrated Risk Management Framework, Incident Reporting
Policy (incorporating the national Serious Incident Framework), Health and Safety
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Policy, Complaints Policy, Claims Policy and Freedom to Speak Up (Whistleblowing)
Policy.
Involving public stakeholders to manage risks which impact on them
The CCG values the involvement of public stakeholders in its local and collective
decisions, and we utilise various engagement approaches to ensure an inclusive
approach to involving the diversity of our citizens. To this effect, we have considered
a number of key elements for involving public stakeholders set out in:
•
•
•
•

The White Paper, ‘Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS’
Health and Social Care Act 2012
The NHS Constitution
Patient and public participation in commissioning health and care: statutory
guidance for CCGs and NHS England

The CCG identifies impacts and risks of the decisions it makes through Equality and
Quality Impact Assessment processes. These assessments provide insight into how
certain communities may be impacted upon by potential changes. The insight of
these assessments is used to target engagement with affected communities with a
focus on how any impacts and risks can be negated or managed.
We engage with members of the public at the earliest opportunity in our decision
making process. We also identify opportunities for public representatives to be
directly involved in our planning and decision making through participation in project
meetings, partnership boards and procurement activities.
Supporting local people to have their say and influence our commissioning decisions
is a priority for us.
Sharing the outcomes of our decision making with the public, and highlighting where
public voice has impacted on our plans and decisions is vitally important to building
trust with our communities and encouraging more involvement.
Our engagement activity is overseen and assured by our Public Involvement and
Patient Experience Committee whose members include local people, Governing
Body lay member, who is the Chair of the Committee, Healthwatch Wakefield, Young
Healthwatch and the Local Authority
The CCG has one Lay Members with responsibility for public engagement. Our lay
member chair’s the Public Involvement and Patient Experience Committees, as well
as being voting member of the Governing body, our lay member is also a member of
the CCGs Remuneration, Probity and Integrated Governance Committees. This
ensures there is a voice for patients and the public throughout our decision making
and governance.
We consult with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and NHS England as well as
working in partnership with our local Healthwatch; and voluntary community within
the health sector.
The CCGs monthly Quality Intelligence Group (QIG) considers information gathered
from complaints and other contracts with patients. The group considers comments
made during engagement exercises and patient ‘walk-abouts’, as well as comments
83

from staff members in order to identify themes and patterns which may identify gaps
or potential risks to current or future services.
Capacity to Handle Risk
The CCG has a robust and systematic approach to risk management. The
Accountable Officer is supported by the Senior Management Team in ensuring that
the CCG has a positive and open approach to the identification and management of
risk.
Effectiveness of governance structures
All committees have approved terms of reference which detail their accountability
and responsibility. A work plan is in place and all committees of the governing body
conduct an annual self-appraisal to ensure the terms of reference are being met.
Responsibilities of directors and committees
The roles and responsibilities of staff as owners of risks on the risk register, as well
as those of senior managers and directors, are set out in the Intergrade Risk
Management Framework (IRMF).
Senior managers and directors have clear responsibilities within the Governance
Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) and the corporate risk register, to identify and
manage risk.
The Governing Body is responsible for providing clear commitment and direction for
risk management within the CCG. The detailed review and operational management
of the Risk Register has been delegated to the Integrated Governance Committee
with the Governing Body reviewing the Risk Register twice a year.
GBAF entries have an associated clinical lead, where necessary, to ensure that the
risk and mitigations are clinically appropriate.
Reporting lines
The lines of accountabilities between the Governing Body, its committees and
subcommittees and the executive team are set out in the IRMF and the terms of
reference for specific committees.
Members of the executive team are involved with both the GBAF and the risk
register. Following their reviews, the risk register is reviewed four times a year by the
Integrated Governance Committee (IGC), which also reviews the GBAF twice a year.
Governing Body sees the minutes of each IGC and twice a year receives details of
the high level risks (those scoring between 15 and 25 using a 5x5 risk matrix).
The Audit Committee received assurance on the effectiveness of the risk
management system by bi-annual review of the GBAF.
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Timely and accurate information
Staff and senior managers identify risks as a generic element of their role. Newly
identified risks can be added to the corporate risk register at any time. However staff
are prompted four times a year to record any new risks and to review existing risks
during the formal review cycle.
Senior managers and Directors will identify new entries for the GBAF which is
updated twice a year.
Any gap in control or assurance identified on the GBAF is mirrored with a risk on the
risk register. Both the risk register and the GBAF identify the links between the two
systems.
Risks are also identified though finance and performance reports and are discussed
at Integrated Governance Committee, Governing Body and Audit Committee.
Degree and rigour of oversight
When the risk register and GBAF are presented at IGC or the Governing Body, they
are subject to scrutiny and discussion. Focus is usually on the score or movement of
a risk and on the effectiveness of the controls in place.
In addition, the standard covering documentation for all papers presented at
committees includes a section seeking details of the risk assessments linked to the
item.
Other documents such as minutes from subsidiary committees, financial and quality
reports are considered.
Training
All staff are required to carry out mandatory training on a number of topics including
information governance, fire safety, health and safety, and ‘Prevent’ (antiradicalisation initiative), Standards of Business Conduct and Conflicts of Interest.
In addition, certain staff are required to carry out additional training which is
appropriate for their roles.
Good practice identified from incident reporting is shared with staff via the Skyline
intranet service, and staff briefings.
A comprehensive suite of policies and procedures is available for staff on Skyline.
This includes guidance relating to the use of the risk register. All staff newly
appointed to the risk register are offered one-to-one training and support from the
Governance Team.
Senior managers and directors have received support regarding the risk register at
Senior Leadership Team meetings where exercises took place to compare and
benchmark risk scores and to interrogate rationales for cases where scores
remained static over a period of time.
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Risk Assessment
Risk assessment in relation to governance, risk management and internal
control
Risk assessments in relation to governance, risk management and internal control
are carried out through a number of mechanisms including:
•

•
•

Through internal governance arrangements taking account of: risk
assessment guidance in the Integrated Risk Management Framework, selfassessment activity, review of our constitution, new national guidance or
regulations and external inquiries such as the Francis Report or the
Winterbourne Review;
Through the annual internal audit plan by Audit Yorkshire. The plan is
developed from a risk assessment of all areas of our activities and work
undertaken in line with the plan is reported to the Audit Committee;
Through external audit throughout the year by KPMG, which includes
attendance at the Audit Committee and focused pieces of external audit work as
set out in the auditors annual work plan, culminating in the risk review
undertaken prior to annual reporting and accounts.

Guidance on risk assessment and scoring is provided in the Integrated Risk
Management Framework and is supplemented by individual support from the
Governance Team.
Major risks to governance, risk management and internal controls
The Governing Body Assurance Framework details 12 key risks to the CCG’s
strategic objectives. Each entry has been scored using a 5x5 matric and a ‘target’ or
risk appetite identified. The controls and assurances are detailed, together with any
gaps which will then be subject to an action to reduce or remove the gap.
The final review of the Governing Body Assurance Framework for 2019/20 took
place in February 2020 and was completed in March 2020.
One entry related to governance, risk management and internal controls. This was:
• NHS Wakefield CCG is limited in its ability to commission innovative and high
quality services due to historic financial deficits. This was scored at 12 and also
has actions identified to reduce the impact of this concern.
Work is ongoing to fully understand the conflicting demands and work with partners
to develop a whole system response the challenges.
The Governing Body Assurance Framework is supported by the corporate risk
register which details the operational risks.
Each risk is scored using a 5x5 risk scoring matrix and a target score is identified.
Controls and assurances are identified.
The final Risk Register cycle for 2019/20 included 50 risks
The risk profile for the final review cycle for 2019/20 was considered at the Integrated
Governance Committee on 19 March 2020
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The numbers in the circle are the risk identification numbers and their position on the
graph shows the risk score.
Risks are will be subject to action plans/controls and assurances in proportion to
their risk score:
•
•
•
•
•

Black = Critical risks requiring urgent action
Red = Serious risks requiring prompt action
Yellow = High risks
Green = Moderate risks
Clear = Low risks which may require monitoring only.

The final risk cycle of 2019/20 did not identify any governance, risk management or
internal control risks with a risk score of over 16.
Details for the GBAF and Risk Register can be found on the CCG’s website within
our Governing Body papers here
The Risk Register was presented to Governing Body on 14 May 2019 and the GBAF
on 10 March 2020

Other sources of assurance
Internal Control Framework
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the
clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It
is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather
than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness.
The adequacy of internal controls is monitored and assessed by the Governing Body
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supported by the Audit Committee. There are a range of control measures in place
including the:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Operation of the governing body and its committees in accordance with clear
terms of reference and delegated responsibilities as described in the scheme
of delegation and reservation;
Annual review of governing body and committee effectiveness;
The management of key risks to the achievement of our strategic objectives
as identified in the Governing Body’s Assurance Framework;
The management of operational risks as identified in the corporate risk register;
Establishment, maintenance and review of operational policies across all areas
of business, including reviews on the application of those policies;
Application of appropriate financial accounting and financial
management procedures as described in the standing financial
instructions;
Regular reporting of performance on our duties and responsibilities to
the Governing Body;
Review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control carried out by
the internal audit function; and
Quarterly CCG assurance submission to NHS England.

In addition the CCG has developed innovative methods to gather ‘intelligence’ these
include the Quality Intelligence Group and patient safety walkabouts. Collectively
these controls reduce the likelihood of risk occurring.
Annual audit of conflicts of interest management
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs
(published June 2016) requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of
conflicts of interest management. To support CCGs to undertake this task, NHS
England has published a template audit framework.
Annual Audit of Conflicts of Interest Management
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs
(published June 2016) requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of the
management of conflict of interests. To support the CCGs to undertake this task,
NHS England has published a template audit framework.
The CCG received an overall internal audit opinion of ‘high assurance’ about the
systems and processes in place to manage conflicts of interest.
Data Quality
The Governing Body is supplied with information in a timely manner; this
information is in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its
duties. Regular reports to the Governing Body include an integrated quality and
performance report and financial performance report.
Through the annual committee self-assessment process members of the Governing
Body confirmed data and information provided is appropriate.
Information Governance
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by
which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular
personal identifiable information. The Framework is supported by an Data Security
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and Protection Toolkit (DSPT) and the annual submission process provides
assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to
individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and
effectively.
Throughout 2019/20 we have been undertaking the assurance work to support the
DSPT submission. However, in light of the current COVID-19 pandemic, the CCGS
has made the decision to delay the submission of our final assessment following a
notification from NHS Digital that the deadline date for submissions had been
extended to 30 September 2020. This extension was to enable NHS organisations to
concentrate their resources on responding to the pandemic at this time.
We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance
systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information.
We have established an information governance management framework and have
developed information governance processes and procedures in line with the DSPT.
We have ensured all staff undertake annual Data Security Awareness training and
have implemented a staff information governance handbook to ensure staff are
aware of their information governance roles and responsibilities.
We have information risk assessment and management processes in place to fully
embed the information risk culture throughout the organisation against identified
risks.
We are continually seeking to improve and develop our information governance and
management through procedural review, training for information asset owners,
improved ongoing awareness culture and working with our informatics partner to
improve system security.
Business Critical Models
In line with best practice recommendations of the 2013 MacPherson review into the
quality assurance of analytical models, I can confirm that an appropriate framework
and environment is in place to provide quality assurance of business critical models.
The CCGs Information Governance framework ensures that business critical systems
are identified and managed effectively. As part of this framework information asset
owners have been appointed that cover the range of business systems used by the
CCG. The Information Asset Owners (IAOs) have been trained. Their responsibility
in relation to business critical systems involves the maintenance of an information
asset register relevant to their organisational remit, the maintenance of service
continuity plans and the continuity of key skills to operate such systems.
Third party assurances
The CCG currently contracts with a number of external organisations for the
provision of back office services and functions. Assurances on the effectiveness of
the controls in place for these are received in part from an annual Service Auditor
Report from the relevant service.
The organisations concerned are:
NHS Shared Business Services, via their independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in respect of Accounts Payable and Receivable
functions;
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NHS Business Services Authority, via their independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in respect of Prescription Payments;
NHS Digital, via their independent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in respect
of the processing of NHS payments and deductions to providers of general practice
(GP) services in England;

Control Issues
Four control issues have been identified during 2019/20.
Quality and Performance RTT/18 week wait:
The CCG aims to achieve the local trajectory of 90% RTT 18 week performance by
the end of March 2019. It is not anticipated that the CCG will achieve the national
standard of 92% or reduce the incomplete waiting list to the March 2018 position
(target).
The challenge - Due to an increase in total waiting list size, there is a risk that
patients are waiting longer, resulting in an increased clinical risk.
A partnership programme for planned care (Joint Planned Care Improvement Group)
ensures collective process and approaches to management; interventions and
prioritisation are in-place.
NHS England and Improvement (national regulators) are aware of the CCGs current
performance position and the actions that are in place to support a performance
improvement and patient. National regulators are satisfied that the CCG is working
towards delivery of the local trajectory.
Joint governance is in-place (Mid Yorkshire Executive Steering Group), to oversee
the improvement group. Routine reporting is provided to Governing Body via the
appropriate committees.
Quality and Performance RTT/18 week wait:
Significant 52 week pressures remain at Leeds Teaching Hospitals Trust (LTHT) and
are reported within Trauma & Orthopaedics. LTHT continue to work with NHS
England and West Yorkshire Association of Acute Trusts, to reduce the very large
capacity gap. The Trust continues to seek assistance from local Independent
Providers and NHS Acute Providers to alleviate pressures. LTHT continues to work
through a detailed capacity and demand plan and have confirmed that all patients
waiting over 52 weeks have been booked into treatment.
Routine reporting is provided to Governing Body via the appropriate committees.
Quality and Performance - Other - please specify as part of mitigating actions:
Cancer 62 day:
Achievement of the 62 day cancer waiting time standard (GP referral) remains a
challenge and MYHT do not anticipate achievement of the national standard this
year unless long term mitigations are put in place.
Increasing demand on 2ww referrals in Lower GI and Head & Neck has impacted on
62 day performance. In addition to this, MYHT have reported emerging risks in
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Gynaecology and Urology due to consultant vacancies. Pathology capacity both in
MYTHT and LTHT is impacting on some pathways.
MYHT are micromanaging all patients >30 days, escalations are taking place on a
daily basis to prioritise key patients and Divisional and Corporate meetings taking
place to discuss performance. The Trust also continues to work closely with the
Cancer Alliance Team.
A partnership programme for Planned Care (planned care improvement Group)
ensures collective process and approaches to management; interventions and
prioritisation are in-place.
A partnership programme for planned care (Joint Planned Care Improvement Group)
ensures collective process and approaches to management; interventions and
prioritisation are in-place. Routine reporting is provided to Governing Body via the
appropriate committees.
Quality and Performance - Access to Service/Capacity
Child and Adult Mental Health Service (CAMHS) Waiting times:
Mitigations include:
• Dedicated senior capacity on secondment to review reduction in waiting
times.
• Improvement plan with supporting action plans in place.
• Recovery trajectory in process.

Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness of the use of
resources
• The CCG has well developed systems and processes for managing its
resources. The Governing Body has overarching responsibility for ensuring the
CCG has appropriate arrangements in place to exercise its functions effectively,
efficiently, and economically and is supported in doing so via the Governing
Body Assurance Framework;
• The Chief Finance Officer (CFO), who is a member of Governing Body, is
responsible for providing financial advice and for supervising financial control
and accounting systems. The CFO presents a finance report to every meeting
of the Governing Body and the Finance Committee;
• The Audit Committee receives regular reports on a range of governance
issues including from both internal and external auditors;
• The Audit Committee will have the opportunity to scrutinise in detail the CCG’s
financial statements for 2019/20 at its meeting on 26 May 2020 together with
the report from external audit. The Governing Body has delegated formal sign
off of the Annual Report and Accounts to the CCG Chair, Chief Officer and
Audit Committee Chair;
• The CCG informs its control framework by the work of the internal audit function
to ensure that controls are operating effectively and to advise on areas for
improvement. Audit action plans are monitored and implementation reviewed and
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reported to the Audit Committee. The annual Internal Audit Plan is approved by
the Audit Committee and covers the risk profile of the CCG;
• The My NHS Quality of Leadership indicator is based on four key lines of enquiry
to determine how robustly the leaders of a CCG are performing their role. The
four key lines of enquiry are:
o Robust culture and leadership sustainability
o Quality
o Governance, including financial governance
o Engagement and involvement
•

Evidence based assessments are made by NHS England local teams and
moderated regionally and nationally. There are four levels of assessment:
Green Star (highest), Green, Amber, Red (lowest);

•

As at the end of 2019/20, CCG was rated GREEN. Rating for 2019/20 yearend results for the Quality of Leadership indicator will be available from July
2020.

Delegation of functions
The Governing Body has approved delegation of powers through the Scheme of
Reservation and Delegation and terms of reference for committees.
The Governing Body monitors this through regular reports from the CCG’s
Accountable Officer and its committees. These reports cover use of resources and
responses to risk. Furthermore the Audit Committee on behalf of the Governing
Body considered a mid-year progress report and end of year report from all
committees of the Governing Body. No areas of concern were identified; there is no
evidence of any internal control failures or poor risk management.
The Probity Committee is a committee of the Governing Body. The Committee has
been established to enable the members to make collective decisions on the
review, planning and procurement of primary care services in Wakefield under
delegated authority from NHS England. In performing its role, the Committee
exercises its management of the functions in accordance with the agreement
entered into between NHS England and the CCG.
Counter fraud arrangements
The CCG's counter fraud arrangements are compliant with NHS Counter Fraud
Authorities’ Standards for commissioners: fraud, bribery and corruption. These
arrangements are underpinned by the engagement of a qualified Local Counter
Fraud Specialist (LCFS) from Audit Yorkshire under a formal Service Level
Agreement, (the current LCFS was nominated, trained and approved by NHS Protect
and accredited by the Counter Fraud Professional Board in 2016); and the
implementation of a CCG wide countering fraud and corruption policy.
All fraud matters are overseen by the Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Officer as
Executive Lead and a member of the Governing Body.
Anti-Crime work is based on an annual risk assessment which identifies fraud risk
areas for the CCG using local and national fraud intelligence. Risks areas are
included within the annual Anti-Crime work plan. An annual work plan together with
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the annual report of fraud, bribery and corruption work is submitted to the Audit
Committee for approval.
The LCFS reports on the progress of counter fraud work to the Chief Finance
Officer/Deputy Chief Officer and the Audit Committee.
The annual assessment (self-review tool – SRT) of the CCG’s compliance with the
NHS CFA’s Standards for Commissioners: Fraud, Bribery and Corruption was
completed by the LCFS and approved by the Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief
Officer. The self-review tool demonstrates compliance with the NHS Standards for
Commissioners. The reports comply with NHSCFA guidelines and provide a
summary of the year’s activity matched against the standards.

Head of Internal Audit Opinion
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF
INTERNAL CONTROL AT NHS WAKEFIELD CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Roles and responsibilities
The whole Governing Body is collectively accountable for maintaining a sound
system of internal control and is responsible for putting in place arrangements for
gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that overall system.
The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is an annual statement by the Accounting
Officer, on behalf of the Governing Body, setting out:
•
•
•

how the individual responsibilities of the Accounting Officer are discharged
with regard to maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of policies, aims and objectives;
the purpose of the system of internal control as evidenced by a description of
the risk management and review processes, including the Assurance
Framework process;
the conduct and results of the review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control including any disclosures of significant control failures together
with assurances that actions are or will be taken where appropriate to address
issues arising.

The organisation’s Assurance Framework should bring together all of the evidence
required to support the AGS requirements.
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit
(HoIA) is required to provide an annual opinion, based upon and limited to the work
performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management, control and governance processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of
internal control). This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with
management and approved by the Audit Committee, which should provide a
reasonable level of assurance, subject to the inherent limitations described below.
The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit has reviewed all risks and assurances
relating to the organisation. The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of
risk-based plans generated from a robust and organisation-led Assurance
Framework. As such, it is one component that the Governing Body takes into
account in making its AGS.
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The Head of Internal Audit Opinion
The purpose of my annual HoIA Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available
to the Accounting Officer and the Governing Body which underpin the Governing
Body’s own assessment of the effectiveness of the organisation’s system of internal
control. This Opinion will in turn assist the Governing Body in the completion of its
AGS.
My opinion is set out as follows:
1. Overall opinion;
2. Basis for the opinion;
3. Commentary.
My overall opinion is that
o Significant assurance is given that there is a generally sound system of
internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that
controls are generally being applied consistently. However, some weakness in
the design and/or inconsistent application of controls, put the achievement of
particular objectives at risk.
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:
1. An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance
Framework and supporting processes; and
2. An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based
audit assignments contained within internal audit risk-based plans that have
been reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken account of the
relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress in respect of
addressing control weaknesses.
Unless explicitly detailed third party assurances have not been relied upon.
The commentary below provides the context for my opinion and together with the
opinion should be read in its entirety.
The design and operation of the Assurance Framework and associated processes.
During 2019/20 the Clinical Commissioning Group’s arrangements for managing risk
and providing assurance to the Governing Body have continued to mature.
The Governing Body has identified its objectives, risks, controls, sources of
assurance and gaps in control and/or assurance and has created and agreed an
Assurance Framework, the design of which has been kept under regular review
since the creation of the CCG. The design and operation of the underpinning
Governing Body Assurance Framework and supporting processes are robust.
The Governing Body retains oversight of the design and content of the Assurance
Framework. The Governing Body reviews the Assurance Framework bi-annually,
where any gaps in assurances and controls are considered. The Governing Body is
well sighted on the risks facing the organisation. It has been scheduled for earlier
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within 2020/21 financial year to review the CCG’s objectives and improve the format
of the Assurance Framework.
The range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit assignments,
contained within risk-based plans that have been reported throughout the year.
The 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee on 23 May
2019. The work of Internal Audit continues to focus on the design and embedding
of core processes to underpin the delivery of the CCG’s strategic objectives. As
such the audit plan was structured around the following key responsibilities of the
CCG:
• Governance
• Information and Performance Management
• Quality
• Integration and Business Development
• Commissioning and Contract Management
• Financial Assurance
Where variances from the plan have occurred these have been undertaken with the
approval of the Chief Financial Officer and the Audit Committee. No departures from
the plan that are material for the purposes of this opinion have occurred.
Following the completion of an audit, an audit report is issued and an assurance
level awarded. The following assurance levels are used:
Opinion Level

Opinion Definition

HIGH
(STRONG)

High assurance can be given that there is a strong system of internal
control which is designed and operating effectively to ensure that the
system’s objectives are met.

SIGNIFICANT
(GOOD)

Significant assurance can be given that there is a good system of
internal control which is designed and operating effectively to ensure
that the system’s objectives are met and that this is operating in the
majority of core areas.

Limited assurance can be given as whilst some elements of the
LIMITED
system of internal control are operating, improvements are required in
(IMPROVEMENT
the system’s design and/or operation in core areas to effectively meet
REQUIRED)
the system's objectives.
LOW
(WEAK)

Low assurance can be given as there is a weak system of internal
control and significant improvement is required in its design and/or
operation to effectively meet the system's objectives.

An action plan is agreed with management. In order to ensure significant progress is
being made in the implementation of agreed actions an Audit Recommendations
Status Report is presented to every Audit Committee.
The outcome of the audit reports from the 2019/20 audit plan are summarised below.
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Audit Area
Conflicts of Interest
Data Security and Protection Toolkit: Stage Two
Governance and Risk Management
Key Financial Systems
Personal Health Budgets
Primary Care Co-Commissioning
Quality Improvement
General Data Protection Regulations Compliance
QIPP
Data Security and Protection Toolkit: Stage One
Financial Review of GP Practice
Clinical Advice and Engagement
Continuing Healthcare

Assurance Level
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
Significant
Significant
N/A – Advisory
N/A – Advisory
N/A – CIA Stage One
N/A – CIA Stage One

Taking into account the Internal Audit work completed to date, all of my findings and
the CCG’s actions to date in response to my recommendations to date, I believe that
no areas of significant risk exist.
Looking Ahead
We have managed to fully complete the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan and are able to
provide an opinion on that basis. In the main, this work was completed prior to
Covid-19 beginning to impact. It is, however, important to make reference to NHS
Wakefield CCG’s response to COVID-19, in your final formal Opinion.
NHS Organisations have had to move quickly to put measures in place to enable
them to respond to COVID-19 and we fully appreciate that staff who we would
usually engage with for planned work have been focused on service delivery, and
our focus in this respect has been on supporting this response in any way we can.
NHS organisations are facing unprecedented levels of risk as a result of COVID-19
and many business critical controls are under massive pressure as the response to
the coronavirus (COVID-19) emergency situation requires NHS organisations to
operate differently to normal business as usual practice.
Audit Yorkshire has provided support including offering staff for re-deployment and
has issued a number of publications as well as sharing and incorporating NHS
England and Improvement guidance, NHS Counter Fraud Authority and HfMA
briefings. We also developed and shared a document ‘Governance in the context of
COVID-19’ to support our Members and Clients in reviewing their governance
arrangements in this time of national emergency. The document provides an easy to
consider checklist of key guidance that has been issued in recent weeks and allows
for self-assessment in considering the key risks presented by COVID-19, helping to
highlight those areas being managed well or not so well. We intend to follow up on
the results of this assessment early in 2020/21.

Helen Kemp-Taylor
Head of Internal Audit and Managing Director
Audit Yorkshire
19 May 2020
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Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and
internal control.
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the
work of the internal auditors, executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical
commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available
to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in
their annual audit letter and other reports.
Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of
controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its
principles objectives have been reviewed.

Conclusion
I conclude that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

Joanne Webster
Accountable Officer
17 June 2020
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Remuneration and Staff Report
Remuneration Report (subject to audit)
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is authorised to consider and make recommendations
to the Governing Body on behalf of NHS Wakefield CCG about the remuneration,
allowances and terms of service for all members of the Governing Body (with the
exception of lay members, whose remuneration is determined by the Governing
Body itself), Very Senior Managers, and staff not covered by agenda for change.
This Committee only determines the reward package of directors and senior
managers on locally-determined pay, taking into account any national directions or
guidance. The vast majority of staff remuneration is determined in accordance with
the national NHS pay framework, Agenda for Change.
The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
• Richard Hindley Lay Member and Deputy Chair (Chair of Remuneration
Committee);
• Richard Watkinson, Lay Member - Audit;
• Stephen Hardy, Lay Member – Patient and Public Engagement and
• Hany Lotfallah, Secondary Care Consultant.
Further details are provided in the Annual Governance Statement section.
The Committee is fully supported and advised by a representative from Human
Resources.
The Committee met on the following dates during 2019/2020:
•
•
•
•
•

18 April 2019;
3 July 2019;
9 July 2019;
11 February 2020; and
20 February 2020.

The Committee considered the following:
•
•
•
•

Review of Governing Body members’ remuneration and staff employed or
providing services remunerated outside of Agenda for Change terms and
conditions;
Redundancy Business Cases;
Remuneration Committee Terms of Committee; and
Appointment of the Clinical Chair.

The Committee applies best practice in the decision making processes when
considering individual remuneration. The table below sets out what constitutes the
senior managers’ remuneration policy:
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ELEMENT
Base pay

POLICY
The Remuneration Committee ensures senior managers pay
complies with current directions or guidance and on occasions
seeks independent advice. The Committee ensures that
decisions are based on clear and transparent criteria determined
by using benchmarked data in order to attract and reward the
right calibre of leaders.

Pension

Senior managers are able to join the NHS Pension Scheme that
is available to all staff.

On call payment

No payments were made to Board members participating in the
on-call rota.

Benefits

The Trust operates salary sacrifice schemes including childcare
vouchers and car lease schemes which are open to all members
of staff.
Travel expenses Appropriate travel expenses are paid.

Remuneration of Very Senior Managers
The review of very senior manager salary values falls under the responsibility of the
Remuneration Committee. During 2019/2020 there were no very senior managers
paid more than £150,000 per annum.
Salaries & Allowances
The remuneration outlined in Table 1 below reflects the amounts received in year for
the period of time worked at the CCG and does not include employers national
insurance or superannuation costs.
The individuals listed in the table are either members of the Governing Body and/or
directors/senior members of the Executive Team. These individuals are able to
influence strategic and financial decision making within the CCG.
For staff sharing arrangements, the remuneration report shows the CCG’s share of
the relevant components of remuneration.
Column E discloses the value of pension benefits accrued during the year,
calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20, less the contributions
made by the individual. The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any
increase or decrease due to transfer of pension rights.
The value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a
calculation that is intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an estimation of
the benefit that being a member of the pension scheme could provide.
The pension benefit table (Table 2) provides further information on the pension
benefits accruing to the individual.
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Factors determining the variation in the values recorded between individuals include
but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•

A change in role with a resulting change in pay and impact on pension benefits;
A change in the pension scheme itself;
Changes in the contribution rates; or
Changes in the wider remuneration package of an individual.
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Table 1 - Senior Manager Remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements)

2019/2020

Name and title (staff in post for full year unless stated)

(a)
Salary (bands of
£5,000)

Melanie Brown
Director of Commissioning, Integrated Health & Care
Dr Greg Connor
Executive Clinical Advisor
Suzannah Cookson
Chief Nurse
Dr Phillip Earnshaw
Clinical Chair to 30 June 2019
Dr Debbie Hallott
GP Member, New Southgate Surgery
Diane Hampshire
Governing Body - Independent Nurse
Stephen Hardy
Lay Member, Patient & Public Involvement
Dr Clive Harries
GP Member, Chapelthorpe
Richard Hindley
Lay Member & Deputy Chair
Dr Pravin Jayakumar
GP Member, Trinity Medical Centre
Patrick Keane
Chief Operating Officer and Deputy Chief Officer to 30 September 2019. Acting Chief Officer 12 August 2019 to 31 January 2020
Dr Hany Lotfallah
Governing Body - Secondary Care Consultant
Dr Adam Sheppard
Assistant Clinical Leader to 30 June 2019. Clinical Chair from 1 July 2019
Ruth Unwin
Director of Corporate Affairs
Richard Watkinson
Lay Member - Audit
Chief Finance Officer. Also Deputy Chief Officer from 1 October 2019
Jonathan Webb
Joanne Webster
Chief Officer
Wakefield Metropolitan District Council employees
Andrew Balchin
Corporate Director Adults, Health & Communities
Anna Hartley
Director of Public Health

101

Notes
1

2
2, 3
1
1
2, 3
2, 3
1, 4, 5
2, 3
1
6
6
7
7

£000
45-50
60-65
85-90
20-25
30-35
5-10
10-15
50-55
10-15
35-40
70-75
20-25
80-85
90-95
10-15
110-115
140-145

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
Expense
Performance Long term All pensionpayments
pay and
performance
related
(taxable) to
bonuses
benefits
pay and
nearest £100 (bands of
(bands of
bonuses
£5,000)
(bands of
£2,500)
£5,000)
£

£000

£000

£000
20-22.5
85-87.5

5,800

10-12.5
100
100

37.5-40
60-62.5

(f)
TOTAL
(a to e)
(bands of
£5,000)

£000
70-75
60-65
175-180
20-25
30-35
5-10
10-15
50-55
10-15
35-40
75-80
20-25
80-85
100-105
10-15
150-155
200-205
0
0

Notes
1
For these senior managers, staff sharing arrangements with other entities were in place. Wakefield CCG's share of the relevant components of remuneration are reported in the table above.
The staff sharing arrangements and total remuneration across all entities are disclosed below.

Melanie Brown
Diane Hampshire
Stephen Hardy
Patrick Keane
Ruth Unwin

(a)
Salary (bands of
£5,000)

50% shared with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council (WMDC)
Governing body member at Wakefield CCG and Interim Chair of Wakefield District Safeguarding of Adults Board for WMDC
Lay member for Patient & Public Involvement at Wakefield CCG. Also lay member for West Yorkshire & Harrogate Joint
Committee of CCGs from June 2019
30% shared with North Kirklees CCG from 1 April to 30 September 2019
10% shared with Mid Yorkshire Hospital NHS Trust

£000
95-100
5-10

Total remuneration across all organisations
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
Expense
Performance Long term All pensionpayments
pay and
performance
related
(taxable) to
bonuses
pay and
benefits
nearest £100 (bands of
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)
(bands of
£2,500)
£5,000)
£

£000

£000
42.5-45

15-20
85-90
100-105

£000
140-145
5-10
15-20

7,000

2

Local GPs whose roles are within their practices but who were engaged part time in the Governing Body of the CCG. The CCG engagements were contracts for service.

3

These individuals, in addition to being Governing Body members, are also remunerated for clinical leadership sessions. Values disclosed in column (a) are the total amounts of remuneration for all roles.
The 2019/2020 remuneration within column (a) that is specific to Governing Body duties are as follows.
£000
Dr Debbie Hallott
GP Member, New Southgate Surgery
30-35
Dr Clive Harries
GP Member, Chapelthorpe
30-35
Dr Pravin Jayakumar
GP Member, Trinity Medical Centre
30-35
Dr Adam Sheppard
Assistant Clinical Leader to 30th June 2019. Clinical Chair from 1st July 2019
65-70

4

Acting Chief Officer 12 August 2019 to 12 January 2020 to cover the absence of the Chief Officer.

5

Taxable expenses were incurred in respect of taxable business mileage, travel and accommodation.

6

Taxable expenses were incurred in respect of taxable business mileage.

7

Employed by the Local Authority and attended CCG Governing Body meetings as voting members.
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£000

(f)
TOTAL
(a to e)
(bands of
£5,000)

10-12.5

90-95
115-120

2018/2019

Name and title (staff in post for full year unless stated)

(a)
Salary (bands of
£5,000)

Notes
1

Melanie Brown
Director of Commissioning, Integrated Health & Care
Sandra Cheseldine
Lay Member - Audit to 30 June 2018
Dr Greg Connor
Executive Clinical Advisor
Suzannah Cookson
Chief Nurse from 3 September 2018
Dr Phillip Earnshaw
Clinical Chair
Dr Debbie Hallott
GP Member, New Southgate Surgery
Diane Hampshire
Governing Body - Independent Nurse
Stephen Hardy
Lay Member, Patient & Public Involvement
Dr Clive Harries
GP Member, Chapelthorpe
Richard Hindley
Lay Member & Deputy Chair
Dr Pravin Jayakumar
GP Member, Trinity Medical Centre
Patrick Keane
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Chief Officer
Clare Linley
Interim Chief Nurse to 31 August 2018
Dr Hany Lotfallah
Governing Body - Secondary Care Consultant
Karen Parkin
Acting Chief Finance Officer to 6 May 2018
Dr Adam Sheppard
Assistant Clinical Leader
Ruth Unwin
Director of Corporate Affairs from 1 October 2018
Richard Watkinson
Lay Member - Audit from 1 June 2018
Jonathan Webb
Chief Finance Officer from 7 May 2018
Joanne Webster
Chief Officer
Wakefield Metropolitan District Council employees
Andrew Balchin
Corporate Director Adults, Health & Communities
Anna Hartley
Director of Public Health

2
2, 3

2, 3
2, 3
1, 5

2, 3
1
4
6
7
7
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£000
45-50
0-5
60-65
45-50
90-95
45-50
5-10
10-15
45-50
10-15
40-45
70-75
35-40
20-25
5-10
75-80
45-50
10-15
95-100
135-140

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
Expense
Performance Long term All pensionpayments
pay and
performance
related
(taxable) to
bonuses
pay and
benefits
nearest £100 (bands of
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)
(bands of
£2,500)
£5,000)
£

£000

£000

£000

£000

17.5-20

65-70
0-5
60-65
100-105
90-95
45-50
5-10
10-15
45-50
10-15
40-45
75-80
35-40
20-25
5-10
75-80
55-60
10-15
115-120
165-170

50-52.5

5,600

7.5-10

100

(f)
TOTAL
(a to e)
(bands of
£5,000)

17.5-20
27.5-30

0
0

Notes
1

For these senior managers, staff sharing arrangements with other entities were in place. Wakefield CCG's share of the relevant components of remuneration are reported in the table above
The staff sharing arrangements and total remuneration across all entities are disclosed below

Melanie Brown
Patrick Keane
Ruth Unwin

(a)
Salary (bands of
£5,000)

£000
90-95
100-105
50-55

50% shared with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council
30% shared with North Kirklees CCG
10% shared with Mid Yorks Hospital Trust from 1 October 2018

Total remuneration across all organisations
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
Expense
Performance Long term All pensionpayments
pay and
performance
related
(taxable) to
bonuses
pay and
benefits
nearest £100 (bands of
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)
(bands of
£2,500)
£5,000)
£

£000

8,100

£000

£000
37.5-40
10-12.5

2

Local GPs whose roles are within their practices but who were engaged part time in the Governing Body of the CCG. The CCG engagements were contracts for services.

3

These individuals, in addition to being Governing Body members, are also remunerated for clinical leadership sessions. Values disclosed in column (a) are the total amounts of remuneration for all roles
The 2018/2019 remuneration within column (a) that is specific to Governing Body duties were as follows.
£000
Dr Debbie Hallott
GP Member, New Southgate Surgery
30-35
Dr Clive Harries
GP Member, Chapelthorpe
30-35
Dr Pravin Jayakumar
GP Member, Trinity Medical Centre
30-35
Dr Adam Sheppard
Assistant Clinical Leader
60-65

4

Seconded from NHS England as Interim Chief Finance Officer from 7 May 2018 to 31 October 2018. Appointed on permanent basis on 1 November 2018.

5

Taxable expenses were incurred in respect of taxable business mileage, travel and accommodation.

6

Taxable expenses were incurred in respect of taxable business mileage.

7

Employed by the Local Authority and attended CCG Governing Body meetings as voting members.

104

(f)
TOTAL
(a to e)
(bands of
£5,000)

£000
130-135
110-115
60-65

Table 2 - Pension Benefits as at 31 March 2020
Name and title

Melanie Brown
Suzannah Cookson
Ruth Unwin
Jonathan Webb
Joanne Webster

(a)
Real increase
in pension at
pension age
(bands of
£2,500)

(b)
Real increase
in pension
lump sum at
pension age
(bands of
£2,500)

(c)
Total accrued
pension at
pension age
at 31 March
2020 (bands
of £5,000)

(f)
(g)
(h)
(d)
(e)
Real increase
Cash
Employer's
Lump sum at
Cash
in Cash
Equivalent contribution
pension age Equivalent
Equivalent
Transfer
to
related to
Transfer
Transfer
Value at 31 stakeholder
accrued
Value at 1
Value
March 2020
pension
pension at 31 April 2019
March 2020
(bands of
£5,000)

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2.5-5
2.5-5
0-2.5
2.5-5
2.5-5

0
12.5-15
0
0-2.5
2.5-5

35-40
30-35
35-40
35-40
35-40

0
100-105
85-90
80-85
75-80

360
580
707
600
585

26
91
17
34
52

408
697
754
664
670

0
0
0
0
0

The table discloses all pension benefits and is not shown as a proportion of remuneration relevant to Wakefield CCG, as reported in Table 1

NHS Pensions Agency has stated that they cannot provide pension benefits
information for Governing Body GPs who are classed only as practitioners with NHS
Pensions Agency, and also where they have a contract for service with the CCG. As
a result the CCG is not able to show the pension benefits related to their role as a
governing body member. The CCG pays over the pension contributions to NHS
England who act as the NHS Pension Employing Authority for these GPs
Cash equivalent transfer values
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The
benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or
other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. CETVs are
calculated in accordance with SI2008 No.1050 Occupational Pension Schemes
(Transfer Values Regulations 2008)
A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a
scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service
in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.
The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension
benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to
the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued
to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in
the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
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Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation or contributions paid by the
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or
arrangement).
The methods used to calculate CETV changed, to remove the adjustment for
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP), on 8 August 2019. Where an individual was
entitled to a GMP, more likely to affect the 1995 Section than the 2008 Section, this
will affect the calculation of the real increase in CETV.
This does not however impact on the real increase in pension benefits, column (a)
and (b) of the above table.
Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office (subject to audit)
There have been no compensation payments to individuals who were Senior
Managers, in the current or previous financial year.
Payments to past members (subject to audit)
A contractual redundancy payment has been made during 2019/2020 of £160,000
relating to a former director and is included in the exit packages table below. During
2019/2020 and 2018/2019 there are no disclosures in the remuneration report as
the individual was not a Senior Manager of the CCG during these years.
Fair Pay Disclosure (subject to audit)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration
of the highest-paid director/member in their organisation and the median
remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director/member in Wakefield CCG in
the financial year 2019/2020 was £140,000 to £145,000 (2018/2019: £135,000 to
£140,000). This was 3.65 times (2018/2019: 3.70) the median remuneration of the
workforce, which was £38,765 (2018/2019: £37,161).

2019/2020
Mid-point band of highest paid director total remuneration
Median value of total remuneration
Ratio

2018/2019

£142,500

£137,500

£38,765

£37,161

3.65

In 2019/2020, no permanent employees received remuneration in excess of the
highest-paid director/member.
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3.70

Remuneration ranged from £10,000 to £145,000 (2018/2019 £5,000 to £140,000)
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay,
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Staff Report
Our workforce is our greatest asset, their work and the support of our partners is
what enables us to continue to transform healthcare for patients in Wakefield and
beyond, to reduce health inequalities in the district.
Number of senior managers
The number of senior managers on the Governing Body as at 31st March 2020 is
summarised in the table below:
Pay Band

No. of employees

Senior Managers

3

Of which: Very Senior Managers (VSM)

2

N.B. The figures above exclude GPs and lay members who are voting members on
the Governing Body.
Staff numbers and costs (subject to audit)
The table below summarises the average number of people employed by NHS
Wakefield CCG in 2019/2020, calculated on a whole time equivalent basis, together
with the net employee benefits costs. ‘Other’ relates to staff on secondment and
temporary staff.

107

2018/2019
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Apprenticeship Levy
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

Average number of employees CCG
Average number of employees for hosted services (West Yorkshire &
Harrogate Integrated Care System and Cancer Alliance)
Average number of employees (whole time equivalents)
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Total
£'000

Permanent
Employees
£'000

Other
£'000

7,930
742
892
20
9
9,593

6,810
716
866
20
9
8,421

1,120
26
26
0
0
1,172

Number
154

Number
147

Number
7

38

21

17

192

168

24

Staff composition
The gender distribution for the CCG as at 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Governing Body members
All other senior managers, including
all Very Senior Managers not
included above
All other employees not included in
either of the above categories

Female
5
2

Male
9
2

153

44

Included in the Governing Body members’ numbers above are two members
employed by WMDC, details are included in the remuneration report tables.
Sickness absence data
The sickness absence rate for 2019/2020 is 3.92%.
Facilities Time Publication
The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 2017 require
relevant public sector organisations to report on trade union facility time in their
organisations. Facility time is paid time off for union representatives to carry out
trade union activities.
Relevant Union Officials: The total number of employees who were relevant union
officials during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 was as follows:
Number of employees who were relevant union
officials during the relevant period
2

Full-time equivalent
number
0.42

Percentage of time spent on facility time: The percentage of the employees’ time
spent on facility time was as follows:
Percentage of time

Number of employees

0%
1%-50%
51%-99%
100%

0
1
0
1

109

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time: The percentage of the total pay-bill
spent on paying employees who were relevant union officials for facility time during
2019/2020 was as follows:
Total cost of facility time
Total pay bill
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time,
calculated as: (total cost of facility time ÷ total pay bill) × 100

£5,179.32
£11,410,000
0.05%

Paid Trade Union activities: The time spent on paid trade union activities as a
percentage of total paid facility time was as follows:
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours calculated as:
(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant
union officials during the relevant period ÷ total paid facility
time hours) × 100

11.26%

Employment policies
We have a range of supportive employment policies for our workforce. All our
policies and procedures are reviewed on a regular basis and Equality Impact
Assessments are completed to enable us to monitor the impact of the
implementation of our workforce policies.
Equality impact assessments are completed for all relevant policies and we continue
to monitor the impact of the implementation of our workforce policies on all our
employees to ensure that any developments do not adversely affect any particular
staff groups.
In line with the requirements of the Equality Act, we are committed to making sure
that equality and diversity are priorities when planning and commissioning local
healthcare. This is equally important in the way we recruit, involve and develop our
staff.
We recognise that in order to remove the barriers experienced by individuals with a
disability, we need to make reasonable adjustments for our disabled employees. We
do this on a case by case basis and involve occupational health services as
appropriate. The principle of reasonable adjustments is embedded throughout all
policies as described above.
Other employee matters
Freedom to speak up
We continue to work with national guidance to support staff to raise concerns via the
Freedom to Speak Up (Whistleblowing) Policy.
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Workplace Behaviour Ambassadors
We have introduced the role of Workplace Behaviour Ambassadors to support staff
discussing concerns in confidence about any workplace behaviours including
bullying and harassment.
Partnership Working Group
The Partnership Working Group is to advise and support the organisation by jointly
recognising the maintenance of effective employee relations, employee engagement
and employment practice through partnership working with employees and Trade
Unions.
The purpose of the Partnership Working Group is to:
• Ensure that the organisation has effective partnership working arrangements in
place in order to consult and negotiate with the workforce and their Trade Union;
• Recognise, develop and maintain the efficiency and success of the organisation in
commissioning healthcare services on behalf of, and to the benefit of, the local
population;
• Promote and maintain mutual trust, respect and co-operation between the
organisation, its workforce and their Trade Unions.
Staff Forum
The forum reviews staff engagement within the CCG and supports initiatives to
improve the culture at the CCG. It is an integral part of our culture and values to
encourage two-way communication and employee involvement to provide an
interactive opportunity for staff engagement in relation to development and
improvement within NHS Wakefield CCG.
The purpose of the staff forum is:
• To provide a mechanism to influence staff health and wellbeing issues;
• To oversee the staff survey, consider the issues arising from the findings and
recommend action to the Senior Leadership Team to improve the health,
wellbeing and working lives of all staff and ensure that Wakefield CCG meets its
staff NHS Constitution commitments.
Any member of staff from the CCG or who works at White Rose House can join the
forum or attend a meeting. Meetings are every month and issues discussed over the
past year include:
• Attendance at Senior Leadership Team meetings to discuss our plans;
• Contributing to developing the action plan for the staff survey;
• Undertaking work with regard to working carers including a survey.
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Staff Awards
The CCG held a staff awards event on 28 June 2019 which was an opportunity to
thank all staff for their hard work throughout the year. Award categories on the night
included, dedication to the patient experience and partnership working. The awards
were an opportunity to recognise those teams and individuals who excelled in these
areas. The event was a great opportunity to bring the whole organisation together to
celebrate the CCG’s achievements.

Above is a photo of colleagues at the Staff Awards.
National Staff Survey 2019
The survey was sent via email to all directly employed staff of the organisation. The
survey is designed to provide insight into opinion on many aspects of employee
experience and engagement. The organisation received an overall 89% response
rate, the results of which will inform the action plan that is formulated with staff
engagement and input.
Health and Wellbeing
The CCG has started a wellbeing initiative “Steps to Wellbeing” to raise awareness
to staff in regards to their own wellbeing and to support a healthy workforce. The
first event relating to this initiative was the Employee Wellbeing Week (13 January
2020 - 17 January 2020), which included activities such as Health Checks, Afternoon
Tea, Mindfulness sessions and information stalls. The event received good feedback
with an appetite for future wellbeing events.
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Above is a photo of our employees enjoying Afternoon Tea with the Directors during
the Employee Wellbeing Week.
In addition to the Employee Wellbeing Week, a number of initiatives have also taken
place throughout the year as detailed below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

We have trained Mental Health First Aiders (MHFAs);
Employees have access to an Employee Assistance Programme;
We continue to develop a coaching culture within the organisation;
Bullying and Harassment Prevention Training is delivered for all staff;
Workstation Assessments are supported within the CCG;
A Dignity at Work Policy has been revised to support issues being addressed and
resolved at an early stage;
We have a range of Staff Benefits such as Cycle to Work Scheme and we are
currently reviewing the staff offer to explore additional benefits;
We are increasing the Electronic Staff Record functionalities to support managers
make decisions with real time information;
We have established a Carer’s Staff Network to support carers at work and further
initiatives are being reviewed by the CCG in relation to carers such as a carer’s
passport;
We offer free flub jabs to our staff on an annual basis;
We are a Disability Confident employer.

Leadership and Management
• Line Management Essentials training was delivered to line managers throughout
2019/2020 to support effective line management skills;
• Sickness Absence Management Training was delivered to line managers
throughout 2019/2020, and is now a mandatory requirement for line managers.
Expenditure on consultancy
Consultancy costs for 2019/2020 are £96k (2018/2019 - £178k).
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Off-payroll engagements
Table 1: Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 months
The following table shows all off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2020, where
the fees are for more than £245 per day and last for longer than six months:
Number
Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020

0

Of which, the number have existed:
for less than one year at the time of reporting

0

for between one years and two years at the time of reporting

0

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting

0

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting

0

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting

0

All existing off-payroll engagements, outlined above, have been subject to a risk
based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying
the right amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought.
Table 2: New off-payroll engagements
Under the reformed public sector rules the following table shows all new off-payroll
engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2019
and 31 March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than 6
months:
Number
Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1
April 2019 and 31 March 2020

1

Of which:
Number assessed as caught by IR35

0

Number assessed as not caught by IR35

0

Of which:
No. engaged directly (via PSC contracted to the entity) and are on the entity’s payroll

0

No. of engagements reassessed for consistency / assurance purposes during the year

0

No. of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following the consistency review

0
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Table 3: Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements
The following table shows any off-payroll engagements of board members and/or
senior officials with significant financial responsibility, between 1 April 2019 and 31
March 2020.
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officers with
significant financial responsibility, during the financial year

0

Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have been deemed "board
members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility", during the
financial year. This figure must include both on payroll and off-payroll engagements.

17
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Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments
Table 1: Exit Packages (subject to audit)
2019/2020
Exit package cost band (including
any special payment element)

Cost of
Total
Number of
Number of
Cost of
number of
compulsory compulsory
other
other
exit
redundancies redundancies departures departures
packages
agreed
agreed

£s

£s

Cost of
Total cost Number of
special
of exit
departures
payment
packages
where
element
special
payments included in
exit
have been
packages
made
£s

Less than £10,000
£10,000 - £25,000
£25,001 - £50,000
£50,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
>£200,000

1

88,000

1

88,000

1

160,000

1

160,000

Totals

2

248,000

2

248,000

£s

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS National Terms and
Conditions of Service. Exit costs in this note are reported in full in the year when the departure was formally agreed, as opposed to
the year when the expenditure was included in the financial accounts. Where NHS Wakefield CCG has agreed early retirements,
the additional costs are met by NHS Wakefield CCG and not by the NHS Pensions Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by
the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not included in the table.
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2018/2019
Exit package cost band
Number of
Cost of
Number of
Cost of
Total
Total cost Number of
Cost of
(including any special payment compulsory compulsory
other
other
number of
of exit departures
special
packages
where
element)
redundancies redundancies departures departures
exit
payment
agreed
agreed
special
packages
element
payments included in
have been
exit
made
packages
£s
£s
£s
£s
8,754
8,754
1
Less than £10,000
1
£10,000 - £25,000
25,108
25,108
1
£25,001 - £50,000
1
£50,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
>£200,000
Totals

1

8,754

1
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25,108

2

33,862

Table 2: Analysis of Other Departures (subject to audit)
2019/2020
Agreements
Number

Total value of agreements
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Agreements
Number

Total value of agreements
£000s

1

25

1

25

Voluntary redundancies including early
retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS)
contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the
service contractual costs
Contractual payments in lieu of notice
Exit payments following Employment
Tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring
HMT approval
Total

2018/2019

Voluntary redundancies including early
retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS)
contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the
service contractual costs
Contractual payments in lieu of notice
Exit payments following Employment
Tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring
HMT approval
Total

Joanne Webster
Accountable Officer
17 June 2020
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report
NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group is not required to produce a
Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report. Disclosures with regard to
contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, and fees and charges are
included as notes within the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING
BODY OF NHS WAKEFIELD CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group (“the CCG”)
for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure,
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows, and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the CCG’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its income
and expenditure for the year then ended; and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by the NHS
Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as being relevant to CCGs in
England and included in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manual 2019/20.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the CCG in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion.
Going concern
The Accountable Officer has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as
they have not been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the CCG without
the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. They have also concluded that there are no
material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern
period”).
We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements. In our evaluation of the Accountable Officer’s conclusions we considered the inherent risks
to the CCG’s operations and analysed how these risks might affect the CCG’s financial resources, or
ability to continue its operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these
respects.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the CCG will
continue in operation.
Other information in the Annual Report
The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report
together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below,
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information. In our opinion the other information included in the Annual
Report for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to report to you if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with guidance
issued by the NHS Commissioning Board. We have nothing to report in this respect.
Remuneration and Staff Report
In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manual 2019/20.
Accountable Officer’s responsibilities
As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 63, the Accountable Officer is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are also responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the CCGs ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant national body of the
intention to dissolve the CCG without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.
Auditor’s responsibilities
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements. A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS
Opinion on regularity
We are required to report on the following matters under Section 25(1) of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. In our opinion, in all material respects, the expenditure and income recorded
in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
Report on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources
Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if the CCG has not made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We have
nothing to report in this respect.
Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 63, the Accountable Officer is responsible
for ensuring that the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically. We are
required under section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that
the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of
the CCGs arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are
operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in December 2019 and
updated in April 2020 as to whether the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers

and local people. We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and related
guidance. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary.
Statutory reporting matters
We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General (‘the Code of Audit Practice’) to report to you if:
• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make,
or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is
about to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be
unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014; or
• we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014.
We have nothing to report in these respects.
THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
This report is made solely to the Members of the Governing Body of NHS Wakefield CCG, as a body,
in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Members of the Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Members
of the Governing Body, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Wakefield CCG for the year ended
31 March 2020 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and
the Code of Audit Practice.

Robert Jones
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
1 St Peter’s Square, Manchester, M2 3AE
24th June 2020
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2020

Note

2019-20
£'000

2018-19
£'000

Income from sale of goods and services
Other operating income
Total operating income

2
2

(1,424)
(2,149)
(3,573)

(1,278)
(3,507)
(4,785)

Staff costs
Purchase of goods and services
Depreciation and impairment charges
Provision expense
Other Operating Expenditure
Total operating expenditure

3
4
4
4
4

11,410
631,971
52
62
165
643,660

9,593
598,706
128
648
166
609,241

Net Operating Expenditure

640,087

604,457

Finance income
Finance expense
Net expenditure for the year

0
0
640,087

0
0
604,457

Net (Gain)/Loss on Transfer by Absorption
Total Net Expenditure for the Financial Year
Other Comprehensive Expenditure
Items which will not be reclassified to net operating costs
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of PPE
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Intangibles
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Financial Assets
Actuarial (gain)/loss in pension schemes
Impairments and reversals taken to Revaluation Reserve
Items that may be reclassified to Net Operating Costs
Net gain/loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Sub total

0
640,087

0
604,457

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year

640,087

604,457
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Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2020

Note
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Total non-current assets

2019-20

2018-19

£'000

£'000

7

125
0
0
0
0
125

151
0
0
0
0
151

8
9

447
2,559
0
0
284
3,290

471
2,895
0
0
535
3,901

0

0

Total current assets

3,290

3,901

Total assets

3,415

4,052

(41,573)
0
0
0
(611)
(42,184)

(34,492)
0
0
0
(652)
(35,144)

(38,769)

(31,092)

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Assets less Liabilities

(38,769)

(31,092)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Charitable Reserves
Total taxpayers' equity:

(38,769)
0
0
0
(38,769)

(31,092)
0
0
0
(31,092)

Current assets:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

10

Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total current liabilities

11

12

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

The notes on pages 7 to 30 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 3 to 6 were approved by the Governing Body on 9 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Joanne Webster
Chief Accountable Officer
17 June 2020
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended
31 March 2020
General fund
£'000

Revaluation
reserve
£'000

Other
reserves
£'000

Balance at 01 April 2019
Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2019

(31,092)
0
(31,092)

0
0
0

0
0
0

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20
Net operating expenditure for the financial year

(640,087)

Total
reserves
£'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20
(31,092)
0
(31,092)

(640,087)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of other investments and Financial Assets (excluding available for sale
financial assets)
Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(640,087)
632,410
(38,769)

0
0
0

0
0
0

(640,087)
632,410
(38,769)

General fund
£'000

Revaluation
reserve
£'000

Other
reserves
£'000

(23,569)
0
(23,569)

0
0
0

0
0
0

(23,569)
0
(23,569)

0
0
(604,457)

0
0

0
0

0
0
(604,457)

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(604,457)
596,934
(31,092)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(604,457)
596,934
(31,092)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2020

Total
reserves
£'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19
Balance at 01 April 2018
Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2019
Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19
Impact of applying IFRS 9 to Opening Balances
Impact of applying IFRS 15 to Opening Balances
Net operating costs for the financial year
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve
Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2019

The notes on pages 7 to 30 form part of this statement
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NHS Wakefield CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2020
Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments and reversals
Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards
Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption
Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Interest paid
Release of PFI deferred credit
Other Gains & Losses
Finance Costs
Unwinding of Discounts
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities

4

8
9
11
12
12

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment
(Payments) for intangible assets
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health
(Payments) for other financial assets
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)
Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards
Loans made in respect of LIFT
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT
Rental revenue
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities

7

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received
Other loans received
Other loans repaid
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT
Capital grants and other capital receipts
Capital receipts surrendered
Non-cash movements arising on application of new accounting standards
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities

2019-20
£'000

2018-19
£'000

(640,087)
52
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
24
336
0
7,081
0
(103)
62
(632,635)

(604,457)
128
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
133
1,683
0
5,017
0
(87)
648
(596,935)

0
(26)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(26)

0
(52)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(52)

(632,661)

(596,987)

632,410
0
0
0
0
0
0
632,410

596,933
0
0
0
0
0
0
596,933

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

10

(251)

(54)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year

10
11

535
0
284

589
0
535

The notes on pages 7 to 30 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements
1

Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group
Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Group Accounting Manual 2019-20 (GAM) issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained
in the Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical
commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the Group Accounting
Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the
clinical commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical
commissioning group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1

Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by
inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.
Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by
another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements. If services will continue
to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
In 2020/21, in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, all detailed financial planning was suspended and the requirement for CCGs to agree annual
contracts with providers was removed. Instead, all CCGs are currently making regular 'block' payments to NHS providers in line with guidance. This
mechanism is currently confirmed to the end of July 2020.
The Government has issued a mandate to NHS England for the continued provision of services in England in 2020/21 and CCG allocations have been
set for the remainder of 2020/21. While these allocations may be subject to minor revision as a result of the COVID-19 financial framework, the
guidance has been clarified to inform CCGs that they will be provided with sufficient funding for the year. DHSC guidance confirms that it is reasonable
to assume funding will continue to flow on the same basis for 2021/22.
Based on this position, the CCG has determined that it remains appropriate to prepare the accounts on a going concern basis.

1.2

Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3

Movement of Assets within the Department of Health and Social Care Group
As Public Sector Bodies are deemed to operate under common control, business reconfigurations within the Department of Health and Social Care
Group are outside the scope of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Where functions transfer between two public sector bodies, the Department of Health
and Social Care GAM requires the application of absorption accounting. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in
the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector. Where assets and
liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from
operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health and Social Care Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give
rise to income and expenditure entries.

1.4

Joint Operations
Joint operations are activities undertaken by the clinical commissioning group in conjunction with one or more other parties but which are not performed
through a separate entity. A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities
relating to the arrangement. Where the clinical commissioning group is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and
expenses in its own accounts.
The clinical commissioning group has a joint arrangement with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council under 2 separate s75 arrangements: Better
Care Fund and Short Breaks.
The clinical commissioning group hosts the Programme Office for The West Yorkshire Integrated Care Systems "Healthy Futures"

1.4.1

Pooled Budgets
The clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council in accordance with
section 75 of the NHS Act 2006. Whilst the section 75 agreement between the CCG and the Council does constitute a 'joint operation' under IFRS 11,
the substance of the commissioning transactions related to the Fund's spending plan indicates that neither the CCG nor the Council are either a joint
operator or lead commissioner, but are acting as single entities. Therefore, each organisation accounts for its own transactions without recognising its
interest in its share of total assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditure that relate to the whole Fund.

1.5

Operating Segments
Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are reported in line with management information used within the clinical
commissioning group.

1.6

Revenue
In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows;
• As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the clinical commissioning group will not disclose information regarding performance obligations part of a
contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less,
• The clinical commissioning group is to similarly not disclose information where revenue is recognised in line with the practical expedient offered in
paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration corresponds directly with value of the performance completed to date.
• The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the clinical commissioning group to
reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.
The main source of funding for the clinical commissioning group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the general fund. Funding is
recognised in the period in which it is received.
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to the
customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.
Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.
Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles.
The value of the benefit received when the clinical commissioning group accesses funds from the Government’s apprenticeship service are recognised
as income in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider, noncash income and a corresponding non-cash training expense are recognised, both equal to the cost of the training funded.
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Notes to the financial statements
1.7
1.7.1

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in which the
service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is not recognised in the financial statements as the amounts involved are
not considered material.

1.7.2

Retirement Benefit Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes
that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The
schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of
participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for
the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of
payment.
The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.8

Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair value
of the consideration payable.

1.9
1.9.1

Property, Plant & Equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
·
It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
·
It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group;
·
It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
·
The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,
·
The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,
·
Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are
functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single
managerial control; or,
·
Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated as
separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

1.9.2

Measurement
All property, plant and equipment is measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and
bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Assets that are held for their service potential and are in use are measured subsequently at their current value in existing use. Assets that were most
recently held for their service potential but are surplus are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions preventing access to the market at the
reporting date
IT equipment and furniture and fittings that are held for operational use are valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful
economic lives or low values or both, as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in existing use.

1.9.3

Subsequent Expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent
expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is writtenout and charged to operating expenses.

1.9.4

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments
The clinical commissioning group holds no property or plant, only IT equipment. The IT equipment is depreciated over a period of four years on a
straight line basis. At each reporting period end, the clinical commissioning group checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether
there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.

1.10

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.11

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, using the first-in first-out cost formula.
This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks. Inventories are recognised by the Clinical
Commissioning Group due to the stocks for wheelchairs and Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES) held in the Better Care Fund. The
responsibility for the safe keeping, maintenance and counting of the stock lies with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council but the Clinical
Commissioning Group shares joint control as specified in the s75 pooled budget arrangement.

1.12

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk
of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral
part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.

1.13

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:
• A nominal short-term rate of 0.51% (2018-19: 0.76%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows up to and including 5 years from Statement of
Financial Position date.
• A nominal medium-term rate of 0.55% (2018-19:1.14%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years from the
Statement of Financial Position date.
• A nominal long-term rate of 1.99% (2018-19: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 10 years and up to and including 40 years from
the Statement of Financial Position date.
• A nominal very long-term rate of 1.99% (2018-19: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows exceeding 40 years from the Statement of
Financial Position date.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

1.14

Clinical Negligence Costs
NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which in
return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all
clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with clinical commissioning group.

1.15

Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with the
costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating
expenses as and when they become due.

1.16

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group, or a present obligation that is not
recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
Where the time value of money is material, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are disclosed at their present value.
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1.17

Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset
has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
·
Financial assets at amortised cost;
·
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and ;
·
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.
The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

1.17.1

Financial Assets at Amortised cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables and other simple debt instruments. After
initial recognition these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

1.17.2

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

1.17.3

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets measure at fair value through profit and loss are those that are not otherwise measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. This includes derivatives and financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.

1.17.4

Impairment
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (except equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income), lease receivables and contract assets, the clinical commissioning group recognises a loss allowance
representing the expected credit losses on the financial asset.
The clinical commissioning group adopts the simplified approach to impairment in accordance with IFRS 9, and measures the loss allowance for trade
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For other financial assets, the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition (stage 2) and otherwise at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses (stage 1).
HM Treasury has ruled that central government bodies may not recognise stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against other government departments, their
executive agencies, the Bank of England, Exchequer Funds and Exchequer Funds assets where repayment is ensured by primary legislation. The
clinical commissioning group therefore does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies. Additionally
Department of Health and Social Care provides a guarantee of last resort against the debts of its arm's lengths bodies and NHS bodies and the clinical
commissioning group does not recognise allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the reporting date are measured as
the difference between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

1.18

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.18.1

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate
value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability.

1.18.2

Other Financial Liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from
Department of Health and Social Care, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest
method.

1.19

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed
assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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1.20

Foreign Currencies
The clinical commissioning group’s functional currency and presentational currency is pounds sterling and amounts are presented in thousands of
pounds unless expressly stated otherwise. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot
exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s
surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.21

Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation.
By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of
payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have
been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being
included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.22

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the clinical commissioning groups' accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates
and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.22.1

Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of applying the
clinical commissioning groups' accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
- Materiality – IAS (International Accounting Standard) 8 states that IFRS accounting policies need not be developed or applied if the impact of
applying them would be immaterial or where the benefits derived from the information would exceed the cost of providing it.
- Clinical commissioning groups along with all DHSC group entities must adopt the accounting policies set out in DHSC Group Accounting Manual, to
ensure that the same standards are applied consistently across the group.
- There is no requirement to disclose policies that are irrelevant or immaterial to the clinical commissioning group and so only relevant and material
policies are disclosed.
- The clinical commissioning group followed International Accounting Standard (IAS) 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, in
determining the accounting treatment of the Contingent Liability disclosure. The same IAS was followed for the redundancy and legal claims provisions.

1.22.2

Sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the clinical commissioning group's accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Key accruals with providers where full year information is not available at year end including:
- Key accruals including those associated with continuing care, prescribing and contracts with key providers where full year information is not available
at the time of drawing up the accounts, where a range of possible outcomes exist. The clinical commissioning group has formed a view as to a
reasonable and appropriate estimate at the year-end.
- The clinical commissioning group liaises closely with the Local Authority and other third party suppliers in relation to any estimated charges to ensure
they are as accurate as possible. This is particularly important to pooled budgets including the Better Care Fund and the clinical commissioning group
has worked with the Local Authority via the Connecting Care Executive to receive regular financial reports.
- The clinical commissioning group hosts the Programme Office for The West Yorkshire Integrated Care Systems "Healthy Futures" and a significant
amount of funds for clinical programmes and such it is necessary to make reasonable and appropriate estimates and judgements at the year-end.

1.23

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Department of Health and Social Care GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2019-20. These
Standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM adoption.
● IFRS 16 Leases – The Standard's application has been delayed until 1 April 2021 as adapted and interpreted by the FReM.
● IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, but not yet adopted by the FReM:
early adoption is not therefore permitted.
● IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
The application of the Standards would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2019-20, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

Income from sale of goods and services (contracts)
Education, training and research
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Patient transport services
Prescription fees and charges
Dental fees and charges
Income generation
Other Contract income
Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
Total Income from sale of goods and services

2019-20
Admin

2019-20
Programme

2019-20
Total

2018-19
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
1,424
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,424

0
1,424
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,424

0
1,278
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,278

Other operating income
Rental revenue from finance leases
Rental revenue from operating leases
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: NHS
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: non-NHS
Receipt of donations (capital/cash)
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions
Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions
Non cash apprenticeship training grants revenue
Other non contract revenue
Total Other operating income

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
83
83

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2,066
2,066

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2,149
2,149

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,507
3,507

Total Operating Income

83

3,490

3,573

4,785
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3. Employee benefits and staff numbers
3.1.1 Employee benefits

Total
Permanent
Employees
£'000

2019-20

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Apprenticeship Levy
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

7,463
797
1,379
0
24
0
0
248
9,911

1,432
32
35
0
0
0
0
0
1,499

8,895
829
1,414
0
24
0
0
248
11,410

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs

0
9,911

0
1,499

0
11,410

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

0
9,911

0
1,499

0
11,410

3.1.1 Employee benefits

Total
Permanent
Employees
£'000

2018-19

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Apprenticeship Levy
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

6,810
716
866
0
20
0
0
9
8,421

1,120
26
26
0
0
0
0
0
1,172

7,930
742
892
0
20
0
0
9
9,593

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs

0
8,421

0
1,172

0
9,593

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

0
8,421

0
1,172

0
9,593

3.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
There were no recoveries in respect of employee benefits in 2018/19 or 2019/20
Note Of the increase in gross employee benefits, West Yorkshire & Harrogate Integrated Care System and West
Yorkshire & Harrogate Cancer Alliance account for £1.3m, whilst the employers pension rate increase accounts for a
further £0.4m.
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3.2 Average number of people employed
2019-20
Permanently
employed
Number
Total
Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on capital
projects

Average number of employees (whole time equivalents) Above
Average number of employees for hosted services (West Yorkshire &
Harrogate Integrated Care System and Cancer Alliance)
Average number of employees CCG

2018-19

Other
Number

Permanently
employed
Number

Total
Number

Other
Number

Total
Number

170

29

199

168

24

192

0

0

0

0

0

0

170

29

199

168

24

192

39

16

55

21

17

38

131

13

144

147

7

154

3.3 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

2019-20
Compulsory redundancies
Number
£
1
88,000
1
160,000
2
248,000

2019-20
Other agreed departures
Number
£
-

2019-20
Total

Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

2018-19
Compulsory redundancies
Number
£
1
8,754
1
8,754

2018-19
Other agreed departures
Number
£
1
25,108
1
25,108

Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

2019-20
Departures where special
payments have been made
Number
£
-

Number
-

-

2018-19
Departures where special payments
have been made
Number
£
-

-

2018-19
Other agreed departures
Number
£
1
25,108
1
25,108

£
1
1
2

88,000
160,000
248,000

2018-19
Total
Number

£
1
1
2

8,754
25,108
33,862

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs
Contractual payments in lieu of notice
Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval*
Total

2019-20
Other agreed departures
Number
£
-

There were no departures where special payments were made in 2018/19 or 2019/20
These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous
period.
The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.
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3.4 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules
of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit
schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health and
Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to
the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be
determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:
3.4.1 Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the
end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated
membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting
purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2020, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2019, updated to 31 March
2020 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS
19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual
NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can
also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
3.5.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account
recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.
The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this valuation
set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6%, and the Scheme Regulations were amended accordingly.
The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set following the 2012
valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced a pause to that part of the
valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process.
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4. Operating expenses
2019-20
Total
£'000
Purchase of goods and services
Services from other CCGs and NHS England
Services from foundation trusts
Services from other NHS trusts
Provider Sustainability Fund
Services from Other WGA bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Purchase of social care
General Dental services and personal dental services
Prescribing costs
Pharmaceutical services
General Ophthalmic services
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Audit fees
Other non statutory audit expenditure
·
Internal audit services
·
Other services
Other professional fees
Legal fees
Education, training and conferences
Funding to group bodies
CHC Risk Pool contributions
Non cash apprenticeship training grants
Total Purchase of goods and services
Depreciation and impairment charges
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Impairments and reversals of financial assets
·
Assets carried at amortised cost
·
Assets carried at cost
·
Available for sale financial assets
Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals of investment properties
Total Depreciation and impairment charges
Provision expense
Change in discount rate
Provisions
Total Provision expense
Other Operating Expenditure
Chair and Non Executive Members
Grants to Other bodies
Clinical negligence
Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Expected credit loss on receivables
Expected credit loss on other financial assets (stage 1 and 2 only)
Inventories written down
Inventories consumed
Other expenditure
Total Other Operating Expenditure
Total operating expenditure
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2018-19
Total
£'000

12,535
66,287
325,160
0
110
100,910
0
0
63,354
0
0
58,498
3
1,001
96
1,847
86
1,169
48

3,472
64,131
312,038
0
0
98,122
0
0
59,810
0
0
54,860
6
1,488
178
1,806
44
1,458
45

37
7
485
148
190
0
0
0
631,971

46
0
929
116
157
0
0
0
598,706

52
0
0
0

128
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
52

0
0
0
0
0
128

0
62
62

0
648
648

138
0
0
0
0
0
0
24
3
165

161
0
0
0
5
0
0
0
0
166

632,250

599,649
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5 Better Payment Practice Code
Measure of compliance

2019-20
Number

2019-20
£'000

2018-19
Number

2018-19
£'000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target (95%)

11,797
11,595
98.29%

163,916
161,753
98.68%

12,078
11,833
97.97%

147,940
146,279
98.88%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target (95%)

3,184
3,115
97.83%

407,350
402,723
98.86%

2,982
2,948
98.86%

356,197
355,888
99.91%

5.1 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
The CCG made no payments in respect of interest on late payment of debts in 2018/19 or 2019/20
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6. Operating Leases
The CCG has entered into lease arrangements to secure property for conducting the business of healthcare and associated administration. All arrangements have
been assessed individually and determined to be operating leases with reference to IAS 17.
Whist our arrangements with NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charges for future years have not yet been agreed.
Consequently this note includes future minimum lease payments for other rental arrangements only.
6.1 As lessee
6.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense
Land
£'000
Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Sub-lease payments
Total

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

2019-20
Total
£'000

Other
£'000

433
0
0
433

37
0
0
37

6.1.2 Future minimum lease payments
Land
£'000
Payable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

470
0
0
470

2019-20
Total
£'000

Other
£'000
0
0
0
0

Land
£'000

28
27
0
55

The values under "other" relate to leases for photocopiers and leased cars through the salary sacrifice scheme.
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Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

Land
£'000
28
27
0
55

389
0
0
389

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

2018-19
Total
£'000

Other
£'000
41
0
0
41

2018-19
Total
£'000

Other
£'000
0
0
0
0

430
0
0
430

24
16
0
40

24
16
0
40
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7 Property, plant and equipment

Information
technology
£'000
321

2019-20
Cost or valuation at 01 April 2019

Total
£'000
321

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Additions government granted
Additions leased
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale and reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation gains
Impairments charged
Reversal of impairments
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body
Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation
Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2020

26
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
347

0
26
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
347

Depreciation 01 April 2019

170

170

Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale and reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation gains
Impairments charged
Reversal of impairments
Charged during the year
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body
Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation
Depreciation at 31 March 2020

0
0
0
0
0
0
52
0
0
222

0
0
0
0
0
0
52
0
0
222

Net Book Value at 31 March 2020

125

125

Purchased
Donated
Government Granted
Total at 31 March 2020

125
0
0
125

125
0
0
125

Owned
Held on finance lease
On-SOFP Lift contracts
PFI residual: interests

125
0
0
0

125
0
0
0

Total at 31 March 2020

125

125

Asset financing:

7.1 Economic lives
Minimum Life
(years)
4

Information technology
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Maximum Life
(years)
4
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8 Inventories

Balance at 01 April 2019

Loan
Equipment
£'000
471

Additions/expensed
Write-down of inventories (including losses)
Reversal of write-down previously taken to the statement of comprehensive
net expenditure
Transfer (to) from -Goods for resale
Balance at 31 March 2020

Total
£'000
471

(24)
0

(24)
0

0
0
447

0
0
447

The stock relates to joint arrangements with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council, under the Better Care Fund for
Wheelchair Services and Integrated Care and Equipment Services (ICES).
£447k is made up of 100% (£198k) of wheelchair stock and 60% (£249k) of the ICES stock, in line with the CCG's
pooled fund contributions (2018/19 - 100% £222k and 60% £249k respectively).
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9.1 Trade and other receivables

Current
2019-20
£'000

NHS receivables: Revenue
NHS receivables: Capital
NHS prepayments
NHS accrued income
NHS Contract Receivable not yet invoiced/non-invoice
NHS Non Contract trade receivable (i.e pass through funding)
NHS Contract Assets
Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue
Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Capital
Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments
Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income

Non-current
2019-20
£'000

Current
2018-19
£'000

Non-current
2018-19
£'000

1,736
0
43
76
0
0
0
406
0
54
78

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,216
0
0
200
0
0
0
1,045
0
5
306

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
166

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
(5)
128

0
0
0
0
0

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership arrangement prepayments and
accrued income
Interest receivables
Finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivables
Other receivables and accruals
Total Trade & other receivables

0
0
0
0
0
2,559

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
2,895

0
0
0
0
0
0

Total current and non current

2,559

2,895

0

0

Non-NHS and Other WGA Contract Receivable not yet invoiced/non-invoice
Non-NHS and Other WGA Non Contract trade receivable (i.e pass through funding)
Non-NHS Contract Assets
Expected credit loss allowance-receivables
VAT

Included above:
Prepaid pensions contributions

9.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired
2019-20
DHSC Group
Bodies
£'000
181
62
81
324

By up to three months
By three to six months
By more than six months
Total

Trade and other
receivables Non DHSC
Group Bodies
£'000
(5)
0
0
5
0
0
0
0
0
0

9.3 Loss allowance on asset classes
Balance at 01 April 2019
Lifetime expected credit loss on credit impaired financial assets
Lifetime expected credit losses on trade and other receivables-Stage 2
Lifetime expected credit losses on trade and other receivables-Stage 3
Credit losses recognised on purchase originated credit impaired financial assets
Amounts written off
Financial assets that have been derecognised
Changes due to modifications that did not result in derecognition
Other changes
Total
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2019-20
Non DHSC
Group Bodies
£'000
50
10
236
296

Other financial
assets

2018-19
DHSC Group
Bodies
£'000
122
0
0
122

Total

£'000

£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(5)
0
0
5
0
0
0
0
0
0

2018-19
Non DHSC
Group Bodies
£'000
6
307
518
831

NHS Wakefield CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20
10 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance at 01 April 2019
Net change in year
Balance at 31 March 2020
Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Cash with Commercial banks
Cash in hand
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position
Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft: Commercial banks
Total bank overdrafts
Balance at 31 March 2020

2019-20
£'000
535
(251)
284

2018-19
£'000
589
(54)
535

283
1
284

534
1
535

-

-

284

535

The requirement for the 31 March 2020 was that the cash balance was less than £700k (1.25% of the monthly
March drawdown) and as such the Clinical Commissioning Group met its target.
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Current
2019-20
£'000

11 Trade and other payables

Interest payable
NHS payables: Revenue
NHS payables: Capital
NHS accruals
NHS deferred income
NHS Contract Liabilities
Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue
Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Capital
Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals
Non-NHS and Other WGA deferred income
Non-NHS Contract Liabilities
Social security costs
VAT
Tax
Payments received on account
Other payables and accruals
Total Trade & Other Payables

0
2,089
0
1,441
0
0
2,509
64
12,080
0
0
138
0
110
0
23,142
41,573

Total current and non-current

41,573
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Non-current
2019-20
£'000

Current
2018-19
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
1,734
0
1,086
0
0
3,165
64
10,306
0
0
122
0
102
0
17,913
34,492
34,492

Non-current
2018-19
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
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12 Provisions
Current
2019-20
£'000

Non-current
2019-20
£'000

Pensions relating to former directors
Pensions relating to other staff
Restructuring
Redundancy
Agenda for change
Equal pay
Legal claims
Continuing care
Other
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
237
374
611

Total current and non-current

611
Pensions
Relating to
Former
Directors
£'000

Current
2018-19
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Non-current
2018-19
£'000

0
0
0
0
0
0
4
336
312
652

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

652

Pensions
Relating to
Other Staff
£'000

Restructuring
£'000

Redundancy
£'000

Agenda for
Change
£'000

Equal Pay
£'000

Legal Claims
£'000

Continuing
Care
£'000

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

Balance at 01 April 2019

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

336

312

652

Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
Change in discount rate
Transfer (to) from other public sector body
Transfer (to) from other public sector body under absorption
Balance at 31 March 2020

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
(4)
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
(99)
0
0
0
0
0
237

62
0
0
0
0
0
0
374

62
(103)
0
0
0
0
0
611

Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Balance at 31 March 2020

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

237
0
0
237

374
0
0
374

611
0
0
611

The continuing healthcare provision was created in 2018/19 for the unresolved previously unassessed periods of care (PUPoC) claims and eligibility appeals. This has been estimated based on information provided by Sheffield CCG, the
PUPOC administrator.
Included in other is a provision for VAT relating to the Lead Provider Framework. HMRC are currently in discussion with NHS England and have put any assessments in relation to this supply on temporary hold awaiting NHS England’s
representation. The provision is based on the value of the contract from 2015/16 to 2019/20.
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13 Commitments
13.1 Capital commitments
The clinical commissioning group had no capital commitments in 2019/20 or 2018/19.
13.2 Other financial commitments
The clinical commissioning group had no other financial commitments in 2019/20 or 2018/19.
14 Financial instruments
14.1 Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or
changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.
Because NHS clinical commissioning groups are financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of
listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or
invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change
the risks facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.
Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the clinical
commissioning group's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body.Treasury activity is subject to review by
the clinical commissioning group and internal auditors.
14.1.1 Currency risk
NHS clinical commissioning groups are principally domestic organisations with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being
in the UK and sterling based. The clinical commissioning group has no overseas operations. The clinical commissioning group therefore
has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
14.1.2 Interest rate risk
The clinical commissioning group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England.
The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate,
fixed for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
14.1.3 Credit risk
Because the majority of the clinical commissioning groups income and revenue comes parliamentary funding, the clinical commissioning
group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as
disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.
14.1.4 Liquidity risk
The clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Parliament. The clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The clinical
commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
14.1.5 Financial Instruments
As the cash requirements of NHS England are met through the Estimate process, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating
and managing risk than would apply to a non-public sector body. The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy nonfinancial items in line with NHS England's expected purchase and usage requirements and NHS England is therefore exposed to little
credit, liquidity or market risk.
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14 Financial instruments cont'd
14.2 Financial assets
Financial Assets
measured at
amortised cost
2019-20
£'000
Equity investment in group bodies
Equity investment in external bodies
Loans receivable with group bodies
Loans receivable with external bodies
Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies
Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies
Trade and other receivables with external bodies
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2020

Equity Instruments
designated at
FVOCI
2019-20
£'000

0
0
0
0
1,048
763
484
0
284
2,579

Total
2019-20
£'000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
1,048
763
484
0
284
2,579

14.3 Financial liabilities

Financial Liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
2019-20
£'000
Loans with group bodies
Loans with external bodies
Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies
Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies
Trade and other payables with external bodies
Other financial liabilities
Private Finance Initiative and finance lease obligations
Total at 31 March 2020

0
0
514
13,503
27,307
0
0
41,324

Other
2019-20
£'000

Total
2019-20
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
514
13,503
27,307
0
0
41,324

15. Contingent Liabilities
In 2019/20 there are no contingent liabilities. In 2018/19 a contingent liability of £685k related to a legal agreement, entered into in 2017/18, to
underwrite a potential future VAT liability for West Wakefield Health & Wellbeing Limited in relation to the national position on New Models of Care.
HMRC’s decision in August 2019 concluded there was no additional VAT liability.
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16 Operating segments

NHS Wakefield CCG
Total

Gross
expenditure
£'000
643,660
643,660

16.1 Reconciliation between Operating Segments and SoCNE

Total net expenditure reported for operating segments
Reconciling items:
Total net expenditure per the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure

2019-20
£'000
640,087
0
640,087

16.2 Reconciliation between Operating Segments and SoFP

Total assets reported for operating segments
Reconciling items:
Total assets per Statement of Financial Position

2019-20
£'000
3,415
0
3,415

Total liabilities reported for operating segments
Reconciling items:
Total liabilities per Statement of Financial Position

2019-20
£'000
(42,184)
0
(42,184)
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Income
£'000
(3,573)
(3,573)

Net expenditure
£'000
640,087
640,087

Total assets
£'000
3,415
3,415

Total liabilities
£'000
(42,184)
(42,184)

Net assets
£'000
(38,769)
(38,769)
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17 Joint arrangements - interests in joint operations
17.1 Interests in joint operations

Name of arrangement

Description of
principal
activities

Parties to the
arrangement

Amounts recognised in Entities books ONLY

Amounts recognised in Entities books ONLY

2019-20

2018-19

Assets

Liabilities

Income

Expenditure

Assets

Liabilities

Income

Expenditure

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Wakefield Better Care Fund

Wakefield
Metropolitan
Disctrict Council

Implementation of
the Care Act /
Integrated Care
models

447

0

93,339

93,339

471

0

55,343

55,343

Short Breaks Services

Wakefield
Metropolitan
Disctrict Council

Carers short break
service

0

0

1,410

1,410

0

0

1,276

1,276

17.2 Interests in entities not accounted for under IFRS 10 or IFRS 11
Short Breaks Services
The CCG in association with the Local Authority has established a Short Breaks service
This led to the creation in 2015-16 of a pooled budget with the Local Authority as the lead commissioner and provider
The details of the contributions and expenditure are disclosed as below:

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus / (Deficit)

WCCG
2019-20
£'000
1,410
1,410
0

WMDC
2019-20
£'000
2,558
2,545
13

Total
2019-20
£'000
3,968
3,955
13

Total
2018-19
£'000
3,731
3,731
0 Note 1

Note 1
As of 31 March 2019 the Short Breaks pool has a balanced in-year and cumulative position.
As of 31 March 2020 the Short Breaks pool has a underspend of £12,819

Wakefield Better Care Fund (BCF)
The CCG in association with the Local Authority has created a pooled budget for the Wakefield Better Care Fund. The CCG acts as the host but either the CCG or the Local Authority have agreed to be lead commissioner for the individual services commissioned from the providers.
The details of the contributions and expenditure are disclosed below:Better Care Fund

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus / (Deficit)

WCCG
2019-20
£'000
93,339
93,339
0

WMDC
2019-20
£'000
42,524
42,524
0

Transfer
2019-20
£'000
(14,762)
(14,762)
0
(Note 1)

Total
Total
2019-20 2018-19
£'000
£'000
121,101 78,693
121,101 78,347
0
346
(Note 2)

Note 1. The income and expenditure numbers are quoted gross per the transactions reported by each organisation in their
ledgers. The CCG transferred £14.762m of funds to the Local Authority under the BCF section 75 agreement so that the LA can lead
commission services from providers.
The LA has recognised the section 75 income from the CCG in its reporting. To report the BCF pool the total £14.762m
transfer has been netted off to avoid overstating both income and expenditure.

Note 2. In 2018/19 within scheme 5 of the BCF (Integrated care equipment services and Wheelchair services, WMDC has advised that
there was a £336k funding surplus on integrated care equipment and a £10k surplus on Wheelchairs. As all the funding for scheme 5
passed to WMDC by the CCG or originates in WMDC, the surplus on funding was reported under WMDC
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18 Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:
Novus Health Ltd - An independent organisation set up in 2007 by the majority of practices in Wakefield and 5-towns district. They provide health care
in innovative ways with an aim of improving quality of care, waiting times and simplicity of use for patients.
For 2019/20 the transactions with Novus Health Ltd totalled £3,368k and the creditor balance is £nil (2018/19 £3,349k and £49k).
Shareholders of which include:
Health Care First and FMC Health Solutions Limited - Dr P Earnshaw
Lupset Health Centre - Dr A Sheppard
Chapelthorpe Medical Centre - Dr C Harries
New Southgate Surgery - Dr D Hallott
Trinity Medical Centre - Dr P Jayakumar
In each case the practice holds shares and the Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body member who is a GP in that practice has been noted
for reference.
Payments to Wakefield District Housing Ltd - Board Member - Health Care First and FMC Health Solutions Limited - Dr P Earnshaw, totalled £61k
(2018/19 nil) with a £4k creditor balance (2018/19 nil).
Payments to University of Leeds - New Southgate Surgery- Dr D Hallott - as Lecturer totalled £4k (2018/19 nil) with a nil creditor balance (2018/19 nil).
Conexus Healthcare Limited - Conexus Healthcare is the GP confederation (groups of GP practices) for all practices in the Wakefield District.
Formed in 2017 by Wakefield’s five GP federations, our member practices work collaboratively as part of a confederation so that we can deliver
greater benefits for patients across Wakefield.
For 2019/20 the transactions for Conexus Healthcare Limited totalled £1,909k (2018/19 £1,792k)
All 37 Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group practices are a member of Conexus Healthcare Limited Confederation
Shareholders of which include:
Health Care First and FMC Health Solutions Limited - Dr P Earnshaw
Lupset Health Centre - Dr A Sheppard
Chapelthorpe Medical Centre - Dr C Harries
New Southgate Surgery - Dr D Hallott
Trinity Medical Centre - Dr P Jayakumar

Payments to
Related
Party
£'000

Receipts Amounts Amounts
from
owed to due from
Related Related Related
Party
Party
Party
£'000
£'000
£'000

Transactions with GP practices in regard to Co-commissioning
Alverthorpe Surgery
Ash Grove Medical Centre
Castleford Medical Practice
Chapelthorpe Medical Centre
Church Street Surgery
College Lane Surgery
Crofton and Sharlston Medical Practice
Dr DP Diggle and RE Phillips (Church View Health Centre)
Dr SP Singh and Partners (Church View Health Centre)
Eastmoor Health Centre
Friarwood Surgery
Health Care First
Henry Moore Clinic
Homestead Medical Centre
King's Medical Practice
Lupset Health Centre
Maybush Medical Centre
Middlestown Medical Centre
New Southgate Surgery
Newland Surgery
Northgate Surgery
Orchard Croft Medical Centre
Outwood Park Medical Centre
FMC Health Solutions Limited (Park View Surgery)
Patience Lane Surgery
Prospect Surgery
Queen Street Surgery
Riverside Medical Centre
St Thomas Road Surgery
Stanley Health Centre
Station Lane Medical Centre
Stuart Road Surgery
The Grange Medical Centre
Tieve Tara Medical Centre
Trinity Medical Centre
Warrengate Medical Centre
The White Rose Surgery

388
2,196
932
2,037
2,082
1,583
1,523
833
1,840
338
2,032
4,199
1,492
1,170
2,282
2,100
1,416
1,425
1,946
580
1,799
1,496
2,019
343
343
1,066
433
1,605
1,012
904
1,087
1,241
2,564
965
3,827
1,502
4,092

6

Within the above expenditure are payments to 7 lead practices of Wakefield CCG Primary Care Networks:
Primary Care Network
Brigantes
Five Towns
Trinity Health Group
Wakefield Health Alliance (Central)
Wakefield Health Alliance (North)
Wakefield Health Alliance (South)
West Wakefield

Lead Practice
Outwood Medical Practice
Kings Medical
Maybush
Ash Grove
Henry Moore
White Rose
Church Street

The DHSC is regarded as a related party. During the year the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a significant number of material transactions with the
DHSC and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department, or has a degree of responsibility for. For example:
NHS England
North of England Commissioning Support Unit
NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups
NHS Trusts
NHS Supply Chain
NHS Resolution
NHS Business Services Authority
NHS Professionals
NHS Property Services
In addition, the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.
Most of these transactions have been with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council and Wakefield District Housing Limited.

29

NHS Wakefield CCG - Annual Accounts 2019-20
19 Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no post balance sheet events after the reporting period.
20 Losses and special payments
There was 1 case costing £3k of losses or special payments in 2019/20. In 2018/19 there were none.
21 Financial performance targets
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:
2019-20
Target
646,767
643,141
53
8,049

Expenditure not to exceed income
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
In all cases the CCG exceed all its Financial performance targets (2018/19 all met).
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2019-20
Performance
643,686
640,087
26
7,677

2018-19
Target
610,536
604,483
50
7,674

2018-19
Performance
610,506
604,457
46
7,570

